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 1                       P R O C E E D I N G S
 2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Good morning.  The July 13,


 3            2021 meeting of the Charter Authorizing Panel is
 4            called to order.  I'd like to welcome everyone to the
 5            Department of Education auditorium and ask you to
 6            please silence your electronic devices.
 7                 I believe we have a pretty quick meeting in
 8            front of us today.  We have some expedited digital
 9            learning plans, and then a few additional amendments
10            that will need to be discussed.  So --
11                 DR. WILLIAMS: Good morning.  Can you hear me?


12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Yes, sir.  Are you able to


13            hear us, Dr. Williams?
14                 DR. WILLIAMS: I can hear you.
15                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Okay.  All right.  We will


16            facilitate a fair and responsible hearing.  And I'll
17            ask that anyone that's coming before the microphones
18            today to please state your name and speak clearly
19            into the microphone.
20                 Good morning, Panel Members.
21  CONSENT AGENDA
22                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: All right.  If you will look


23            at our Consent Agenda, and the first item are the
24            minutes from the June 2021 meeting.  And I'll accept
25            a motion or if there are any revisions.
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 1                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: I move to approve.
 2                 MS. SARACINI: I second.
 3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: So I have a motion by Ms.


 4            Wright-McMurray and a second by Ms. Saracini to
 5            approve the minutes as submitted.
 6                 Any discussion?
 7                 All those in favor?
 8                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Any opposed?
10                 Okay.  Agenda item number one, Mr. Johnston,
11            you're recognized.
12  DISCUSSION RE: SPECIAL CAP MEETING
13                 MR. JOHNSTON: Ms. Coffman, before we move
14            forward, are we going to discuss the possibility of a
15            special meeting, or is that when --
16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Mary Claire, do you want to


17            join us?
18                 MR. JOHNSTON: I didn't know if that was -- this
19            is the appropriate time to bring that up.
20                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: So for us to be able to get


21            all of the digital learning applications reviewed and
22            to the State Board before school starts, do you,
23            either one, have a recommendation for us?
24                 MS. HYATT: It's my -- Mary Claire Hyatt.  It's
25            my understanding that the Department and the State
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 1            Board would like to see those applications get into
 2            place before school starts.  In order to do that,
 3            since our next meeting is not scheduled until August
 4            17th, which then would mean that those would not be
 5            heard until September, we would need to schedule a
 6            special Charter Authorizing Panel meeting.  We can do
 7            it electronically for convenience, since it would
 8            just be digital learning plans, or we can have in
 9            person, at the will of the Panel.  But I do think one
10            will be necessary to hear the remaining digital
11            learning applications.  And I can't tell you off the
12            top of my head how many we have, but we do have
13            several.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Okay.  Any preference?  Two


15            weeks from today is the 27th [audio reverb].
16                 So [audio reverb] --
17                 MR. DAN DAVIS: Somebody has joined --
18                 DR. WILLIAMS: I can hear you with the feedback,
19            but when you cut off the feedback I can't hear you.
20                 MR. DAN DAVIS: Somebody has joined with audio
21            that needs to mute.
22                 MR. JOHNSTON: Probably, let's see --
23                 MR. DAN DAVIS: Because as soon as I un-mute
24            ours, then that's when we get the feedback.
25                    (OFF THE RECORD TO FIX AUDIO)
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 1                        (BACK ON THE RECORD)
 2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: All right.  We'll try this
 3            again.
 4                 So, Mary Claire, in -- we could do it next week
 5            on Tuesday.  Or the following week, on the 27th, I'm
 6            already committed to present at the AAEA conference,
 7            and I know several of our other presenters, panel
 8            members, will be there as well.  So are you thinking
 9            next week would be our best time?
10                 MS. HYATT: I think next week is fine.  If
11            that's what the Panel wants to do, that's totally
12            fine.
13                 DR. WILLIAMS: Excuse me.  A quick question -- I
14            have no idea what you're talking about.
15                 MS. HYATT: Oh.
16                 DR. WILLIAMS: We could not hear you up until
17            this moment.
18                 MS. HYATT: Sorry, Dr. Williams.
19                 So there are several outstanding digital
20            learning applications that need to be heard by the
21            Panel.  If we wait until August to hear them, the
22            State Board won't approve them until September, which
23            is after school has already started.  So there is a
24            need to have a quick, hopefully, special board
25            meeting for purposes of hearing digital learning
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 1            applications only.  And we can do that via Zoom,
 2            since hopefully there will just be a few of them and
 3            we can do it very quickly.  And I think we're looking
 4            at next week?
 5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Next Tuesday is the 20th.


 6                 MS. HYATT: Okay.  Does that work for the panel
 7            members?
 8                 DR. WILLIAMS: What time are we looking at?  I
 9            have a conflict from 9:00 to 10:00, but can probably
10            make an adjustment if needed.
11                 MS. HYATT: We could do 10:30, if that works.
12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Yeah.  We could do 10:30 or


13            we could do that afternoon, if Representative Hodges
14            could join us.  I don't know if he's available.
15                 DR. WILLIAMS: Uh-huh.
16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Afternoon?
17                 MS. HYATT: Afternoon?
18                 DR. WILLIAMS: Yeah, 10:30 would definitely work


19            for me or the afternoon would work.
20                 MS. HYATT: Okay.  We will get it scheduled for
21            the afternoon, if that is all right with the Chair.
22                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Excellent.  Thank you.
23                 MS. HYATT: Absolutely.
24  PROCEDURES
25                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: While you're here, anything
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 1            that you need to overview, any procedures before we
 2            get started?
 3                 MS. HYATT: So the only actual amendment
 4            request, besides digital learning plans, that is on
 5            the agenda today is Friendship's expansion request
 6            that you all heard last month.  So because they've
 7            already presented and had their full hearing, and the
 8            only reason they were removed is just so we could
 9            make sure that Pine Bluff got proper notice.  There
10            won't be a need to have an entire new hearing; just
11            ask any remaining questions, if you have them.  If
12            you do have questions, it would be best to swear in
13            the person who's going to respond to the questions.
14            But otherwise, they don't need another full hearing.
15            On the digital learning applications, we haven't been
16            doing full hearings because we're trying to do it in
17            an expedited way.  If you've got questions, you can
18            just ask them of the representative that's here.
19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: And then Cabot we'll need to


20            swear in and --
21                 MS. HYATT: Yes.
22                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: But we could do a modified


23            hearing for them as well?
24                 MS. HYATT: Absolutely.  I do think they have a
25            presentation, so you'll want to give them -- they'll
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 1            have up to 20 minutes to give their presentation.
 2            But of course we've been doing it kind of on an
 3            expedited timeline for efficiency.
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: All right.  Everyone good?


 5                 All right.
 6  I.  CONSIDERATION OF CHARTER DIGITAL LEARNING PROGRAMS AND


 7  CHARTER AMENDMENTS
 8       1.  CABOT ACADEMIC CENTER FOR EXCELLENCE (ACE)


 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Then, Mr. Johnston, if you'll


10            introduce our first item please.
11                 MR. JOHNSTON: Tim Johnston, DESE Charter Unit.


12                 The first item on the agenda is Consideration of
13            a Digital Learning Plan and Charter Amendment for
14            Cabot Academic Center of Excellence.  Their digital
15            learning plan, when it was submitted, also included
16            an amendment to their charter.  So that's why it's
17            broken into two parts, but this is one agenda item.
18                 So the Cabot Academic Center of Excellence has
19            submitted an amendment for a Digital Learning Program
20            in grades 7-12.  The school will offer asynchronous
21            and synchronous instruction with virtual and blended
22            options through the use of an approved digital
23            provider.  The application has been reviewed by the
24            DESE team.
25                 And as far as the amendment, they are requesting
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 1            an amendment to relocate the existing campus and
 2            increase the enrollment cap to 2500 students.
 3                 And there is representation here from Cabot.
 4                 Mr. Aaron, do you want to approach?
 5                 MR. RANDOLPH: Thank you, Mr. Johnston.
 6                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Good morning.  If you will


 7            raise your right hand -- do you swear or affirm that
 8            the testimony you're about to give shall be the
 9            truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?
10                 MR. RANDOLPH: Yes.
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: All right.  And if you'll
12            introduce yourself, you may begin.
13                 MR. RANDOLPH: Thank you, Ms. Coffman.
14                 Aaron Randolph, the Executive Director for
15            Curriculum and Instruction in the Cabot School
16            District.
17                 MR. DAN DAVIS: I need permission to share your
18            screen.
19                 MR. RANDOLPH: And I appreciate you all giving
20            me the opportunity to represent the district today
21            and speak about kind of our desire to grow our
22            conversion charter school to offer a good digital
23            option for students in our district, some things
24            we've learned over the past year with Covid digital
25            learning, and kind of, in all honesty, some things
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 1            that we'd like to get in place for this school year.
 2            Our charter renewal comes up this fall, as a matter
 3            of fact; we'll be back in front of this panel I think
 4            in December.  And so there's just some things that we
 5            want to put in place to really get in the right
 6            position to have a rebranding of sorts next year.
 7            And we can talk more about that later on.
 8                 All right.  Do I need to press the slides or how
 9            would I --
10                 MR. DAN DAVIS: Yes, sir.  Go ahead and you
11            should be good to go.
12                 MR. RANDOLPH: Okay.  Thank you.
13                 And so, again, I appreciate you all for giving
14            me this opportunity.
15                 I did want to share with you-all the mission
16            statement for ACE.  We have had a conversion charter
17            school in Cabot School District going on 17 years
18            now.  And the mission statement has been changed a
19            little bit but still remains consistent in that we
20            want to promote high quality, rigid -- rigorous,
21            excuse me, academic achievement through the
22            development of individual student strengths, talents,
23            and interests, with an emphasis on mastery learning,
24            self-discipline, social/emotional development, and
25            parental involvement.  And I will tell you ACE as a
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 1            charter school was founded with the idea that we have
 2            some students that don't necessarily excel in a
 3            regular environment and we wanted to give them
 4            another place, another spot.  And ACE as a whole is
 5            set up as a hybrid learning opportunity for students
 6            in 5-12.  We do have an ALE component, so we do have
 7            some at-risk students that we cater to specifically.
 8            But every student that comes through ACE, unless they
 9            are already placed in that ALE environment for one
10            reason or another, we require them to be on campus
11            for a minimum of nine hours a week, and we are pretty
12            flexible with them within that schedule and
13            everything else.  But one thing that we have learned
14            this year is that digital is a little different and
15            so we wanted to add something to that.
16                 I did want to share with you-all just our
17            enrollment numbers from last year.  So you can see
18            there we had ACE and ALE, those were on one campus,
19            and ACE North was another campus located in our high
20            school -- and I'll talk more specifically about them.
21            But as you can see, in 5th through 12th grade we had
22            just about 330 students last year enrolled in our ACE
23            program and that is well below that 500 cap.  And I
24            talked earlier about -- or mentioned earlier about
25            rebranding.  Our desire is to see more and more
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 1            students take advantage of this because we know that
 2            there are more students that have specific needs that
 3            can be addressed through an alternative setting.  But
 4            one of the things that we need to look at is kind of
 5            how things are set up now and logistically what we're
 6            doing with our students.
 7                 So the amendment request today, number one was
 8            the digital learning plans of the charter -- and I'll
 9            talk more about that; adjust the enrollment cap from
10            500 up to 2500; and then also switching of campuses
11            between ACE North and our ALE setting.
12                 So the digital learning plan -- and I know you-
13            all have reviewed the plan, DESE has.  Please
14            interrupt me at any point for questions.  I just
15            wanted to give you as much background information as
16            I could.  But as Mr. Johnston said, we will have
17            asynchronous and synchronous instruction.  We will be
18            utilizing Edmentum, which is an approved provider of
19            content.  We will also be using Google Classroom as
20            our learning management system.  In the past we have
21            used APEX as our provider at ACE.  And so moving to
22            Edmentum we did a really thorough review over the
23            past year-and-a-half of the curriculum options that
24            are out there, and, thankfully, Edmentum is one of
25            those approved digital providers.  And also we felt
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 1            like from the support pieces in the individualized
 2            instruction it was in a much better spot for our
 3            students than the APEX program was.  We also have
 4            staff that are going to have time dedicated in their
 5            day specifically to digital instruction.
 6                 One thing we learned this year is that we
 7            actually -- we came before the Committee last summer
 8            -- I think a lot of the people did, as we were
 9            struggling to figure out what we were going to do to
10            open up with Covid.  And I was able, Dr. Thurman and
11            I, to speak virtually with this panel, and at that
12            time we wanted to have our secondary digital be under
13            the ACE umbrella.  And then we just recognized, with
14            the help of Mrs. Coffman, that there were a lot of
15            other moving pieces to that.  And so we moved our
16            digital back to all campuses, and so we had digital
17            students and staff spread out amongst 17 campuses
18            across our district.  And one of the things that we
19            learned through that was it is incredibly difficult
20            to juggle the demands of handling digital students,
21            instructors that are doing both onsite and digital or
22            some just purely digital, and then also to maintain
23            some consistency in what the instruction looked like
24            in one place over another.  And so we really felt
25            like pulling this all together at ACE under one
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 1            umbrella and one roof was going to be best serving
 2            our students in making sure that those staff members
 3            that want to teach digitally, that want to work with
 4            virtual students, let's give them a spot and give
 5            them specific training and skills they need to excel.
 6                 One thing that you will notice is that we also
 7            will provide onsite intervention.  Friday is actually
 8            going to be set up purely as an intervention day for
 9            students that want to come onsite and want to receive
10            some specific instruction, if they so desire, and
11            assessment, of course.  We found out that -- this
12            year that students will come on campus for
13            assessments, for standardized tests, both for our
14            formative assessments and NWEA MAP, and also ACT
15            Aspire and Alpha.  We had students on campus.  And so
16            we're going to do the same thing and have the
17            facility that we can do that at ACE.
18                 We will also provide for students with
19            exceptionalities, be it our ALES, be it our gifted
20            students, students on an IEP or 504, and we will have
21            staff members that are certified and trained in that
22            that can work with those students.  And one key thing
23            to this is that this DLP will be separate from the
24            ALE component of ACE.  And so we have an interview
25            process, we have an application process for these
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 1            students to insure that they are prepared to step
 2            into digital learning.  And those students are not
 3            going to be identified as ALE students, and so
 4            therefore would not count towards that number.
 5                 And I know, Mrs. Coffman, we can talk a little
 6            bit about it now, if you want to, just what that
 7            looks like for our campus or for our ALE?
 8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Yes.  So we have had quite a


 9            bit of conversation about this, trying to decide
10            what's the best thing for the students and the school
11            district along the way.  And we do have our ALE
12            representatives, I believe, online with us.
13                 MR. RANDOLPH: Okay.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: So they can jump in there.


15            Jared and C.W. are both on there, I believe.
16                 But, so the way I'm reading this and
17            understanding, just for clarification, this will be
18            the only digital learning opportunity for students?
19                 MR. RANDOLPH: Yes, ma'am.
20                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: They will need to enroll into


21            ACE to be a part of that; so it won't be happening
22            out in all of the other campuses?
23                 MR. RANDOLPH: That is correct.
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: And then by not having those


25            students identified as ALE, I think that's going to
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 1            solve most of the questions of the ALE team.  But
 2            let's jump to them real quick.
 3                 C.W. and Jared, do you have any questions or
 4            concerns that you want to bring up?
 5                 MR. GARDENHIRE: No.  My suggestion was going to


 6            be that they separate out the ALE from the ACE
 7            component and -- because it wasn't clear in what I
 8            was reading in the plan that was what was going to
 9            happen.
10                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Right.
11                 MR. GARDENHIRE: So that kind of took some of my


12            anxiety away.  So there will be pieces that we'll
13            need to look at on -- from the ALE component aspect,
14            being on the main campus, but we can deal with those
15            later.
16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: So tell me, maybe to help


17            explain that a little bit more, why are we keeping
18            and what's the long-term plan for -- I would assume
19            that the reason you're keeping ALE and the digital
20            learning together under one LEA number is we don't
21            know -- we don't know what the future of digital
22            learning is.  It could be huge numbers, it could be
23            small numbers; it could at some point level out and
24            have a reasonable number.  Kind of talk us through
25            what your thought process is about having a separate


Page 18


 1            ALE, a separate LEA, or -- and right now for the
 2            Panel to understand also ACE is exempt from a letter
 3            grade because they are an ALE, classified as an ALE.
 4            So kind of talk the Panel through that.
 5                 MR. RANDOLPH: Sure.  And I will tell you, if I
 6            can -- there we go -- one of the things that we'd
 7            looked at, why we wanted to have it under the charter
 8            umbrella truthfully was the flexibility that already
 9            exists within the charter.  Staff are trained in
10            working with at-risk students, but also students that
11            may not fit the standard mold of a K-12 student.  So
12            we felt like it was a little bit better fit there.
13                 In terms of seeking a separate LEA, you're
14            exactly right; we don't know what the future of
15            digital learning is.  And I can say, you know, at the
16            height this year we had over 1500 students K-12
17            enrolled in virtual instruction.  And so when we
18            first put this application together, you know, for us
19            2500 was a very -- we felt like a very reasonable
20            number that could be achieved.  But as you can see,
21            we had just over 100 applicants when it came down to
22            it and we had our open enrollment period for digital.
23            And at that time there really was not a huge push;
24            students wanted to get back on campus, parents wanted
25            students back on campus.  Now seeing as how Covid
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 1            numbers have increased over the past few weeks that
 2            may change, that may adjust, but that's where that
 3            number came from was us looking there.  But long-term
 4            I think that we can talk more about that and you'll
 5            hear more about that later this fall when we come
 6            back for our renewal.  But we still feel that digital
 7            learning is not set up for a standard K-12 student;
 8            for someone that is ready to walk in the door and
 9            thrive in the school setting that may not be ideal.
10            And so it just kind of went hand-in-hand with us for
11            those students and for that program that they would,
12            you know, put together, and that's where -- did that
13            answer the question, Ms. Coffman?
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Talk a little bit about, is
15            there going to be -- you've got 101 applications
16            right now.  Talk to us a little bit about what's the
17            flow; will students be able to move in and out, back
18            to onsite, move into virtual learning?
19                 MR. RANDOLPH: Sure.  So another highlight for
20            us of having the digital in with -- under the ACE
21            charter was that the transition, truthfully, if a
22            student did want to come back on campus, is that our
23            goal would be to move them at ACE where we have a
24            hybrid setting.  So it's not necessarily 8:00 to
25            3:30, five days a week, but they have sort of a
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 1            hybrid environment; they can come back nine hours, 12
 2            hours, 15 hours that we can transition them.  And if
 3            they do decide and we decide collectively that it's
 4            best that they be back onsite full-time, then we have
 5            a process currently that students come to ACE or may
 6            go back to a traditional campus, and there's an
 7            application and a transition period that we use.  And
 8            we're comfortable in working -- various
 9            administrations work with our ACE staff.  And Mrs.
10            Jones, who's our assistant principal, and Mrs. Lair,
11            Carrie Lair, wanted to be here today but they're
12            actually at the ALE conference, and so they're
13            working there.  But they have a really strong
14            relationship and communication with the counselors
15            and administration at our other campuses.  And so
16            that's where we would see that being able to thrive
17            there.  I will say we will probably end up opening up
18            applications for online again at some point.  But
19            really from a staffing standpoint we set a six-week
20            window at the end of the spring and early summer, and
21            we really wanted to hold to that, but I do anticipate
22            that students can apply to be in ACE at any point
23            during the year and we would probably have that same
24            conversation.  And right now, what we've told
25            families that want to apply is apply to ACE, be a
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 1            part of that team, be a part of that program.  And if
 2            we feel like we need to make that move and it's good
 3            for -- you know, best for you, then we can make that
 4            move.
 5                 So that would be -- but again, ACE, we kind of
 6            do that transition point for our students to make it
 7            a little bit easier.  Because that was one of the
 8            other issues that emerged last year was students
 9            going onsite and digital, you know, in the midst of a
10            year.  And as many times as we tried to hold firm on
11            things, life happens and you've got to make
12            exceptions.  And so it did create some problems for
13            our staff during the school year.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Talk to us just a little bit
15            more about relocating the campuses --
16                 MR. RANDOLPH: Yes, ma'am.
17                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: -- and your enrollment cap


18            request.
19                 MR. RANDOLPH: Perfect.  So the enrollment cap
20            increase again just right now is that we are at 500.
21            And anticipating that we would have much more digital
22            requests than we did, we wanted to raise that cap to
23            a 2,000 more student threshold.  We didn't hit that
24            number with applications.  But I will also say,
25            mentioning what I did earlier about the rebranding
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 1            that we hope to bring up in the fall to this Panel,
 2            we anticipate having much more involvement in ACE.
 3            We want to grow that program, and so this 500 to 2500
 4            cap just gives us that flexibility to do so.  We --
 5            you know, we have a lot of students that we think are
 6            looking for something different, and especially as we
 7            start looking at what students are pursuing via
 8            homeschool and other routes.  We want to be able to
 9            offer something in the district that would be
10            different than what's going on on the regular campus.
11            So that's where we came up with that 2500 student
12            mark.
13                 In terms of the location shift, so we have two
14            current locations.  The location that is on your left
15            would be our current Academic Center of Excellence,
16            as you can see there, and about half the building is
17            set up -- you can see the ALE for our students that
18            are in that ALE setting on the left-hand side.  And
19            our desire is that we will actually take that ALE
20            side that's currently there, which is an open
21            classroom environment, has cubicles of sorts where
22            students are working virtually, being supported --
23            or, sorry -- working digitally and being supported by
24            onsite staff, is that we would take those students
25            and move them over to the campus on the right, which
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 1            is currently housing our ACE North campus and that --
 2            you saw there's about 80 some-odd students that they
 3            take classes via APEX, their core courses, and we --
 4            I'll talk a little bit more about that information.
 5            And then, our onsite at the high school, freshmen
 6            academy, or one of our junior highs for some of their
 7            other electives.  It's sort of an in-between; they're
 8            both getting virtual small group instruction with
 9            someone under our ACE staff, but they're also going
10            on campus.  So our desire is that we would move those
11            students from that campus and move them over to ACE.
12            And then that ALE -- and I've got some blueprints on,
13            like I said, what we're planning on doing with that
14            structure to make it a little bit more suitable for
15            an ALE setting, a little bit more wide-open with some
16            small classroom spaces.  And then that half that was
17            the ALE will actually be opened up to our digital
18            setting.  So again right now you can see there half
19            the building for hybrid, half the building for
20            fulltime ALE.  ACE North is a transition location; it
21            was originally started and we came before the
22            committee I think about six years ago, seven years
23            ago -- came before this panel and wanted to have sort
24            of a transition place where students could have both
25            an ACE life environment but also be able to take some
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 1            courses and programs on campus.  But this is not a
 2            hybrid setting at ACE North.  And so our desire then
 3            is to move those ACE North students and program back
 4            over to the ACE and what we're calling our Cabot
 5            Panther Digital Academy on that campus.  And then our
 6            ALE, our 5-12, will be located on the high school
 7            campus.  And regular ALE staff will be there on the
 8            CHS campus, but we'll also have 5-12 staff members
 9            who can push in there periodically, depending on what
10            the specific needs are of students, where there's a
11            desire, if there's something else that they need;
12            it's just a lot more centralized for us.  It's also
13            directly across the road from Central Office, and so
14            it's a little bit better proximity for us in case
15            issues arise.
16                 The CPDA side, one other thing that I do want to
17            point out is we will actually offer transportation.
18            That is one thing that we've offered in the morning
19            and afternoon for our ACE students.  Again, it's a
20            hybrid setting, not set up for an 8:00 to 3:30.  But
21            knowing we have students that have been on campus
22            five days a week with that ACE North we want to still
23            offer them that same environment.  So we're actually
24            offering transportation to all our other campuses.
25            Every period there will be buses running between ACE
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 1            and those other campuses.  So they can still take
 2            courses at ACE, still have that small group
 3            environment, but if they want to go take -- you know,
 4            if they want to go and be involved in -- you know, we
 5            have a wonderful Case agri program.  So if they want
 6            to take some of our CTE courses on campus, then
 7            they've got the opportunity to take the bus to do
 8            that.  And that's where our proposed shift in the
 9            locations is going to be.
10                 And then here is just a blueprint that we have,
11            working with the architecture firm, on what the ALE
12            campus will look like.  And so you can see there on
13            the left-hand side there's two large classrooms.
14            Across the hallway, that larger classroom above -- as
15            you can see, a wide open workspace with some desks --
16            that will actually be set up for I think 9-12, is the
17            way I had it drawn up.  And then that smaller campus,
18            because of our numbers, would be set up for 5-9
19            students or 5-8, just depending upon the class
20            numbers and the, you know, number of students that
21            are going to have ALE at that time.
22                 Oops, sorry.  Did I go too quickly?
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: How many students are
24            typically in your ALE program at a time?  I mean, I
25            know they come in and --
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 1                 MR. RANDOLPH: Sure.  I think the biggest that
 2            we've had in recent memory is about 42, 43 students
 3            at one time in that fulltime ALE setting.  So, fairly
 4            low.
 5                 And then again just some key things that I
 6            brought up earlier about the DLP for ACE flexibility
 7            offered in the charter, the current minimum of nine
 8            hours and direct instruction, it's just a little bit
 9            easier from a hybrid to a fully digital, or vice-
10            versa, and then we can have that transition for our
11            staff.  But also one of the things that we are
12            working with our digital students on is -- so we're
13            going to offer as much as we can either through
14            Edmentum or through ARVA for those courses that can't
15            be used in Edmentum.  We are also doing Teacher in a
16            Box for some courses.  Edmentum, for example, offers
17            a hospitality course and they have a fulltime teacher
18            that teaches this course, and we don't have that; we
19            don't offer that in our CTE program.  And so we felt
20            like there was some opportunity for some courses in
21            Edmentum.  But we also -- all those digital students
22            will have the opportunity, along with all of our
23            students at ACE -- any elective they want to take on
24            campus they can do so and we'll work with their
25            schedule and even potentially transportation to do
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 1            so.  But this just gives us a little bit more
 2            flexibility.
 3                 And I will tell you again, from the stress level
 4            and the logistics nightmare that it was this year
 5            trying to make digital work at all our secondary
 6            campuses, having students both onsite and digital in
 7            one classroom, having teachers that were going from
 8            one spot to another, trying to control the transition
 9            of onsite and digital, we just felt like having it
10            housed under our charter umbrella was going to make
11            things smoother and take that stress off of our
12            secondary campuses, because, you know, our high
13            school has 2300 and some-odd students on campus.  And
14            so if we can remove that stressor from them it would
15            be a lot easier in the long-term and more beneficial
16            to our students, truthfully.
17                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: And then, Aaron, you and I


18            talked about -- but I think it's important that we
19            put that on the record and talk out-loud about we're
20            going to need to watch the numbers, watch the ratios
21            between --
22                 MR. RANDOLPH: Absolutely.
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: -- ALE and digital learning


24            students and make a determination of -- at some point
25            if those are out of balance, that the district would
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 1            be removed from the letter grade exemption.
 2                 MR. RANDOLPH: Yes, ma'am.  Yes.  And so
 3            currently because of the ALE status under our -- with
 4            our charter we don't get a letter grade.  We still
 5            are accountable, absolutely, for our students, for
 6            our scores, but we don't get that A through F rating
 7            the way it's set up.  Increasing the enrollment cap
 8            is going to bring more students into the program.
 9            And so what Mrs. Coffman and I talked about was that
10            we recognize that -- so again I brought up the
11            numbers, 330 students currently enrolled in ACE.  If
12            we hit 320 -- honestly, with 300 digital students we
13            need to start having a conversation about, okay, do
14            we still qualify for that A through F exemption.  And
15            I think the rationale would be if we get more digital
16            students than we have ALE students, then that answer
17            would be no, and we would just make sure that we have
18            that in writing and figure out what's the cleanest
19            way to make that work.  But talking with our
20            stakeholders, they understand that.  I had the
21            conversation with our superintendent; our school
22            board is aware.  But we understand that that may be
23            where we end up.
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: So just for clarity for our


25            panel members and for our viewing audience, they
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 1            certainly are held accountable and those students'
 2            scores roll back into the high school.
 3                 MR. RANDOLPH: Correct.
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: So they -- every student does


 5            count --
 6                 MR. RANDOLPH: Correct.
 7                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: -- in our accountability
 8            system, but this school's LEA number is not assigned
 9            a letter grade.
10                 MR. RANDOLPH: Correct.
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: The data are rolled back.
12            And so if you're looking on our typical
13            accountability-at-a-glance, sometimes you'll see
14            where the score at the top for that school doesn't
15            match the big box where it talks about the ESSA
16            Index.  So sometimes you'll see school districts or
17            schools like ACE where the numbers are not exactly
18            the same, and that's because their data rolled back
19            into the high school --
20                 MR. RANDOLPH: Correct.
21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: -- where the students are.


22                 MR. RANDOLPH: And we spent I don't know how
23            many hours in early fall --
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Explaining that.
25                 MR. RANDOLPH: -- recoding -- well, recoding
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 1            those students too --
 2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Yeah.
 3                 MR. RANDOLPH: -- to make sure they carry back
 4            over to their home campuses.  And so we've done it
 5            for 17 years and we'll keep doing it.
 6                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: All right.  Thank you.
 7                 MR. RANDOLPH: Yes, ma'am.
 8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Questions?
 9                 Ms. Wright-McMurray.
10                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: Thank you for sharing and


11            presenting.  That was helpful to better understand
12            what you guys have as a plan.
13                 The only main question that I have -- and it's
14            just to try to get a little bit more detail and get a
15            better understanding of the Fridays.  So under your
16            intervention plan you have CTE and then electives set
17            aside for Fridays, but then also will -- it looks
18            like that you say that that's also a day to where
19            just in general if there are things the students need
20            to work on.  So how is that -- or just kind of give
21            me a little bit more detail how that's going to be
22            balanced, if a student is coming in for CTE work but
23            then they have all these other things they're going
24            to need to do as well.  How is that going to be
25            balanced --
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 1                 MR. RANDOLPH: Certainly.
 2                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: -- to make sure CTE is not


 3            kind of pushed to the side?
 4                 MR. RANDOLPH: Absolutely.    And so we
 5            understand that we will have students that are taking
 6            classes five days a week.  So again I mentioned if
 7            they're enrolled in one of our Case courses, they're
 8            going on campus for that.  And so on our Fridays set
 9            aside for intervention we've got a pretty good
10            schedule lined up.  And actually our assistant
11            principal is -- has a pretty good intervention
12            already for all ACE students, including digital,
13            right now, 8:00 to 3:30, utilizing teacher planning
14            periods and everything else.  But on that Friday we
15            know that there's going to be students that aren't
16            going to be able to be pulled for intervention in
17            that block of time because they're going to have
18            those courses.  And so we will work with those kids
19            to make sure that they still have scheduled
20            intervention time even within that schedule and that
21            CTE is also set aside.  We have a staff member on
22            campus right now, Mrs. Beverly Williams; she works
23            with our CTE students and she's our JAGG sponsor for
24            that campus.  And so she would also have that
25            ability; that would be her supervision time, so she
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 1            could go out and see students on campus if they
 2            weren't set up for intervention too.  Yes, ma'am.
 3                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: Thanks.  And so -- sorry,


 4            just one more question.
 5                 So I'm glad you mentioned JAGG because that was
 6            my question.  So the students that are doing the
 7            virtual digital piece, do they also still have access
 8            to --
 9                 MR. RANDOLPH: Absolutely.
10                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: -- JAGG and a JAGG


11            specialist --
12                 MR. RANDOLPH: Absolutely.
13                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: -- and all the resources


14            that --
15                 MR. RANDOLPH: Yeah.
16                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: Okay.
17                 MR. RANDOLPH: Yeah, we are not precluding
18            students that are digital or hybrid to have the
19            opportunity to sign up for any other courses that
20            anyone else on our campus would.
21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Ms. Saracini, any questions?


22                 MS. SARACINI: Clarify one time for me, this is
23            7-12; correct?
24                 MR. RANDOLPH: Correct.
25                 MS. SARACINI: And it's separated from the ALE
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 1            that's --
 2                 MR. RANDOLPH: Correct.
 3                 MS. SARACINI: -- 5-12; correct?  Okay.  I just
 4            wanted to make sure --
 5                 MR. RANDOLPH: Yeah.
 6                 MS. SARACINI: -- that that was my
 7            understanding.
 8                 MR. RANDOLPH: We have grand visions of doing K-


 9            12, and then I shared the numbers with you.  When we
10            had 24 students K-6, it was very hard for our school
11            board to justify, you know, making that a viable
12            option for our students.  Yes, ma'am.
13                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Dr. Williams, do you have


14            questions?
15                 DR. WILLIAMS: Yes.  What is your K-12
16            enrollment?
17                 MR. RANDOLPH: Total K-12 enrollment, we're at
18            about 12,400 at the moment, give or take.
19                 DR. WILLIAMS: Okay.  Thank you.  I was just
20            looking to see what the 2500, what the percentage of
21            that would be.  This seems reasonable.  Thank you.
22                 MR. RANDOLPH: Yes, sir.  Thank you.
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Mr. Baldwin?
24                 MR. BALDWIN: I saw in your Student Support
25            section that you-all are planning to review grades
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 1            weekly.  And you have a Level 1 and a Level 2 for
 2            kids that are struggling, I guess to get extra
 3            support.  Talk to me and explain to me a little bit
 4            more about the weekly review.  Is that just the
 5            teacher reviewing with the student or is that -- tell
 6            me how that works.
 7                 MR. RANDOLPH: Sure.  So the weekly review,
 8            there will be time for students and teachers to have
 9            that interaction.  We also will have, you know, an SS
10            team, a student support team, RTI -- I can't recall
11            exactly what this campus -- their verbiage they're
12            using.  But they're going to have those weekly talks
13            about students as well to determine -- because, you
14            know, we may have one student that -- or a student
15            that has a math teacher, but it's important that that
16            math teacher know how that student is doing in
17            English and doing in social studies and so-on and so-
18            forth.  So they're going to be part of those weekly
19            conversations.  And then whoever the home teacher is
20            or advisor, they'll be the ones to work with their
21            students on that.
22                 MR. BALDWIN: Thank you.
23                 MR. RANDOLPH: Yes, sir.
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Dr. Flowers?
25                 DR. FLOWERS: My question is similar in regards
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 1            to Level 1 intervention.  When you talk about under
 2            Student Supports the students who did not excel at
 3            digital, how to maybe best -- so do you utilize the
 4            same monitor academic policy as well for them?
 5                 MR. RANDOLPH: Yes.
 6                 DR. FLOWERS: Okay.
 7                 MR. RANDOLPH: Yes, sir.  I mean that was one of
 8            the things that I think was so difficult for us with
 9            digital learning, especially during -- can I say
10            during the pandemic or are we out?  I can't remember.
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: (Shaking head from side to


12            side)
13                 MR. RANDOLPH: But, yeah, we're in.  Okay.
14                 But especially with last year that was difficult
15            for us was that we -- it was very -- it was very hard
16            for us to be able to tell families that this isn't
17            working.  You know, we did home visits, we did
18            everything we could, myself included, Central Office
19            staff going out to work with families.  And so what
20            we want to do is to keep such a close hand on those
21            students because we don't have, you know, physical
22            interaction with them.  So they're going to get the
23            same support and we're going to have that constant
24            communication.  And where -- again, ACE works a
25            little bit better in this way because I think they've
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 1            been interviewing and interviews usually take
 2            anywhere from 30 minutes to an hour-and-a-half with
 3            students to determine, you know, what's the best
 4            setting for them to go in this route, make sure that
 5            that support is there.
 6                 DR. FLOWERS: Thank you.
 7                 MR. RANDOLPH: You bet.
 8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: All right.  Any additional


 9            questions?
10                 Then I think we're ready for a motion.
11                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: I move approval.
12                 MS. SARACINI: Second.
13                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: So a motion by Ms. Wright-


14            McMurray and a second by Ms. Saracini to approve the
15            application as presented.
16                 Any discussion?
17                 All those in favor?
18                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Any opposed?
20                 All right, Panel Members, if you'll go to your
21            voting sheets and enter information.
22                 And while they're doing that, I will just say
23            that, as always, we're always impressed with the work
24            that's going on there.  And I'm really excited about
25            having this conversation in the fall about what we're
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 1            seeing at the beginning of the school year and
 2            knowing kind of what the adjustments may need to be
 3            and what your future plans are and what data we're
 4            going to need to collect to --
 5                 MR. RANDOLPH: Absolutely.
 6                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: -- know the most important


 7            information.  So I look forward to that presentation
 8            as well.
 9                 MR. RANDOLPH: Well, Ms. Coffman and Panel, I
10            appreciate the time and appreciate your support.
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: All right.
12                 So, Panel Members, as soon as you finish your
13            voting sheets, if you'd like to go ahead and record
14            your justification.
15                 And then, Ms. Wright-McMurray, if you're ready,
16            do you want to share yours with Mr. Randolph?
17                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: I wrote the district has a


18            well thought-out plan to implement digital learning
19            in the district and expand to meet the needs of their
20            students.
21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Dr. Flowers.
22                 DR. FLOWERS: Approved.  I look forward to
23            hearing more about how the students are supported
24            utilizing this plan.
25                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Go ahead, Mr. Baldwin.
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 1                 MR. BALDWIN: Thank you.  I voted for the
 2            application.  It was a good presentation.  I think it
 3            will work well for students.
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Ms. Saracini.
 5                 MS. SARACINI: I support the Cabot Academic
 6            Center for Excellence amendment because it's a well
 7            thought-out plan.
 8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Dr. Williams.
 9                 DR. WILLIAMS: We're off mute here.
10                 Yes, I support the motion.  This would provide
11            both students and parents additional educational
12            opportunities during this hopefully post-pandemic
13            time.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Well, congratulations, Mr.


15            Randolph.  And we look forward to hearing good
16            information and sharing data with you in the fall.
17            Thank you.
18  II.  CONSIDERATION OF CHARTER AMENDMENT
19       a)  FRIENDSHIP ASPIRE ACADEMY PINE BLUFF
20                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Mr. Johnston, item number 2


21            please.
22                 MR. JOHNSTON: Yes, ma'am.  Tim Johnston, DESE


23            Charter Unit.
24                 As Ms. Hyatt already said, this presentation was
25            presented last month.  But Friendship Aspire Academy
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 1            Pine Bluff is requesting an amendment to add an
 2            additional campus, increase the enrollment cap, and
 3            add additional waivers.  The charter was originally
 4            granted in 2017 and serves students in grades K-3
 5            with an enrollment cap of 240.  The charter has been
 6            approved to expand to grade 6 and increase the
 7            enrollment cap to -- that should actually be 480, and
 8            I will get the minutes corrected; I just caught that
 9            mistake.
10                 (COURT REPORTERS NOTE: Ms. Saracini exited the


11            meeting.)
12                 MR. JOHNSTON: So they've already been approved
13            to increase their enrollment cap to 480 by 2023-2024
14            school year.
15                 And Phong Tran, Superintendent, and Virginia
16            Perry Henry, Deputy Superintendent, are both here in
17            person, if you have any questions.
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Thank you.
19                 Good morning.
20                 SUPT. TRAN: Good morning.  How are you?
21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: If you'll raise your right
22            hand --
23                 SUPT. TRAN: Yes, ma'am.
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Do you swear to -- or affirm


25            that the testimony you're about to give shall be the
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 1            truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?
 2                 SUPT. TRAN: Yes, ma'am.
 3                 MS. HENRY: I do.
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Thank you.
 5                 And if you'll state your name and just kind of
 6            pick up where we left off and --
 7                 SUPT. TRAN: Sure.  I'm Tran, Phong Tran,
 8            Superintendent.
 9                 MS. HENRY: Virginia Perry Henry, Deputy
10            Superintendent.
11                 SUPT. TRAN: And we have Mr. Dukes, he's our
12            principal at the Pine Bluff campus, that's here as
13            well just in case you have any questions.  But also
14            we have Mr. William Fells from the mayor's office,
15            from Pine Bluff, who's also online if you have any
16            other questions for them.  And Ms. Kincyl Kelly, our
17            special education director.  So, yes.
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Okay.
19                 MS. HENRY: So we don't have another
20            presentation.  We just wanted to pick up where we
21            left off last time.  So we're here before you today
22            asking for permission to add a campus on Main Street
23            in downtown Pine Bluff and to increase the enrollment
24            cap from 480 to 880.
25                 SUPT. TRAN: So if you all have any questions
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 1            for us, we're here for that.
 2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: And so, Ms. Hyatt, I'm
 3            assuming that similar waivers that they have in their
 4            other campuses are the waivers that they're
 5            requesting.  Is that correct?  Or are they requesting
 6            any additional?
 7                 MS. HYATT: Mary Claire Hyatt.
 8                 It's the same waivers.  We verified that in
 9            their original application for the campus -- for the
10            addition of the campus.
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Okay.  And then the digital


12            learning plan has already been reviewed by the DESE
13            team and recommended.
14                 So, Dr. Flowers, do you want to start on your
15            side?  Do you have any additional questions?
16                 DR. FLOWERS: Yes.  Will you talk to me a bit
17            about the interest in the new campus in regards to
18            teachers?
19                 MS. HENRY: Certainly.  In regards to teachers?
20                 DR. FLOWERS: Yes, in regards to hiring
21            teachers.
22                 MS. HENRY: Oh.  We will basically do the same
23            thing that we always do and that we've done at --
24            well, for this school year, is actually seek to
25            recruit highly -- Arkansas qualified and certified
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 1            teachers for the new campus.  We advertise on Indeed,
 2            we advertise on SchoolSpring; we have a great
 3            partnership with University of Arkansas at Pine Bluff
 4            and their teaching area.
 5                 SUPT. TRAN: But on top of that, we actually
 6            also have a FIAT [ps] division, which is the
 7            Friendship Institute for the Maxim of Teaching.  What
 8            that does is that -- so what we've been doing this
 9            year is that some of our -- some of the teachers are
10            not certified; right?  So they're highly-qualified
11            but not -- they're not certified.  So what we're
12            doing is that -- providing professional development,
13            getting them through the Praxis test, because a lot
14            of them have passed their course credits but they
15            didn't pass the Praxis exam.  So what we're doing is
16            that -- that's part of Friendship is that we're
17            getting them -- this is afterschool hours; we're
18            tutoring on how to -- you know, how to take the exam,
19            like all those questions, so-on, so-forth, and what
20            is needed to pass the exam so that they can get
21            certified.  So on top of that as well we've been
22            partnering with UAPB to see, you know, what can we do
23            to help out with the incoming students.  So, you
24            know, being that it's Pine Bluff, you know, it's away
25            from Little Rock; you know, that's the teachers that
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 1            we have there.  But we're actually investing a lot in
 2            the teachers and the -- I guess the freshmen and the
 3            graduates that's coming out of UAPB in development to
 4            make sure that they are certified.  So that's what
 5            we're doing there as well.
 6                 DR. FLOWERS: Okay.  Thank you.
 7                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Mr. Baldwin?
 8                 MR. BALDWIN: Yes.  On the building that you
 9            already use, the structure is currently unoccupied.
10            And will you have to do any renovation work or
11            anything to prepare the building?
12                 SUPT. TRAN: So, are you talking about the new
13            campus that we're looking at or are you talking about
14            the existing campus that we have?
15                 MS. HENRY: The new campus.
16                 MR. BALDWIN: The new campus.  So we will be
17            purchasing -- we're in talks, and City of Pine Bluff
18            too, to look at some land down there.  It's on Main
19            Street.  And so we'll be looking at purchasing that
20            plot.  And I think it is to renovate; I could be
21            mistaken.  But it's to renovate that building to
22            house our K-3.
23                 MS. HENRY: So construction will be necessary.
24                 SUPT. TRAN: Yes, sir.
25                 MR. BALDWIN: Okay.
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 1                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: And will you have time to do


 2            that construction before school starts?
 3                 SUPT. TRAN: So it won't be this school year.
 4            It will be done for the next school year.
 5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Okay.
 6                 SUPT. TRAN: So it's the 23-24.  So we'll have a
 7            whole year to go ahead and do the construction and
 8            some renovations.
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: And your charter is set to


10            expire in 2023?
11                 SUPT. TRAN: 23-24, if I'm not mistaken.
12                 MS. HENRY: It's 2023.
13                 SUPT. TRAN: 2023.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: June, yeah.
15                 SUPT. TRAN: Yes.
16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: That's what I've got on my


17            notes.  Okay.
18                 Dr. Williams?
19                 DR. WILLIAMS: Yes, just a quick thought.  I
20            like the idea, one, that this is a year away; two,
21            that you're putting school downtown.  This is more of
22            a comment than anything -- well, a question and a
23            comment.  I remember when KIPP was put downtown in
24            Helena and it really revitalized Main Street by
25            bringing more parents to the area just to pick up and
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 1            drop off kids.
 2                 One, I would encourage you if you hadn't talked
 3            to the Chamber in Pine Bluff to work with them to see
 4            what synergy you can develop by having people --
 5            everybody is working very hard to get people
 6            downtown, and picking up and dropping off kids -- and
 7            Mr. Baldwin was part of that effort at that time.
 8                 So the -- my other question is just, well,
 9            really to that same point, is have you all worked
10            with anyone from the downtown area about putting the
11            school there?
12                 SUPT. TRAN: Yes, Dr. Williams.  And I guess
13            I'll talk.  So we've been working with Mayor
14            Washington, as well as Forward Pine Bluff, and that's
15            why they support us in putting a school downtown.
16            But that school is also good for that -- the area
17            down there as well because, as you know, there's a
18            casino that was built --
19                 DR. WILLIAMS: Yes.
20                 SUPT. TRAN: -- close to that area.  And so
21            that's why we're trying to serve, for those parents
22            that's working at the casinos and those parents that
23            are close to that downtown area there's a school for
24            them to send their child there.
25                 MS. HENRY: And William Fells from the Pine
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 1            Bluff mayor's office is actually on the Zoom today.
 2            So he can also speak, if you'd like to hear something
 3            from him.
 4                 DR. WILLIAMS: Thank you.  I believe it was the
 5            young man -- did he speak last time?
 6                 MS. HENRY: Yes, sir.
 7                 SUPT. TRAN: Yes, that is correct, sir.
 8                 DR. WILLIAMS: Absolutely.  Thank you.
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Ms. Wright-McMurray?
10                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: Hi.  Thank you again for


11            coming back and visiting with us.  I just had a
12            question.  I see you have a waiver for Guidance
13            Counselor or -- so what is your -- what's your plan?
14            How do you implement that in your schools?
15                 MS. HENRY: Although we have a waiver for
16            Guidance Counselor, we have a social worker.
17                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: Okay.
18                 MS. HENRY: So that social worker acts in that
19            capacity, as well as our assistant principal and
20            principal, to fill in that gap.
21                 SUPT. TRAN: Also, so our coaches that we have
22            -- so we have an ELA coach and mathematics coach as
23            well who is also, you know, assistant principal.  But
24            they also act as a guidance counselor.  But we do
25            have a social worker on staff.
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 1                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: So outside of the socio-


 2            emotional needs of the students, so when it comes to
 3            like career exploration, career guidance who on your
 4            campus is responsible for addressing those needs?
 5                 MS. HENRY: The principal.
 6                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: Okay.
 7                 MS. HENRY: And he's here.
 8                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: Okay.
 9                 SUPT. TRAN: And at the moment -- and so because
10            we're a K-3, because the school -- we're a slow-
11            growth model, so we grow a grade every year.  So, you
12            know, being a K-3, I mean he provides great support
13            and career guidance to our kids.  But that's still a
14            long way off, you know what I'm saying.  But, yes, he
15            acts in that capacity.
16                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: Because I know we had some


17            discussion -- sorry -- about --
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Go ahead.
19                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: -- early interventions on


20            career exploration and guidance and things like that.
21                 SUPT. TRAN: Yeah.
22                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: And so even though it is


23            K-3, as early as we can start having those
24            conversations with students we are encouraging that,
25            so when they get to the upper grades it's not such a
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 1            "oh, this is introductory conversation."
 2                 MS. HENRY: He does have those conversations.
 3            And he could probably speak more to it than I can.
 4            But I know that he has groups and organizations that
 5            are focused on career exploration.
 6                 SUPT. TRAN: Yeah.  Do you want Mr. Dukes to
 7            talk?
 8                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: Sure.
 9                 SUPT. TRAN: Mr. Dukes.
10                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: I probably need to swear you


11            in.
12                 MR. DUKES: Okay.
13                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: If you'll raise your right
14            hand -- do you swear or affirm that the testimony
15            you're about to give shall be the truth, the whole
16            truth and nothing but the truth?
17                 MR. DUKES: I do.
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: And state your name, please.


19                 MR. DUKES: Jherrithan Dukes.  I serve as the
20            principal for the Friendship Aspire Academy in Pine
21            Bluff, the elementary school.
22                 To answer your question, Ms. Wright-McMurray, we
23            do spend a lot of time talking about career
24            exploration.  Actually, this year all of our
25            Friendship schools actually adopted a socio-emotional
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 1            curriculum; so that was one of our ways of getting
 2            focused on the socio-emotional needs of all of our
 3            students.  In addition to that, prior to this school
 4            year, this past school year we spent a lot of time
 5            having community meetings, having school-wide
 6            meetings, having small classroom meetings about
 7            career exploration, socio-emotional things that are
 8            going on, training schools for behavior, things that
 9            may come up in the school and stuff like that.  So we
10            do have a social worker, which we're excited about,
11            that's coming in.  But even prior to that, we've
12            already had support in place for all of our students
13            for behavior and things like that.  We do have an
14            assistant principal at our school who does act in
15            that capacity to insure that our students have what
16            they need.  Like she said, it's a shared load with us
17            being a small charter school, but we do have
18            personnel in place already that do provide those
19            supports for all of our students.
20                 Is that it?
21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Thank you.
22                 MR. DUKES: Okay.  Thank you.
23                 MS. HENRY: And at our last meeting we actually
24            rescinded the waiver for the Guidance Counselor
25            because we have a social worker.
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 1                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: Yeah, and that was my


 2            other thing.  That's what I thought, but, you know,
 3            I've slept since then.
 4                 MS. HENRY: You were right.
 5                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: So I thought that you guys


 6            did, but --
 7                 MS. HENRY: We did.
 8                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: -- it was still on there.


 9            Okay.
10                 SUPT. TRAN: Yes, ma'am.
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: All right.  Any additional


12            questions from the Panel?
13                 Then I'll accept a motion.
14                 MR. BALDWIN: I move approval.
15                 DR. FLOWERS: Second.
16                 DR. WILLIAMS: Second.
17                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: So I have a motion from Mr.


18            Baldwin and a second from Dr. Flowers.
19                 Any discussion?
20                 All those in favor?
21                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
22                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Any opposed?
23                 Motion passes.
24                 SUPT. TRAN: Thank you.
25                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: If you'll give us a moment to
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 1            respond.
 2                 SUPT. TRAN: Appreciate you all.  Thank you.
 3                 MS. HENRY: Thank you.
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Thank you.
 5                 And, Panel Members, as soon as you're ready,
 6            just go ahead and share your response.
 7                     (A FEW MOMENTS OF SILENCE)
 8                 DR. WILLIAMS: I'm having trouble accessing my
 9            voting sheet.  I can't get it to move from the
10            previous one on my laptop.  So when I'm ready I could
11            just read it.
12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Go ahead, Dr. Williams.
13                 DR. WILLIAMS: Okay.  I support the motion.
14            Increasing enrollment and adding the downtown site
15            will create opportunities and also create educational
16            opportunities for students and parents, and also meet
17            the needs of industry by parents having a school in
18            the vicinity of new job opportunities.
19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Thank you.
20                 Mr. Baldwin.
21                 MR. BALDWIN: Yes.  I voted for the motion.  I
22            believe that this will strongly support student
23            learning.
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Dr. Flowers.
25                 DR. FLOWERS: I support the expansion of
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 1            Friendship Aspire Academy with the addition of an
 2            additional campus and increased enrollment which will
 3            support students as well as the community.
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: And Ms. Wright-McMurray.


 5                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: I voted for the motion and


 6            I appreciate the work of the Friendship Academy
 7            administrative team and faculty.  The expansion will
 8            add a great resource for students and the community
 9            of Pine Bluff.
10                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: All right.  Well,
11            congratulations --
12                 SUPT. TRAN: Thank you.
13                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: -- to Friendship.
14  III.  CONSIDERATION OF CHARTER AMENDMENTS FOR DIGITAL LEARNING


15  PLANS
16        a)  FRIENDSHIP ASPIRE ACADEMY PINE BLUFF
17                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Mr. Johnston, let's read
18            number 3.
19                 MR. JOHNSTON: Okay.  The next item is
20            Friendship Aspire Academy Pine Bluff has submitted an
21            amendment for Digital Learning Program in grades K-5.
22            The school will offer asynchronous and synchronous
23            instruction virtually through the use of an approved
24            digital provider and licensed district staff.  And
25            the application has been reviewed by the DESE team.
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 1                 And Mr. Tran and Ms. Henry are still both here,
 2            if you have any questions.
 3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: And just as a reminder to the


 4            Panel this is a part of our expedited digital
 5            learning process.  And they have been -- all plans
 6            that are before you today have been reviewed by an
 7            extensive committee who takes great time to do
 8            detailed reading and note-making and communication
 9            back with the school districts.
10                 So we'll just start with are there any questions
11            by the panel members.
12                 Dr. Williams, any questions?
13                 DR. WILLIAMS: No.
14                 Gentlemen?
15                 I'll accept a motion.
16                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: I move approval.
17                 DR. WILLIAMS: Second.
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: So I have a motion by Ms.


19            Wright-McMurray and a second by Dr. Williams.
20                 Any discussion?
21                 All those in favor?
22                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Any opposed?
24                 Motion passes.
25                 SUPT. TRAN: Thank you.
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 1                 MS. HENRY: Thank you.
 2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Congratulations.  You have a


 3            digital learning plan.
 4                 SUPT. TRAN: Appreciate you.
 5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: And it will go before the
 6            State Board at the State Board meeting.
 7                 SUPT. TRAN: Yes, ma'am.
 8        b)  CROSS COUNTY ELEMENTARY
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Mr. Johnston.
10                 MR. JOHNSTON: Yes, ma'am.  Consideration of a
11            charter amendment for Digital Learning Program for
12            Cross County Elementary.  They submitted an amendment
13            for grades 3-6.  The school will offer asynchronous
14            and synchronous instruction virtually through the use
15            of an approved digital provider.  The application has
16            been reviewed by the full DESE team.
17                 And Stephen Prince, High School Principal at
18            Cross County is on the Zoom if you have any
19            questions.
20                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Good morning, Mr. Prince.


21                 MR. PRINCE: Good morning.
22                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: How are you?
23                 MR. PRINCE: I'm doing good.  How are you all?
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: We're great.
25                 Panel Members, do you have any questions?
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 1                 Dr. Williams, we'll start with you.
 2                 DR. WILLIAMS: No direct questions.  Is any --
 3            were there any concerns from ADE staff in this
 4            process, in working with them?
 5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: No, sir.
 6                 DR. WILLIAMS: Okay.
 7                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Ms. Wright-McMurray, any


 8            questions?
 9                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: Not at this time.
10                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Mr. Baldwin?
11                 MR. BALDWIN: (Shaking head from side to side)
12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Dr. Flowers?
13                 DR. FLOWERS: No questions.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: All right.  I'll accept a
15            motion.
16                 MR. BALDWIN: I move approval for the request.
17                 DR. FLOWERS: Second.
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: I have a motion by Mr.
19            Baldwin and a second by Dr. Flowers.
20                 Any discussion?
21                 All those in favor?
22                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Any opposed?
24                 Motion passes.
25                 Congratulations, Mr. Prince.
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 1        c)  CROSS COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
 2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Mr. Johnston.
 3                 MR. JOHNSTON: Next is Cross County High School.


 4            They've submitted an amendment for Digital Learning
 5            Program in grades 7-12.  The school will offer
 6            asynchronous and synchronous instruction virtually
 7            through the use of an approved digital provider.  And
 8            the application has been reviewed by the DESE team.
 9                 And Stephen Prince, High School Principal is
10            also available for any questions on this plan.
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Any questions, Ms. Wright-


12            McMurray?
13                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: No.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Mr. Baldwin?
15                 MR. BALDWIN: No.
16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Dr. Flowers?
17                 DR. FLOWERS: (Shaking head from side to side)
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Dr. Williams?
19                 DR. WILLIAMS: None.
20                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: I was looking for when does


21            the Cross County charter expire?
22                 MR. PRINCE: I think the elementary is coming up
23            this current December, I believe.  And we just
24            renewed the high school.
25                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: And what did you say about
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 1            high school, Mr. Prince?
 2                 MR. PRINCE: It was just renewed.  We just
 3            renewed the high school.  And elementary will be up
 4            for renewal this coming year.
 5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: So the expiration year for


 6            high school is --
 7                 Tim has the spreadsheet out.
 8                 MR. JOHNSTON: They just renewed for the high
 9            school, so it was a five-year renewal; so it would be
10            2026, if I'm correct.  And the elementary expires
11            June of '22.
12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Okay.  So I just want to
13            bring that to the Charter Panel's attention that, you
14            know, the State Board has been very cautious about
15            three years on digital learning plans.  We have had I
16            believe one charter that received more than three
17            years; they had had a long history with digital
18            learning.  So I just want you to take that into
19            consideration.
20                 Mr. Prince, do you want to speak to that?
21                 MR. PRINCE: So we're going to use -- we've
22            chosen Virtual Arkansas as our digital provider.  And
23            we chose them because they are, of course, reputable
24            and very credible in what they provide for the school
25            and the courses they can provide for our students.
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 1            And we actually use them for other courses throughout
 2            the many years of -- with the high school and our
 3            students.  And so we felt that just selecting them as
 4            our provider would be the best route to go for our
 5            students as we move forward with how the digital
 6            learning platform is going to start shaking out with
 7            post-Covid.
 8                 I hope that answered your question.
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: How many students do you


10            anticipate being fully virtual?
11                 MR. PRINCE: So we did our survey, inquiring
12            with our parents on who would be interested in our
13            virtual learning platform for the new school year.
14            We had very few that were interested.  And throughout
15            the school year almost all, with the exception of
16            about 10 to 15 students, actually came back from
17            virtual learning throughout the school year.  And
18            based on our survey we had about five or six families
19            or students or parents that were actually interested
20            in continuing virtual learning at that point.  And it
21            was about the same at the elementary, very small
22            numbers.
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: And do you have dedicated


24            staff to support those students?
25                 MR. PRINCE: Yes.  So we are going to continue
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 1            to use our virtual learning liaison that we used this
 2            previous school year to continue to monitor those
 3            students and make those contacts with those parents.
 4            And, for example, with Virtual Arkansas, they have
 5            some really good reports that we'll be able to pull
 6            weekly, so we can see what the students are working
 7            on and how much they're working on and how often
 8            they're accessing their content.
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: All right.  Any additional


10            questions?
11                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: I do have a --
12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Go ahead.
13                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: -- question.  And I'm not


14            sure exactly if it's for the district or not.  But I
15            think maybe in a previous meeting we kind of amended
16            or did -- shortened the time to where they could have
17            approval on this, just so that we could address that
18            we know that it's needed right now but potentially
19            going forward they may not need it for an entire
20            period of their charter.
21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Uh-huh.
22                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: So is that something we


23            can consider here?
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Absolutely.
25                 MS. HYATT: (Nodding head up and down)
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 1                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Yes.  Mary Claire is nodding


 2            her head yes.
 3                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: And I just don't remember


 4            the time period that we kind of shortened it to,
 5            because I've slept since then; so I don't remember.
 6                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: So I think the majority --


 7            most of the applications that have been approved by
 8            the State Board have been for three years --
 9                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: Okay.
10                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: -- with the exception of
11            Graduate Arkansas that had a longer period of time.
12                 What's the will of the group?
13                 Dr. Williams, any thoughts?
14                 DR. WILLIAMS: Yes, I'm trying to read through
15            the material here.  So how long are they requesting
16            theirs for the digital learning plan?
17                 Wait a minute.
18                 MS. HYATT: One of their charter schools does
19            not expire -- they just renewed this year, the high
20            school.  So they have five additional years on that,
21            so it would be essentially for five years.  So if you
22            want to shorten that one to three, you can just in
23            your motion say approve for however many years or you
24            can approve it for the full length of the charter.
25            The other school will be coming back for renewal
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 1            soon, so you'll have a time to review that pretty
 2            quickly.
 3                 DR. WILLIAMS: Okay.  What I suggest or what my
 4            thoughts are is to be consistent with the Board.  And
 5            so if that's the case, if they're doing -- preferring
 6            three over five, I would suggest three and be willing
 7            to make a motion to that effect when the time comes.
 8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Mr. Prince, are you amenable


 9            to that?
10                 MR. PRINCE: Absolutely.
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: All right.  Dr. Williams, do


12            you want to make a motion for us?
13                 DR. WILLIAMS: Absolutely.  I move that this
14            digital learning plan be approved for three years.
15                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: I second.
16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Second by Ms. Wright-
17            McMurray.  Motion by Dr. Williams, second by Ms.
18            Wright-McMurray to approve the Cross County High
19            School Digital Learning Program for three years.
20                 Any discussion?
21                 All those in favor?
22                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Any opposed?
24                 Motion passes.
25                 Thank you, Mr. Prince.
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 1                 MR. PRINCE: Thank you all.
 2        d)  SCHOLARMADE ACHIEVEMENT PLACE OF ARKANSAS


 3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Mr. Johnston.
 4                 MR. JOHNSTON: Next is ScholarMade.  ScholarMade


 5            Achievement Place of Arkansas submitted an amendment
 6            for Digital Learning Program in grades K-9 for all
 7            campuses.  The school will offer asynchronous and
 8            synchronous instruction in a blended format through
 9            the use of an approved digital provider.  The
10            application has been reviewed by the full DESE team.
11            Their charter expires in June of 2023.
12                 And Dr. Phillis Anderson is on the Zoom if you
13            have any questions.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Thank you.
15                 Panel Members, any questions?
16                 Good morning, Dr. Anderson.
17                 DR. ANDERSON: Good morning.
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Hearing no questions from our


19            panel members, do we have a motion?
20                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: I move approval of the


21            application.
22                 DR. FLOWERS: Second.
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: I have a motion from Ms.


24            Wright-McMurray and a second from Dr. Flowers to
25            approve the Digital Learning Program for ScholarMade
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 1            Achievement Place of Arkansas.
 2                 Any discussion?
 3                 All those in favor?
 4                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
 5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Any opposed?
 6                 Motion passes.
 7                 Congratulations, Dr. Anderson.  Thank you for
 8            joining us today.
 9                 DR. ANDERSON: Thank you.
10        e)  PREMIER HIGH SCHOOL OF LITTLE ROCK
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Mr. Johnston.
12                 MR. JOHNSTON: Premier High School Little Rock
13            has submitted an amendment for Digital Learning
14            Program for grades 9-12.  The school will offer
15            asynchronous instruction virtually through the use of
16            an approved digital provider and licensed district
17            staff.  The application has been reviewed by the DESE
18            team.
19                 And Dennis Felton, State Director of Premier
20            High School is available online if you have any
21            questions.
22                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: And their charter expires --


23                 MR. JOHNSTON: 6 of 2023.
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: 2023.  All right.
25                 Good morning, Mr. Felton.
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 1                 MR. FELTON: Good morning.  Are you able to hear
 2            me?
 3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Yes, sir.
 4                 MR. FELTON: All right.
 5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: All right.  Charter Panel
 6            Members, do we have any questions?
 7                 No questions, no --
 8                 DR. WILLIAMS: Yes.
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Dr. Williams.
10                 DR. WILLIAMS: Yeah, and this may be more for
11            ADE staff or Mr. Felton also.  I noticed they're just
12            doing asynchronous.  Usually most of them are coming
13            through doing both.  Any rationale behind that?
14                 MR. FELTON: Well, we really wanted the
15            flexibility for the students.  We're thinking about
16            the students in particular that only just need a
17            couple of credits to graduate.  A lot of times, we're
18            trying to make them go at a teacher's pace and
19            ultimately we're actually hindering them from being
20            able to complete their graduation requirements early.
21            And then, on the flipside, they actually want to
22            start getting engaged in some of those (inaudible)
23            based applications and working towards post-secondary
24            goals.  So we don't want to tie them down.  That way,
25            they're actually having to go to the teachers later.
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 1            We want to give them more autonomy and flexibility to
 2            work at their own pace.
 3                 DR. WILLIAMS: Good answer.  Thank you.
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Any additional questions?


 5                 I'll accept a motion.
 6                 DR. WILLIAMS: So moved.
 7                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: Second.
 8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: I have a motion by Dr.
 9            Williams, a second by Ms. Wright-McMurray to approve
10            Premier High School of Little Rock Digital Learning
11            Program.
12                 Any discussion?
13                 All those in favor?
14                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
15                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Any opposed?
16                 Motion passes.
17                 Congratulations.
18        f)  PREMIER HIGH SCHOOL OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Mr. Johnston.
20                 MR. JOHNSTON: Yes, ma'am.  Next is Premier High


21            School of North Little Rock.  They too have submitted
22            an amendment for Digital Learning Program in grades
23            9-12.  The school will offer asynchronous instruction
24            virtually through the use of an approved digital
25            provider.  The application has been reviewed by the
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 1            DESE team.  And their charter expires in June of
 2            2024.
 3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Dr. --
 4                 MR. JOHNSTON: And --
 5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Go ahead.  I'm sorry.
 6                 MR. JOHNSTON: I apologize.  And Mr. Felton is
 7            still on the Zoom.
 8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Thank you.
 9                 Dr. Williams, any questions?
10                 DR. WILLIAMS: They expire in 2024.  How many --


11            is that four or three years?
12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: 22, 23, 24 -- three years.
13                 DR. WILLIAMS: Okay.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Questions on this side?
15                 I'll accept a motion.
16                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: I move approval.
17                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Second?
18                 MR. BALDWIN: Second.
19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: I have a motion by Ms.
20            Wright-McMurray and a second by Mr. Baldwin.
21                 Any discussion?
22                 All those in favor?
23                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Any opposed?
25                 Motion passes.
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 1                 Congratulations, Mr. Felton.  You've got two --
 2                 MR. FELTON: Thank you.
 3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: -- Digital Learning Programs.


 4                 MR. FELTON: Thank y'all.
 5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: You're welcome.
 6        g)  GENTRY HIGH SCHOOL CONVERSION CHARTER
 7                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Mr. Johnston.
 8                 MR. JOHNSTON: You should've all received an
 9            email from me that Gentry was pulled from the agenda.
10        h)  BATESVILLE HIGH SCHOOL CHARTER
11                 MR. JOHNSTON: Okay.  So last is Batesville High
12            School.  Batesville High School Charter has submitted
13            an amendment for Digital Learning Program in grades
14            9-12.  The school will offer asynchronous and
15            synchronous instruction with virtual and blended
16            options through the use of an approved digital
17            provider.  The application has been reviewed by the
18            DESE team.  And Jennifer Douglas, Assistant
19            Superintendent of Curriculum and Instruction, is on
20            the Zoom if you have any questions.
21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Good morning, Ms. Douglas.


22                 MR. DOUGLAS: Good morning.
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: All right.  Let's start --
24            and their charter expires --
25                 MR. JOHNSTON: They are a new charter.  I was
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 1            just trying to pull that up.  I believe they have a
 2            five-year, but I want to confirm that.
 3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Okay.
 4                 MS. DOUGLAS: That is correct.  We were just
 5            approved last fall.  Our charter will open in the
 6            fall of this year.  So we are completely fine if we
 7            need to have this Digital Learning Plan to be
 8            approved for three years.
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Okay.  I'll take that as an


10            amendment to your amendment.
11                 Mr. Williams, any -- Dr. Williams, I'm sorry,
12            any questions?
13                 DR. WILLIAMS: No questions.  Thank you.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Dr. Flowers?
15                 DR. FLOWERS: Yes, I have a question.  Under
16            Student Supports you make the comment about how
17            online students in grades 9-12 if they're absent and
18            they need -- may need to be on remote, their parent
19            needs to call in before 8 a.m. so the teacher can be
20            notified.  Can you talk to me through that process?
21                 MS. DOUGLAS: Yes.  If that was directed to me,
22            I couldn't hear his question.
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Dr. Flowers, can you repeat


24            the question?
25                 DR. FLOWERS: Yes.
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 1                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: A little closer to the
 2            microphone please.
 3                 DR. FLOWERS: Yes.  Can you hear me now?  I'm
 4            sorry.
 5                 MS. DOUGLAS: Yes, sir.
 6                 DR. FLOWERS: Okay.  So under Student Supports,
 7            you talk about if an onsite student in grades 9-12 is
 8            -- are absent and need to be remote, then the parent
 9            must call before 8 a.m. so that the teacher can be
10            notified, so the student can be remoted into class.
11            Can you talk to me a bit about that process, how it's
12            going to work?
13                 MS. DOUGLAS: We have -- I think that I lost the
14            last part of the question.  But as far as the remote
15            instruction, we are allowing students -- as far as
16            the digital plan, if like I wake up -- if I'm a 9th
17            grader and I wake up and I'm ill, I can have five
18            times through the course of a semester that I could
19            still access my courses from home.  But just to keep
20            families and students from abusing it, the parent has
21            to call in to the office and say, "Hey, Johnny is
22            sick today; he needs to access his courses from
23            home."  We did that last year and the flexibility is
24            great.  But we also just wanted to make sure that we
25            didn't have students abusing that privilege to be
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 1            able to access courses from home when they could --
 2            you know, when they were maybe too sick to come to
 3            school but they felt like still doing learning that
 4            day.  They will just Google Meet into their classroom
 5            and hear that instruction as it's happening in the
 6            class.
 7                 Does that answer your question?
 8                 DR. FLOWERS: Yes, it does.  Thank you.
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Mr. Baldwin?
10                 MR. BALDWIN: (Shaking head from side to side)
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Ms. Wright-McMurray, any


12            questions?
13                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: No.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Dr. Williams, did I ask you


15            already?
16                 DR. WILLIAMS: I believe you did, but I don't
17            have any at this time either.
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Okay.  All right.  I'll
19            accept a motion for a three-year approval of
20            Batesville High School Charter's Digital Learning
21            Program.
22                 MR. BALDWIN: I'll make the motion.
23                 DR. FLOWERS: Second.
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: I have a motion by Mr.
25            Baldwin and a second by Dr. Flowers.
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 1                 Any discussion?
 2                 All those in favor?
 3                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Any opposed?
 5                 Motion passes.
 6                 Congratulations, Ms. Douglas.  You have a three-
 7            year Digital Learning Plan.
 8                 MS. DOUGLAS: Thank you so much.
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Thank you.
10  CLOSING COMMENTS
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Any additional business, Mr.


12            Johnston?
13                 MR. JOHNSTON: No.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Ms. Hyatt?
15                 MS. HYATT: No.
16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Any -- Panel Members?
17                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: So did we settle on what


18            time we're going to meet next Tuesday?
19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: No, we haven't.
20                 The afternoon -- do you want to go ahead and set
21            us a time, Ms. Hyatt?  12:00, 1:00?
22                 MS. HYATT: If 1:30 works, I think that would
23            give us time to get everything set up here in the
24            afternoon.  And I assume -- would you like to have an
25            in-person option or just a Zoom option?


Page 72


 1                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: I could do either one.


 2            That's fine with me.
 3                 MR. DAN DAVIS: You're wanting next Tuesday?
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Yes, sir, at 1:30.  Will that


 5            work for you?
 6                 MR. DAN DAVIS: I'll pull it up but --
 7                 DR. WILLIAMS: Can we make it 2:00?
 8                 MR. JOHNSTON: Dr. Williams was asking if we can


 9            make it 2:00.
10                 MR. DAN DAVIS: Tuesday, the 20th the auditorium


11            is empty.
12                 MS. HYATT: Did you say 2:00, Dr. Williams?
13                 DR. WILLIAMS: Yes.
14                 MS. HYATT: If 2:00 on the 20th works, we'll
15            schedule it then.  We'll reserve this room to run the
16            Zoom through.  And also if you want to come in person
17            that's absolutely fine.
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Just let Mr. Johnston know if


19            you want to come in person.  Otherwise, we'll make
20            sure that we have a Zoom link for all of the Panel
21            Members.
22                 MS. HYATT: And we will probably be updating the
23            agenda until last-minute, just so you -- we can get
24            as many on this special meeting as possible.  If
25            we've added any within 24 hours before the meeting,
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 1            we'll be sure to point those out to you.
 2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: All right.
 3                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: Thank you.
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: All right.
 5                 DR. WILLIAMS: Thank you all for your
 6            flexibility.
 7                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Thank you all.
 8                 You're reserving the room for us, Dan?
 9                 MR. DAN DAVIS: Tim will need to.
10                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Okay.  We'll take care of it.


11  ADJOURNMENT
12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: I need a motion to adjourn.


13                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: I move -- so moved.
14                 DR. FLOWERS: Second.
15                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Motion by Ms. Wright-
16            McMurray, a second by Dr. Flowers to adjourn.
17                 All those in favor?
18                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN: Meeting is adjourned.
20                 Thank you, everyone, for participating today and
21            we appreciate you so much.  Have a great day.
22 
23 
24              (The meeting was concluded at 10:20 a.m.)
25 
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 1                        P R O C E E D I N G S
  


 2                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Good morning.  The July 13,
  


 3             2021 meeting of the Charter Authorizing Panel is
  


 4             called to order.  I'd like to welcome everyone to the
  


 5             Department of Education auditorium and ask you to
  


 6             please silence your electronic devices.
  


 7                  I believe we have a pretty quick meeting in
  


 8             front of us today.  We have some expedited digital
  


 9             learning plans, and then a few additional amendments
  


10             that will need to be discussed.  So --
  


11                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Good morning.  Can you hear me?
  


12                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yes, sir.  Are you able to
  


13             hear us, Dr. Williams?
  


14                  DR. WILLIAMS:  I can hear you.
  


15                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  All right.  We will
  


16             facilitate a fair and responsible hearing.  And I'll
  


17             ask that anyone that's coming before the microphones
  


18             today to please state your name and speak clearly
  


19             into the microphone.
  


20                  Good morning, Panel Members.
  


21   CONSENT AGENDA
  


22                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  If you will look
  


23             at our Consent Agenda, and the first item are the
  


24             minutes from the June 2021 meeting.  And I'll accept
  


25             a motion or if there are any revisions.
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 1                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I move to approve.
  


 2                  MS. SARACINI:  I second.
  


 3                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So I have a motion by Ms.
  


 4             Wright-McMurray and a second by Ms. Saracini to
  


 5             approve the minutes as submitted.
  


 6                  Any discussion?
  


 7                  All those in favor?
  


 8                      (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
  


 9                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
  


10                  Okay.  Agenda item number one, Mr. Johnston,
  


11             you're recognized.
  


12   DISCUSSION RE: SPECIAL CAP MEETING
  


13                  MR. JOHNSTON:  Ms. Coffman, before we move
  


14             forward, are we going to discuss the possibility of a
  


15             special meeting, or is that when --
  


16                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mary Claire, do you want to
  


17             join us?
  


18                  MR. JOHNSTON:  I didn't know if that was -- this
  


19             is the appropriate time to bring that up.
  


20                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So for us to be able to get
  


21             all of the digital learning applications reviewed and
  


22             to the State Board before school starts, do you,
  


23             either one, have a recommendation for us?
  


24                  MS. HYATT:  It's my -- Mary Claire Hyatt.  It's
  


25             my understanding that the Department and the State
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 1             Board would like to see those applications get into
  


 2             place before school starts.  In order to do that,
  


 3             since our next meeting is not scheduled until August
  


 4             17th, which then would mean that those would not be
  


 5             heard until September, we would need to schedule a
  


 6             special Charter Authorizing Panel meeting.  We can do
  


 7             it electronically for convenience, since it would
  


 8             just be digital learning plans, or we can have in
  


 9             person, at the will of the Panel.  But I do think one
  


10             will be necessary to hear the remaining digital
  


11             learning applications.  And I can't tell you off the
  


12             top of my head how many we have, but we do have
  


13             several.
  


14                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  Any preference?  Two
  


15             weeks from today is the 27th [audio reverb].
  


16                  So [audio reverb] --
  


17                  MR. DAN DAVIS:  Somebody has joined --
  


18                  DR. WILLIAMS:  I can hear you with the feedback,
  


19             but when you cut off the feedback I can't hear you.
  


20                  MR. DAN DAVIS:  Somebody has joined with audio
  


21             that needs to mute.
  


22                  MR. JOHNSTON:  Probably, let's see --
  


23                  MR. DAN DAVIS:  Because as soon as I un-mute
  


24             ours, then that's when we get the feedback.
  


25                     (OFF THE RECORD TO FIX AUDIO)
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 1                         (BACK ON THE RECORD)
  


 2                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  We'll try this
  


 3             again.
  


 4                  So, Mary Claire, in -- we could do it next week
  


 5             on Tuesday.  Or the following week, on the 27th, I'm
  


 6             already committed to present at the AAEA conference,
  


 7             and I know several of our other presenters, panel
  


 8             members, will be there as well.  So are you thinking
  


 9             next week would be our best time?
  


10                  MS. HYATT:  I think next week is fine.  If
  


11             that's what the Panel wants to do, that's totally
  


12             fine.
  


13                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Excuse me.  A quick question -- I
  


14             have no idea what you're talking about.
  


15                  MS. HYATT:  Oh.
  


16                  DR. WILLIAMS:  We could not hear you up until
  


17             this moment.
  


18                  MS. HYATT:  Sorry, Dr. Williams.
  


19                  So there are several outstanding digital
  


20             learning applications that need to be heard by the
  


21             Panel.  If we wait until August to hear them, the
  


22             State Board won't approve them until September, which
  


23             is after school has already started.  So there is a
  


24             need to have a quick, hopefully, special board
  


25             meeting for purposes of hearing digital learning
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 1             applications only.  And we can do that via Zoom,
  


 2             since hopefully there will just be a few of them and
  


 3             we can do it very quickly.  And I think we're looking
  


 4             at next week?
  


 5                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Next Tuesday is the 20th.
  


 6                  MS. HYATT:  Okay.  Does that work for the panel
  


 7             members?
  


 8                  DR. WILLIAMS:  What time are we looking at?  I
  


 9             have a conflict from 9:00 to 10:00, but can probably
  


10             make an adjustment if needed.
  


11                  MS. HYATT:  We could do 10:30, if that works.
  


12                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yeah.  We could do 10:30 or
  


13             we could do that afternoon, if Representative Hodges
  


14             could join us.  I don't know if he's available.
  


15                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Uh-huh.
  


16                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Afternoon?
  


17                  MS. HYATT:  Afternoon?
  


18                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Yeah, 10:30 would definitely work
  


19             for me or the afternoon would work.
  


20                  MS. HYATT:  Okay.  We will get it scheduled for
  


21             the afternoon, if that is all right with the Chair.
  


22                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Excellent.  Thank you.
  


23                  MS. HYATT:  Absolutely.
  


24   PROCEDURES
  


25                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  While you're here, anything
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 1             that you need to overview, any procedures before we
  


 2             get started?
  


 3                  MS. HYATT:  So the only actual amendment
  


 4             request, besides digital learning plans, that is on
  


 5             the agenda today is Friendship's expansion request
  


 6             that you all heard last month.  So because they've
  


 7             already presented and had their full hearing, and the
  


 8             only reason they were removed is just so we could
  


 9             make sure that Pine Bluff got proper notice.  There
  


10             won't be a need to have an entire new hearing; just
  


11             ask any remaining questions, if you have them.  If
  


12             you do have questions, it would be best to swear in
  


13             the person who's going to respond to the questions.
  


14             But otherwise, they don't need another full hearing.
  


15             On the digital learning applications, we haven't been
  


16             doing full hearings because we're trying to do it in
  


17             an expedited way.  If you've got questions, you can
  


18             just ask them of the representative that's here.
  


19                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And then Cabot we'll need to
  


20             swear in and --
  


21                  MS. HYATT:  Yes.
  


22                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  But we could do a modified
  


23             hearing for them as well?
  


24                  MS. HYATT:  Absolutely.  I do think they have a
  


25             presentation, so you'll want to give them -- they'll
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 1             have up to 20 minutes to give their presentation.
  


 2             But of course we've been doing it kind of on an
  


 3             expedited timeline for efficiency.
  


 4                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Everyone good?
  


 5                  All right.
  


 6   I.  CONSIDERATION OF CHARTER DIGITAL LEARNING PROGRAMS AND
  


 7   CHARTER AMENDMENTS
  


 8        1.  CABOT ACADEMIC CENTER FOR EXCELLENCE (ACE)
  


 9                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Then, Mr. Johnston, if you'll
  


10             introduce our first item please.
  


11                  MR. JOHNSTON:  Tim Johnston, DESE Charter Unit.
  


12                  The first item on the agenda is Consideration of
  


13             a Digital Learning Plan and Charter Amendment for
  


14             Cabot Academic Center of Excellence.  Their digital
  


15             learning plan, when it was submitted, also included
  


16             an amendment to their charter.  So that's why it's
  


17             broken into two parts, but this is one agenda item.
  


18                  So the Cabot Academic Center of Excellence has
  


19             submitted an amendment for a Digital Learning Program
  


20             in grades 7-12.  The school will offer asynchronous
  


21             and synchronous instruction with virtual and blended
  


22             options through the use of an approved digital
  


23             provider.  The application has been reviewed by the
  


24             DESE team.
  


25                  And as far as the amendment, they are requesting
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 1             an amendment to relocate the existing campus and
  


 2             increase the enrollment cap to 2500 students.
  


 3                  And there is representation here from Cabot.
  


 4                  Mr. Aaron, do you want to approach?
  


 5                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Thank you, Mr. Johnston.
  


 6                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Good morning.  If you will
  


 7             raise your right hand -- do you swear or affirm that
  


 8             the testimony you're about to give shall be the
  


 9             truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?
  


10                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes.
  


11                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  And if you'll
  


12             introduce yourself, you may begin.
  


13                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Thank you, Ms. Coffman.
  


14                  Aaron Randolph, the Executive Director for
  


15             Curriculum and Instruction in the Cabot School
  


16             District.
  


17                  MR. DAN DAVIS:  I need permission to share your
  


18             screen.
  


19                  MR. RANDOLPH:  And I appreciate you all giving
  


20             me the opportunity to represent the district today
  


21             and speak about kind of our desire to grow our
  


22             conversion charter school to offer a good digital
  


23             option for students in our district, some things
  


24             we've learned over the past year with Covid digital
  


25             learning, and kind of, in all honesty, some things
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 1             that we'd like to get in place for this school year.
  


 2             Our charter renewal comes up this fall, as a matter
  


 3             of fact; we'll be back in front of this panel I think
  


 4             in December.  And so there's just some things that we
  


 5             want to put in place to really get in the right
  


 6             position to have a rebranding of sorts next year.
  


 7             And we can talk more about that later on.
  


 8                  All right.  Do I need to press the slides or how
  


 9             would I --
  


10                  MR. DAN DAVIS:  Yes, sir.  Go ahead and you
  


11             should be good to go.
  


12                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


13                  And so, again, I appreciate you all for giving
  


14             me this opportunity.
  


15                  I did want to share with you-all the mission
  


16             statement for ACE.  We have had a conversion charter
  


17             school in Cabot School District going on 17 years
  


18             now.  And the mission statement has been changed a
  


19             little bit but still remains consistent in that we
  


20             want to promote high quality, rigid -- rigorous,
  


21             excuse me, academic achievement through the
  


22             development of individual student strengths, talents,
  


23             and interests, with an emphasis on mastery learning,
  


24             self-discipline, social/emotional development, and
  


25             parental involvement.  And I will tell you ACE as a
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 1             charter school was founded with the idea that we have
  


 2             some students that don't necessarily excel in a
  


 3             regular environment and we wanted to give them
  


 4             another place, another spot.  And ACE as a whole is
  


 5             set up as a hybrid learning opportunity for students
  


 6             in 5-12.  We do have an ALE component, so we do have
  


 7             some at-risk students that we cater to specifically.
  


 8             But every student that comes through ACE, unless they
  


 9             are already placed in that ALE environment for one
  


10             reason or another, we require them to be on campus
  


11             for a minimum of nine hours a week, and we are pretty
  


12             flexible with them within that schedule and
  


13             everything else.  But one thing that we have learned
  


14             this year is that digital is a little different and
  


15             so we wanted to add something to that.
  


16                  I did want to share with you-all just our
  


17             enrollment numbers from last year.  So you can see
  


18             there we had ACE and ALE, those were on one campus,
  


19             and ACE North was another campus located in our high
  


20             school -- and I'll talk more specifically about them.
  


21             But as you can see, in 5th through 12th grade we had
  


22             just about 330 students last year enrolled in our ACE
  


23             program and that is well below that 500 cap.  And I
  


24             talked earlier about -- or mentioned earlier about
  


25             rebranding.  Our desire is to see more and more
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 1             students take advantage of this because we know that
  


 2             there are more students that have specific needs that
  


 3             can be addressed through an alternative setting.  But
  


 4             one of the things that we need to look at is kind of
  


 5             how things are set up now and logistically what we're
  


 6             doing with our students.
  


 7                  So the amendment request today, number one was
  


 8             the digital learning plans of the charter -- and I'll
  


 9             talk more about that; adjust the enrollment cap from
  


10             500 up to 2500; and then also switching of campuses
  


11             between ACE North and our ALE setting.
  


12                  So the digital learning plan -- and I know you-
  


13             all have reviewed the plan, DESE has.  Please
  


14             interrupt me at any point for questions.  I just
  


15             wanted to give you as much background information as
  


16             I could.  But as Mr. Johnston said, we will have
  


17             asynchronous and synchronous instruction.  We will be
  


18             utilizing Edmentum, which is an approved provider of
  


19             content.  We will also be using Google Classroom as
  


20             our learning management system.  In the past we have
  


21             used APEX as our provider at ACE.  And so moving to
  


22             Edmentum we did a really thorough review over the
  


23             past year-and-a-half of the curriculum options that
  


24             are out there, and, thankfully, Edmentum is one of
  


25             those approved digital providers.  And also we felt
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 1             like from the support pieces in the individualized
  


 2             instruction it was in a much better spot for our
  


 3             students than the APEX program was.  We also have
  


 4             staff that are going to have time dedicated in their
  


 5             day specifically to digital instruction.
  


 6                  One thing we learned this year is that we
  


 7             actually -- we came before the Committee last summer
  


 8             -- I think a lot of the people did, as we were
  


 9             struggling to figure out what we were going to do to
  


10             open up with Covid.  And I was able, Dr. Thurman and
  


11             I, to speak virtually with this panel, and at that
  


12             time we wanted to have our secondary digital be under
  


13             the ACE umbrella.  And then we just recognized, with
  


14             the help of Mrs. Coffman, that there were a lot of
  


15             other moving pieces to that.  And so we moved our
  


16             digital back to all campuses, and so we had digital
  


17             students and staff spread out amongst 17 campuses
  


18             across our district.  And one of the things that we
  


19             learned through that was it is incredibly difficult
  


20             to juggle the demands of handling digital students,
  


21             instructors that are doing both onsite and digital or
  


22             some just purely digital, and then also to maintain
  


23             some consistency in what the instruction looked like
  


24             in one place over another.  And so we really felt
  


25             like pulling this all together at ACE under one
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 1             umbrella and one roof was going to be best serving
  


 2             our students in making sure that those staff members
  


 3             that want to teach digitally, that want to work with
  


 4             virtual students, let's give them a spot and give
  


 5             them specific training and skills they need to excel.
  


 6                  One thing that you will notice is that we also
  


 7             will provide onsite intervention.  Friday is actually
  


 8             going to be set up purely as an intervention day for
  


 9             students that want to come onsite and want to receive
  


10             some specific instruction, if they so desire, and
  


11             assessment, of course.  We found out that -- this
  


12             year that students will come on campus for
  


13             assessments, for standardized tests, both for our
  


14             formative assessments and NWEA MAP, and also ACT
  


15             Aspire and Alpha.  We had students on campus.  And so
  


16             we're going to do the same thing and have the
  


17             facility that we can do that at ACE.
  


18                  We will also provide for students with
  


19             exceptionalities, be it our ALES, be it our gifted
  


20             students, students on an IEP or 504, and we will have
  


21             staff members that are certified and trained in that
  


22             that can work with those students.  And one key thing
  


23             to this is that this DLP will be separate from the
  


24             ALE component of ACE.  And so we have an interview
  


25             process, we have an application process for these
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 1             students to insure that they are prepared to step
  


 2             into digital learning.  And those students are not
  


 3             going to be identified as ALE students, and so
  


 4             therefore would not count towards that number.
  


 5                  And I know, Mrs. Coffman, we can talk a little
  


 6             bit about it now, if you want to, just what that
  


 7             looks like for our campus or for our ALE?
  


 8                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yes.  So we have had quite a
  


 9             bit of conversation about this, trying to decide
  


10             what's the best thing for the students and the school
  


11             district along the way.  And we do have our ALE
  


12             representatives, I believe, online with us.
  


13                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Okay.
  


14                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So they can jump in there.
  


15             Jared and C.W. are both on there, I believe.
  


16                  But, so the way I'm reading this and
  


17             understanding, just for clarification, this will be
  


18             the only digital learning opportunity for students?
  


19                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, ma'am.
  


20                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  They will need to enroll into
  


21             ACE to be a part of that; so it won't be happening
  


22             out in all of the other campuses?
  


23                  MR. RANDOLPH:  That is correct.
  


24                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And then by not having those
  


25             students identified as ALE, I think that's going to
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 1             solve most of the questions of the ALE team.  But
  


 2             let's jump to them real quick.
  


 3                  C.W. and Jared, do you have any questions or
  


 4             concerns that you want to bring up?
  


 5                  MR. GARDENHIRE:  No.  My suggestion was going to
  


 6             be that they separate out the ALE from the ACE
  


 7             component and -- because it wasn't clear in what I
  


 8             was reading in the plan that was what was going to
  


 9             happen.
  


10                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Right.
  


11                  MR. GARDENHIRE:  So that kind of took some of my
  


12             anxiety away.  So there will be pieces that we'll
  


13             need to look at on -- from the ALE component aspect,
  


14             being on the main campus, but we can deal with those
  


15             later.
  


16                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So tell me, maybe to help
  


17             explain that a little bit more, why are we keeping
  


18             and what's the long-term plan for -- I would assume
  


19             that the reason you're keeping ALE and the digital
  


20             learning together under one LEA number is we don't
  


21             know -- we don't know what the future of digital
  


22             learning is.  It could be huge numbers, it could be
  


23             small numbers; it could at some point level out and
  


24             have a reasonable number.  Kind of talk us through
  


25             what your thought process is about having a separate
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 1             ALE, a separate LEA, or -- and right now for the
  


 2             Panel to understand also ACE is exempt from a letter
  


 3             grade because they are an ALE, classified as an ALE.
  


 4             So kind of talk the Panel through that.
  


 5                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Sure.  And I will tell you, if I
  


 6             can -- there we go -- one of the things that we'd
  


 7             looked at, why we wanted to have it under the charter
  


 8             umbrella truthfully was the flexibility that already
  


 9             exists within the charter.  Staff are trained in
  


10             working with at-risk students, but also students that
  


11             may not fit the standard mold of a K-12 student.  So
  


12             we felt like it was a little bit better fit there.
  


13                  In terms of seeking a separate LEA, you're
  


14             exactly right; we don't know what the future of
  


15             digital learning is.  And I can say, you know, at the
  


16             height this year we had over 1500 students K-12
  


17             enrolled in virtual instruction.  And so when we
  


18             first put this application together, you know, for us
  


19             2500 was a very -- we felt like a very reasonable
  


20             number that could be achieved.  But as you can see,
  


21             we had just over 100 applicants when it came down to
  


22             it and we had our open enrollment period for digital.
  


23             And at that time there really was not a huge push;
  


24             students wanted to get back on campus, parents wanted
  


25             students back on campus.  Now seeing as how Covid
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 1             numbers have increased over the past few weeks that
  


 2             may change, that may adjust, but that's where that
  


 3             number came from was us looking there.  But long-term
  


 4             I think that we can talk more about that and you'll
  


 5             hear more about that later this fall when we come
  


 6             back for our renewal.  But we still feel that digital
  


 7             learning is not set up for a standard K-12 student;
  


 8             for someone that is ready to walk in the door and
  


 9             thrive in the school setting that may not be ideal.
  


10             And so it just kind of went hand-in-hand with us for
  


11             those students and for that program that they would,
  


12             you know, put together, and that's where -- did that
  


13             answer the question, Ms. Coffman?
  


14                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Talk a little bit about, is
  


15             there going to be -- you've got 101 applications
  


16             right now.  Talk to us a little bit about what's the
  


17             flow; will students be able to move in and out, back
  


18             to onsite, move into virtual learning?
  


19                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Sure.  So another highlight for
  


20             us of having the digital in with -- under the ACE
  


21             charter was that the transition, truthfully, if a
  


22             student did want to come back on campus, is that our
  


23             goal would be to move them at ACE where we have a
  


24             hybrid setting.  So it's not necessarily 8:00 to
  


25             3:30, five days a week, but they have sort of a
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 1             hybrid environment; they can come back nine hours, 12
  


 2             hours, 15 hours that we can transition them.  And if
  


 3             they do decide and we decide collectively that it's
  


 4             best that they be back onsite full-time, then we have
  


 5             a process currently that students come to ACE or may
  


 6             go back to a traditional campus, and there's an
  


 7             application and a transition period that we use.  And
  


 8             we're comfortable in working -- various
  


 9             administrations work with our ACE staff.  And Mrs.
  


10             Jones, who's our assistant principal, and Mrs. Lair,
  


11             Carrie Lair, wanted to be here today but they're
  


12             actually at the ALE conference, and so they're
  


13             working there.  But they have a really strong
  


14             relationship and communication with the counselors
  


15             and administration at our other campuses.  And so
  


16             that's where we would see that being able to thrive
  


17             there.  I will say we will probably end up opening up
  


18             applications for online again at some point.  But
  


19             really from a staffing standpoint we set a six-week
  


20             window at the end of the spring and early summer, and
  


21             we really wanted to hold to that, but I do anticipate
  


22             that students can apply to be in ACE at any point
  


23             during the year and we would probably have that same
  


24             conversation.  And right now, what we've told
  


25             families that want to apply is apply to ACE, be a
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 1             part of that team, be a part of that program.  And if
  


 2             we feel like we need to make that move and it's good
  


 3             for -- you know, best for you, then we can make that
  


 4             move.
  


 5                  So that would be -- but again, ACE, we kind of
  


 6             do that transition point for our students to make it
  


 7             a little bit easier.  Because that was one of the
  


 8             other issues that emerged last year was students
  


 9             going onsite and digital, you know, in the midst of a
  


10             year.  And as many times as we tried to hold firm on
  


11             things, life happens and you've got to make
  


12             exceptions.  And so it did create some problems for
  


13             our staff during the school year.
  


14                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Talk to us just a little bit
  


15             more about relocating the campuses --
  


16                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, ma'am.
  


17                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- and your enrollment cap
  


18             request.
  


19                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Perfect.  So the enrollment cap
  


20             increase again just right now is that we are at 500.
  


21             And anticipating that we would have much more digital
  


22             requests than we did, we wanted to raise that cap to
  


23             a 2,000 more student threshold.  We didn't hit that
  


24             number with applications.  But I will also say,
  


25             mentioning what I did earlier about the rebranding
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 1             that we hope to bring up in the fall to this Panel,
  


 2             we anticipate having much more involvement in ACE.
  


 3             We want to grow that program, and so this 500 to 2500
  


 4             cap just gives us that flexibility to do so.  We --
  


 5             you know, we have a lot of students that we think are
  


 6             looking for something different, and especially as we
  


 7             start looking at what students are pursuing via
  


 8             homeschool and other routes.  We want to be able to
  


 9             offer something in the district that would be
  


10             different than what's going on on the regular campus.
  


11             So that's where we came up with that 2500 student
  


12             mark.
  


13                  In terms of the location shift, so we have two
  


14             current locations.  The location that is on your left
  


15             would be our current Academic Center of Excellence,
  


16             as you can see there, and about half the building is
  


17             set up -- you can see the ALE for our students that
  


18             are in that ALE setting on the left-hand side.  And
  


19             our desire is that we will actually take that ALE
  


20             side that's currently there, which is an open
  


21             classroom environment, has cubicles of sorts where
  


22             students are working virtually, being supported --
  


23             or, sorry -- working digitally and being supported by
  


24             onsite staff, is that we would take those students
  


25             and move them over to the campus on the right, which
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 1             is currently housing our ACE North campus and that --
  


 2             you saw there's about 80 some-odd students that they
  


 3             take classes via APEX, their core courses, and we --
  


 4             I'll talk a little bit more about that information.
  


 5             And then, our onsite at the high school, freshmen
  


 6             academy, or one of our junior highs for some of their
  


 7             other electives.  It's sort of an in-between; they're
  


 8             both getting virtual small group instruction with
  


 9             someone under our ACE staff, but they're also going
  


10             on campus.  So our desire is that we would move those
  


11             students from that campus and move them over to ACE.
  


12             And then that ALE -- and I've got some blueprints on,
  


13             like I said, what we're planning on doing with that
  


14             structure to make it a little bit more suitable for
  


15             an ALE setting, a little bit more wide-open with some
  


16             small classroom spaces.  And then that half that was
  


17             the ALE will actually be opened up to our digital
  


18             setting.  So again right now you can see there half
  


19             the building for hybrid, half the building for
  


20             fulltime ALE.  ACE North is a transition location; it
  


21             was originally started and we came before the
  


22             committee I think about six years ago, seven years
  


23             ago -- came before this panel and wanted to have sort
  


24             of a transition place where students could have both
  


25             an ACE life environment but also be able to take some
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 1             courses and programs on campus.  But this is not a
  


 2             hybrid setting at ACE North.  And so our desire then
  


 3             is to move those ACE North students and program back
  


 4             over to the ACE and what we're calling our Cabot
  


 5             Panther Digital Academy on that campus.  And then our
  


 6             ALE, our 5-12, will be located on the high school
  


 7             campus.  And regular ALE staff will be there on the
  


 8             CHS campus, but we'll also have 5-12 staff members
  


 9             who can push in there periodically, depending on what
  


10             the specific needs are of students, where there's a
  


11             desire, if there's something else that they need;
  


12             it's just a lot more centralized for us.  It's also
  


13             directly across the road from Central Office, and so
  


14             it's a little bit better proximity for us in case
  


15             issues arise.
  


16                  The CPDA side, one other thing that I do want to
  


17             point out is we will actually offer transportation.
  


18             That is one thing that we've offered in the morning
  


19             and afternoon for our ACE students.  Again, it's a
  


20             hybrid setting, not set up for an 8:00 to 3:30.  But
  


21             knowing we have students that have been on campus
  


22             five days a week with that ACE North we want to still
  


23             offer them that same environment.  So we're actually
  


24             offering transportation to all our other campuses.
  


25             Every period there will be buses running between ACE
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 1             and those other campuses.  So they can still take
  


 2             courses at ACE, still have that small group
  


 3             environment, but if they want to go take -- you know,
  


 4             if they want to go and be involved in -- you know, we
  


 5             have a wonderful Case agri program.  So if they want
  


 6             to take some of our CTE courses on campus, then
  


 7             they've got the opportunity to take the bus to do
  


 8             that.  And that's where our proposed shift in the
  


 9             locations is going to be.
  


10                  And then here is just a blueprint that we have,
  


11             working with the architecture firm, on what the ALE
  


12             campus will look like.  And so you can see there on
  


13             the left-hand side there's two large classrooms.
  


14             Across the hallway, that larger classroom above -- as
  


15             you can see, a wide open workspace with some desks --
  


16             that will actually be set up for I think 9-12, is the
  


17             way I had it drawn up.  And then that smaller campus,
  


18             because of our numbers, would be set up for 5-9
  


19             students or 5-8, just depending upon the class
  


20             numbers and the, you know, number of students that
  


21             are going to have ALE at that time.
  


22                  Oops, sorry.  Did I go too quickly?
  


23                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  How many students are
  


24             typically in your ALE program at a time?  I mean, I
  


25             know they come in and --
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 1                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Sure.  I think the biggest that
  


 2             we've had in recent memory is about 42, 43 students
  


 3             at one time in that fulltime ALE setting.  So, fairly
  


 4             low.
  


 5                  And then again just some key things that I
  


 6             brought up earlier about the DLP for ACE flexibility
  


 7             offered in the charter, the current minimum of nine
  


 8             hours and direct instruction, it's just a little bit
  


 9             easier from a hybrid to a fully digital, or vice-
  


10             versa, and then we can have that transition for our
  


11             staff.  But also one of the things that we are
  


12             working with our digital students on is -- so we're
  


13             going to offer as much as we can either through
  


14             Edmentum or through ARVA for those courses that can't
  


15             be used in Edmentum.  We are also doing Teacher in a
  


16             Box for some courses.  Edmentum, for example, offers
  


17             a hospitality course and they have a fulltime teacher
  


18             that teaches this course, and we don't have that; we
  


19             don't offer that in our CTE program.  And so we felt
  


20             like there was some opportunity for some courses in
  


21             Edmentum.  But we also -- all those digital students
  


22             will have the opportunity, along with all of our
  


23             students at ACE -- any elective they want to take on
  


24             campus they can do so and we'll work with their
  


25             schedule and even potentially transportation to do
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 1             so.  But this just gives us a little bit more
  


 2             flexibility.
  


 3                  And I will tell you again, from the stress level
  


 4             and the logistics nightmare that it was this year
  


 5             trying to make digital work at all our secondary
  


 6             campuses, having students both onsite and digital in
  


 7             one classroom, having teachers that were going from
  


 8             one spot to another, trying to control the transition
  


 9             of onsite and digital, we just felt like having it
  


10             housed under our charter umbrella was going to make
  


11             things smoother and take that stress off of our
  


12             secondary campuses, because, you know, our high
  


13             school has 2300 and some-odd students on campus.  And
  


14             so if we can remove that stressor from them it would
  


15             be a lot easier in the long-term and more beneficial
  


16             to our students, truthfully.
  


17                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And then, Aaron, you and I
  


18             talked about -- but I think it's important that we
  


19             put that on the record and talk out-loud about we're
  


20             going to need to watch the numbers, watch the ratios
  


21             between --
  


22                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Absolutely.
  


23                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- ALE and digital learning
  


24             students and make a determination of -- at some point
  


25             if those are out of balance, that the district would
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 1             be removed from the letter grade exemption.
  


 2                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, ma'am.  Yes.  And so
  


 3             currently because of the ALE status under our -- with
  


 4             our charter we don't get a letter grade.  We still
  


 5             are accountable, absolutely, for our students, for
  


 6             our scores, but we don't get that A through F rating
  


 7             the way it's set up.  Increasing the enrollment cap
  


 8             is going to bring more students into the program.
  


 9             And so what Mrs. Coffman and I talked about was that
  


10             we recognize that -- so again I brought up the
  


11             numbers, 330 students currently enrolled in ACE.  If
  


12             we hit 320 -- honestly, with 300 digital students we
  


13             need to start having a conversation about, okay, do
  


14             we still qualify for that A through F exemption.  And
  


15             I think the rationale would be if we get more digital
  


16             students than we have ALE students, then that answer
  


17             would be no, and we would just make sure that we have
  


18             that in writing and figure out what's the cleanest
  


19             way to make that work.  But talking with our
  


20             stakeholders, they understand that.  I had the
  


21             conversation with our superintendent; our school
  


22             board is aware.  But we understand that that may be
  


23             where we end up.
  


24                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So just for clarity for our
  


25             panel members and for our viewing audience, they
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 1             certainly are held accountable and those students'
  


 2             scores roll back into the high school.
  


 3                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Correct.
  


 4                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So they -- every student does
  


 5             count --
  


 6                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Correct.
  


 7                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- in our accountability
  


 8             system, but this school's LEA number is not assigned
  


 9             a letter grade.
  


10                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Correct.
  


11                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  The data are rolled back.
  


12             And so if you're looking on our typical
  


13             accountability-at-a-glance, sometimes you'll see
  


14             where the score at the top for that school doesn't
  


15             match the big box where it talks about the ESSA
  


16             Index.  So sometimes you'll see school districts or
  


17             schools like ACE where the numbers are not exactly
  


18             the same, and that's because their data rolled back
  


19             into the high school --
  


20                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Correct.
  


21                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- where the students are.
  


22                  MR. RANDOLPH:  And we spent I don't know how
  


23             many hours in early fall --
  


24                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Explaining that.
  


25                  MR. RANDOLPH:  -- recoding -- well, recoding







Sharon K. Hill, CCR
(501) 680-0888


- July 13, 2021


30


  
 1             those students too --
  


 2                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yeah.
  


 3                  MR. RANDOLPH:  -- to make sure they carry back
  


 4             over to their home campuses.  And so we've done it
  


 5             for 17 years and we'll keep doing it.
  


 6                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Thank you.
  


 7                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, ma'am.
  


 8                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Questions?
  


 9                  Ms. Wright-McMurray.
  


10                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Thank you for sharing and
  


11             presenting.  That was helpful to better understand
  


12             what you guys have as a plan.
  


13                  The only main question that I have -- and it's
  


14             just to try to get a little bit more detail and get a
  


15             better understanding of the Fridays.  So under your
  


16             intervention plan you have CTE and then electives set
  


17             aside for Fridays, but then also will -- it looks
  


18             like that you say that that's also a day to where
  


19             just in general if there are things the students need
  


20             to work on.  So how is that -- or just kind of give
  


21             me a little bit more detail how that's going to be
  


22             balanced, if a student is coming in for CTE work but
  


23             then they have all these other things they're going
  


24             to need to do as well.  How is that going to be
  


25             balanced --
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 1                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Certainly.
  


 2                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  -- to make sure CTE is not
  


 3             kind of pushed to the side?
  


 4                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Absolutely.    And so we
  


 5             understand that we will have students that are taking
  


 6             classes five days a week.  So again I mentioned if
  


 7             they're enrolled in one of our Case courses, they're
  


 8             going on campus for that.  And so on our Fridays set
  


 9             aside for intervention we've got a pretty good
  


10             schedule lined up.  And actually our assistant
  


11             principal is -- has a pretty good intervention
  


12             already for all ACE students, including digital,
  


13             right now, 8:00 to 3:30, utilizing teacher planning
  


14             periods and everything else.  But on that Friday we
  


15             know that there's going to be students that aren't
  


16             going to be able to be pulled for intervention in
  


17             that block of time because they're going to have
  


18             those courses.  And so we will work with those kids
  


19             to make sure that they still have scheduled
  


20             intervention time even within that schedule and that
  


21             CTE is also set aside.  We have a staff member on
  


22             campus right now, Mrs. Beverly Williams; she works
  


23             with our CTE students and she's our JAGG sponsor for
  


24             that campus.  And so she would also have that
  


25             ability; that would be her supervision time, so she
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 1             could go out and see students on campus if they
  


 2             weren't set up for intervention too.  Yes, ma'am.
  


 3                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Thanks.  And so -- sorry,
  


 4             just one more question.
  


 5                  So I'm glad you mentioned JAGG because that was
  


 6             my question.  So the students that are doing the
  


 7             virtual digital piece, do they also still have access
  


 8             to --
  


 9                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Absolutely.
  


10                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  -- JAGG and a JAGG
  


11             specialist --
  


12                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Absolutely.
  


13                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: -- and all the resources
  


14             that --
  


15                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Yeah.
  


16                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Okay.
  


17                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Yeah, we are not precluding
  


18             students that are digital or hybrid to have the
  


19             opportunity to sign up for any other courses that
  


20             anyone else on our campus would.
  


21                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Ms. Saracini, any questions?
  


22                  MS. SARACINI:  Clarify one time for me, this is
  


23             7-12; correct?
  


24                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Correct.
  


25                  MS. SARACINI:  And it's separated from the ALE
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 1             that's --
  


 2                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Correct.
  


 3                  MS. SARACINI:  -- 5-12; correct?  Okay.  I just
  


 4             wanted to make sure --
  


 5                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Yeah.
  


 6                  MS. SARACINI:  -- that that was my
  


 7             understanding.
  


 8                  MR. RANDOLPH:  We have grand visions of doing K-
  


 9             12, and then I shared the numbers with you.  When we
  


10             had 24 students K-6, it was very hard for our school
  


11             board to justify, you know, making that a viable
  


12             option for our students.  Yes, ma'am.
  


13                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Williams, do you have
  


14             questions?
  


15                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Yes.  What is your K-12
  


16             enrollment?
  


17                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Total K-12 enrollment, we're at
  


18             about 12,400 at the moment, give or take.
  


19                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.  Thank you.  I was just
  


20             looking to see what the 2500, what the percentage of
  


21             that would be.  This seems reasonable.  Thank you.
  


22                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, sir.  Thank you.
  


23                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Baldwin?
  


24                  MR. BALDWIN:  I saw in your Student Support
  


25             section that you-all are planning to review grades
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 1             weekly.  And you have a Level 1 and a Level 2 for
  


 2             kids that are struggling, I guess to get extra
  


 3             support.  Talk to me and explain to me a little bit
  


 4             more about the weekly review.  Is that just the
  


 5             teacher reviewing with the student or is that -- tell
  


 6             me how that works.
  


 7                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Sure.  So the weekly review,
  


 8             there will be time for students and teachers to have
  


 9             that interaction.  We also will have, you know, an SS
  


10             team, a student support team, RTI -- I can't recall
  


11             exactly what this campus -- their verbiage they're
  


12             using.  But they're going to have those weekly talks
  


13             about students as well to determine -- because, you
  


14             know, we may have one student that -- or a student
  


15             that has a math teacher, but it's important that that
  


16             math teacher know how that student is doing in
  


17             English and doing in social studies and so-on and so-
  


18             forth.  So they're going to be part of those weekly
  


19             conversations.  And then whoever the home teacher is
  


20             or advisor, they'll be the ones to work with their
  


21             students on that.
  


22                  MR. BALDWIN:  Thank you.
  


23                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, sir.
  


24                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers?
  


25                  DR. FLOWERS:  My question is similar in regards
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 1             to Level 1 intervention.  When you talk about under
  


 2             Student Supports the students who did not excel at
  


 3             digital, how to maybe best -- so do you utilize the
  


 4             same monitor academic policy as well for them?
  


 5                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes.
  


 6                  DR. FLOWERS:  Okay.
  


 7                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, sir.  I mean that was one of
  


 8             the things that I think was so difficult for us with
  


 9             digital learning, especially during -- can I say
  


10             during the pandemic or are we out?  I can't remember.
  


11                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  (Shaking head from side to
  


12             side)
  


13                  MR. RANDOLPH:  But, yeah, we're in.  Okay.
  


14                  But especially with last year that was difficult
  


15             for us was that we -- it was very -- it was very hard
  


16             for us to be able to tell families that this isn't
  


17             working.  You know, we did home visits, we did
  


18             everything we could, myself included, Central Office
  


19             staff going out to work with families.  And so what
  


20             we want to do is to keep such a close hand on those
  


21             students because we don't have, you know, physical
  


22             interaction with them.  So they're going to get the
  


23             same support and we're going to have that constant
  


24             communication.  And where -- again, ACE works a
  


25             little bit better in this way because I think they've
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 1             been interviewing and interviews usually take
  


 2             anywhere from 30 minutes to an hour-and-a-half with
  


 3             students to determine, you know, what's the best
  


 4             setting for them to go in this route, make sure that
  


 5             that support is there.
  


 6                  DR. FLOWERS:  Thank you.
  


 7                  MR. RANDOLPH:  You bet.
  


 8                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Any additional
  


 9             questions?
  


10                  Then I think we're ready for a motion.
  


11                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I move approval.
  


12                  MS. SARACINI:  Second.
  


13                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So a motion by Ms. Wright-
  


14             McMurray and a second by Ms. Saracini to approve the
  


15             application as presented.
  


16                  Any discussion?
  


17                  All those in favor?
  


18                      (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
  


19                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
  


20                  All right, Panel Members, if you'll go to your
  


21             voting sheets and enter information.
  


22                  And while they're doing that, I will just say
  


23             that, as always, we're always impressed with the work
  


24             that's going on there.  And I'm really excited about
  


25             having this conversation in the fall about what we're
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 1             seeing at the beginning of the school year and
  


 2             knowing kind of what the adjustments may need to be
  


 3             and what your future plans are and what data we're
  


 4             going to need to collect to --
  


 5                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Absolutely.
  


 6                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- know the most important
  


 7             information.  So I look forward to that presentation
  


 8             as well.
  


 9                  MR. RANDOLPH:  Well, Ms. Coffman and Panel, I
  


10             appreciate the time and appreciate your support.
  


11                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.
  


12                  So, Panel Members, as soon as you finish your
  


13             voting sheets, if you'd like to go ahead and record
  


14             your justification.
  


15                  And then, Ms. Wright-McMurray, if you're ready,
  


16             do you want to share yours with Mr. Randolph?
  


17                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I wrote the district has a
  


18             well thought-out plan to implement digital learning
  


19             in the district and expand to meet the needs of their
  


20             students.
  


21                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers.
  


22                  DR. FLOWERS:  Approved.  I look forward to
  


23             hearing more about how the students are supported
  


24             utilizing this plan.
  


25                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Go ahead, Mr. Baldwin.
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 1                  MR. BALDWIN:  Thank you.  I voted for the
  


 2             application.  It was a good presentation.  I think it
  


 3             will work well for students.
  


 4                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Ms. Saracini.
  


 5                  MS. SARACINI:  I support the Cabot Academic
  


 6             Center for Excellence amendment because it's a well
  


 7             thought-out plan.
  


 8                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Williams.
  


 9                  DR. WILLIAMS:  We're off mute here.
  


10                  Yes, I support the motion.  This would provide
  


11             both students and parents additional educational
  


12             opportunities during this hopefully post-pandemic
  


13             time.
  


14                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Well, congratulations, Mr.
  


15             Randolph.  And we look forward to hearing good
  


16             information and sharing data with you in the fall.
  


17             Thank you.
  


18   II.  CONSIDERATION OF CHARTER AMENDMENT
  


19        a)  FRIENDSHIP ASPIRE ACADEMY PINE BLUFF
  


20                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston, item number 2
  


21             please.
  


22                  MR. JOHNSTON:  Yes, ma'am.  Tim Johnston, DESE
  


23             Charter Unit.
  


24                  As Ms. Hyatt already said, this presentation was
  


25             presented last month.  But Friendship Aspire Academy
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 1             Pine Bluff is requesting an amendment to add an
  


 2             additional campus, increase the enrollment cap, and
  


 3             add additional waivers.  The charter was originally
  


 4             granted in 2017 and serves students in grades K-3
  


 5             with an enrollment cap of 240.  The charter has been
  


 6             approved to expand to grade 6 and increase the
  


 7             enrollment cap to -- that should actually be 480, and
  


 8             I will get the minutes corrected; I just caught that
  


 9             mistake.
  


10                  (COURT REPORTERS NOTE:  Ms. Saracini exited the
  


11             meeting.)
  


12                  MR. JOHNSTON:  So they've already been approved
  


13             to increase their enrollment cap to 480 by 2023-2024
  


14             school year.
  


15                  And Phong Tran, Superintendent, and Virginia
  


16             Perry Henry, Deputy Superintendent, are both here in
  


17             person, if you have any questions.
  


18                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you.
  


19                  Good morning.
  


20                  SUPT. TRAN:  Good morning.  How are you?
  


21                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  If you'll raise your right
  


22             hand --
  


23                  SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, ma'am.
  


24                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Do you swear to -- or affirm
  


25             that the testimony you're about to give shall be the
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 1             truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?
  


 2                  SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, ma'am.
  


 3                  MS. HENRY:  I do.
  


 4                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you.
  


 5                  And if you'll state your name and just kind of
  


 6             pick up where we left off and --
  


 7                  SUPT. TRAN:  Sure.  I'm Tran, Phong Tran,
  


 8             Superintendent.
  


 9                  MS. HENRY:  Virginia Perry Henry, Deputy
  


10             Superintendent.
  


11                  SUPT. TRAN:  And we have Mr. Dukes, he's our
  


12             principal at the Pine Bluff campus, that's here as
  


13             well just in case you have any questions.  But also
  


14             we have Mr. William Fells from the mayor's office,
  


15             from Pine Bluff, who's also online if you have any
  


16             other questions for them.  And Ms. Kincyl Kelly, our
  


17             special education director.  So, yes.
  


18                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.
  


19                  MS. HENRY:  So we don't have another
  


20             presentation.  We just wanted to pick up where we
  


21             left off last time.  So we're here before you today
  


22             asking for permission to add a campus on Main Street
  


23             in downtown Pine Bluff and to increase the enrollment
  


24             cap from 480 to 880.
  


25                  SUPT. TRAN:  So if you all have any questions
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 1             for us, we're here for that.
  


 2                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And so, Ms. Hyatt, I'm
  


 3             assuming that similar waivers that they have in their
  


 4             other campuses are the waivers that they're
  


 5             requesting.  Is that correct?  Or are they requesting
  


 6             any additional?
  


 7                  MS. HYATT:  Mary Claire Hyatt.
  


 8                  It's the same waivers.  We verified that in
  


 9             their original application for the campus -- for the
  


10             addition of the campus.
  


11                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  And then the digital
  


12             learning plan has already been reviewed by the DESE
  


13             team and recommended.
  


14                  So, Dr. Flowers, do you want to start on your
  


15             side?  Do you have any additional questions?
  


16                  DR. FLOWERS:  Yes.  Will you talk to me a bit
  


17             about the interest in the new campus in regards to
  


18             teachers?
  


19                  MS. HENRY:  Certainly.  In regards to teachers?
  


20                  DR. FLOWERS:  Yes, in regards to hiring
  


21             teachers.
  


22                  MS. HENRY:  Oh.  We will basically do the same
  


23             thing that we always do and that we've done at --
  


24             well, for this school year, is actually seek to
  


25             recruit highly -- Arkansas qualified and certified
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 1             teachers for the new campus.  We advertise on Indeed,
  


 2             we advertise on SchoolSpring; we have a great
  


 3             partnership with University of Arkansas at Pine Bluff
  


 4             and their teaching area.
  


 5                  SUPT. TRAN:  But on top of that, we actually
  


 6             also have a FIAT [ps] division, which is the
  


 7             Friendship Institute for the Maxim of Teaching.  What
  


 8             that does is that -- so what we've been doing this
  


 9             year is that some of our -- some of the teachers are
  


10             not certified; right?  So they're highly-qualified
  


11             but not -- they're not certified.  So what we're
  


12             doing is that -- providing professional development,
  


13             getting them through the Praxis test, because a lot
  


14             of them have passed their course credits but they
  


15             didn't pass the Praxis exam.  So what we're doing is
  


16             that -- that's part of Friendship is that we're
  


17             getting them -- this is afterschool hours; we're
  


18             tutoring on how to -- you know, how to take the exam,
  


19             like all those questions, so-on, so-forth, and what
  


20             is needed to pass the exam so that they can get
  


21             certified.  So on top of that as well we've been
  


22             partnering with UAPB to see, you know, what can we do
  


23             to help out with the incoming students.  So, you
  


24             know, being that it's Pine Bluff, you know, it's away
  


25             from Little Rock; you know, that's the teachers that
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 1             we have there.  But we're actually investing a lot in
  


 2             the teachers and the -- I guess the freshmen and the
  


 3             graduates that's coming out of UAPB in development to
  


 4             make sure that they are certified.  So that's what
  


 5             we're doing there as well.
  


 6                  DR. FLOWERS:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


 7                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Baldwin?
  


 8                  MR. BALDWIN:  Yes.  On the building that you
  


 9             already use, the structure is currently unoccupied.
  


10             And will you have to do any renovation work or
  


11             anything to prepare the building?
  


12                  SUPT. TRAN:  So, are you talking about the new
  


13             campus that we're looking at or are you talking about
  


14             the existing campus that we have?
  


15                  MS. HENRY:  The new campus.
  


16                  MR. BALDWIN:  The new campus.  So we will be
  


17             purchasing -- we're in talks, and City of Pine Bluff
  


18             too, to look at some land down there.  It's on Main
  


19             Street.  And so we'll be looking at purchasing that
  


20             plot.  And I think it is to renovate; I could be
  


21             mistaken.  But it's to renovate that building to
  


22             house our K-3.
  


23                  MS. HENRY:  So construction will be necessary.
  


24                  SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, sir.
  


25                  MR. BALDWIN:  Okay.
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 1                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And will you have time to do
  


 2             that construction before school starts?
  


 3                  SUPT. TRAN:  So it won't be this school year.
  


 4             It will be done for the next school year.
  


 5                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.
  


 6                  SUPT. TRAN:  So it's the 23-24.  So we'll have a
  


 7             whole year to go ahead and do the construction and
  


 8             some renovations.
  


 9                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And your charter is set to
  


10             expire in 2023?
  


11                  SUPT. TRAN:  23-24, if I'm not mistaken.
  


12                  MS. HENRY:  It's 2023.
  


13                  SUPT. TRAN:  2023.
  


14                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  June, yeah.
  


15                  SUPT. TRAN:  Yes.
  


16                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  That's what I've got on my
  


17             notes.  Okay.
  


18                  Dr. Williams?
  


19                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, just a quick thought.  I
  


20             like the idea, one, that this is a year away; two,
  


21             that you're putting school downtown.  This is more of
  


22             a comment than anything -- well, a question and a
  


23             comment.  I remember when KIPP was put downtown in
  


24             Helena and it really revitalized Main Street by
  


25             bringing more parents to the area just to pick up and
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 1             drop off kids.
  


 2                  One, I would encourage you if you hadn't talked
  


 3             to the Chamber in Pine Bluff to work with them to see
  


 4             what synergy you can develop by having people --
  


 5             everybody is working very hard to get people
  


 6             downtown, and picking up and dropping off kids -- and
  


 7             Mr. Baldwin was part of that effort at that time.
  


 8                  So the -- my other question is just, well,
  


 9             really to that same point, is have you all worked
  


10             with anyone from the downtown area about putting the
  


11             school there?
  


12                  SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, Dr. Williams.  And I guess
  


13             I'll talk.  So we've been working with Mayor
  


14             Washington, as well as Forward Pine Bluff, and that's
  


15             why they support us in putting a school downtown.
  


16             But that school is also good for that -- the area
  


17             down there as well because, as you know, there's a
  


18             casino that was built --
  


19                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Yes.
  


20                  SUPT. TRAN:  -- close to that area.  And so
  


21             that's why we're trying to serve, for those parents
  


22             that's working at the casinos and those parents that
  


23             are close to that downtown area there's a school for
  


24             them to send their child there.
  


25                  MS. HENRY:  And William Fells from the Pine
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 1             Bluff mayor's office is actually on the Zoom today.
  


 2             So he can also speak, if you'd like to hear something
  


 3             from him.
  


 4                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Thank you.  I believe it was the
  


 5             young man -- did he speak last time?
  


 6                  MS. HENRY:  Yes, sir.
  


 7                  SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, that is correct, sir.
  


 8                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Absolutely.  Thank you.
  


 9                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Ms. Wright-McMurray?
  


10                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Hi.  Thank you again for
  


11             coming back and visiting with us.  I just had a
  


12             question.  I see you have a waiver for Guidance
  


13             Counselor or -- so what is your -- what's your plan?
  


14             How do you implement that in your schools?
  


15                  MS. HENRY:  Although we have a waiver for
  


16             Guidance Counselor, we have a social worker.
  


17                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Okay.
  


18                  MS. HENRY:  So that social worker acts in that
  


19             capacity, as well as our assistant principal and
  


20             principal, to fill in that gap.
  


21                  SUPT. TRAN:  Also, so our coaches that we have
  


22             -- so we have an ELA coach and mathematics coach as
  


23             well who is also, you know, assistant principal.  But
  


24             they also act as a guidance counselor.  But we do
  


25             have a social worker on staff.
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 1                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  So outside of the socio-
  


 2             emotional needs of the students, so when it comes to
  


 3             like career exploration, career guidance who on your
  


 4             campus is responsible for addressing those needs?
  


 5                  MS. HENRY:  The principal.
  


 6                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Okay.
  


 7                  MS. HENRY:  And he's here.
  


 8                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Okay.
  


 9                  SUPT. TRAN:  And at the moment -- and so because
  


10             we're a K-3, because the school -- we're a slow-
  


11             growth model, so we grow a grade every year.  So, you
  


12             know, being a K-3, I mean he provides great support
  


13             and career guidance to our kids.  But that's still a
  


14             long way off, you know what I'm saying.  But, yes, he
  


15             acts in that capacity.
  


16                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Because I know we had some
  


17             discussion -- sorry -- about --
  


18                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Go ahead.
  


19                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  -- early interventions on
  


20             career exploration and guidance and things like that.
  


21                  SUPT. TRAN:  Yeah.
  


22                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  And so even though it is
  


23             K-3, as early as we can start having those
  


24             conversations with students we are encouraging that,
  


25             so when they get to the upper grades it's not such a
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 1             "oh, this is introductory conversation."
  


 2                  MS. HENRY:  He does have those conversations.
  


 3             And he could probably speak more to it than I can.
  


 4             But I know that he has groups and organizations that
  


 5             are focused on career exploration.
  


 6                  SUPT. TRAN:  Yeah.  Do you want Mr. Dukes to
  


 7             talk?
  


 8                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Sure.
  


 9                  SUPT. TRAN:  Mr. Dukes.
  


10                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I probably need to swear you
  


11             in.
  


12                  MR. DUKES:  Okay.
  


13                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  If you'll raise your right
  


14             hand -- do you swear or affirm that the testimony
  


15             you're about to give shall be the truth, the whole
  


16             truth and nothing but the truth?
  


17                  MR. DUKES:  I do.
  


18                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And state your name, please.
  


19                  MR. DUKES:  Jherrithan Dukes.  I serve as the
  


20             principal for the Friendship Aspire Academy in Pine
  


21             Bluff, the elementary school.
  


22                  To answer your question, Ms. Wright-McMurray, we
  


23             do spend a lot of time talking about career
  


24             exploration.  Actually, this year all of our
  


25             Friendship schools actually adopted a socio-emotional
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 1             curriculum; so that was one of our ways of getting
  


 2             focused on the socio-emotional needs of all of our
  


 3             students.  In addition to that, prior to this school
  


 4             year, this past school year we spent a lot of time
  


 5             having community meetings, having school-wide
  


 6             meetings, having small classroom meetings about
  


 7             career exploration, socio-emotional things that are
  


 8             going on, training schools for behavior, things that
  


 9             may come up in the school and stuff like that.  So we
  


10             do have a social worker, which we're excited about,
  


11             that's coming in.  But even prior to that, we've
  


12             already had support in place for all of our students
  


13             for behavior and things like that.  We do have an
  


14             assistant principal at our school who does act in
  


15             that capacity to insure that our students have what
  


16             they need.  Like she said, it's a shared load with us
  


17             being a small charter school, but we do have
  


18             personnel in place already that do provide those
  


19             supports for all of our students.
  


20                  Is that it?
  


21                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you.
  


22                  MR. DUKES:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


23                  MS. HENRY:  And at our last meeting we actually
  


24             rescinded the waiver for the Guidance Counselor
  


25             because we have a social worker.
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 1                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Yeah, and that was my
  


 2             other thing.  That's what I thought, but, you know,
  


 3             I've slept since then.
  


 4                  MS. HENRY:  You were right.
  


 5                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  So I thought that you guys
  


 6             did, but --
  


 7                  MS. HENRY:  We did.
  


 8                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  -- it was still on there.
  


 9             Okay.
  


10                  SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, ma'am.
  


11                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Any additional
  


12             questions from the Panel?
  


13                  Then I'll accept a motion.
  


14                  MR. BALDWIN:  I move approval.
  


15                  DR. FLOWERS:  Second.
  


16                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Second.
  


17                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So I have a motion from Mr.
  


18             Baldwin and a second from Dr. Flowers.
  


19                  Any discussion?
  


20                  All those in favor?
  


21                      (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
  


22                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
  


23                  Motion passes.
  


24                  SUPT. TRAN:  Thank you.
  


25                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  If you'll give us a moment to
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 1             respond.
  


 2                  SUPT. TRAN:  Appreciate you all.  Thank you.
  


 3                  MS. HENRY:  Thank you.
  


 4                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you.
  


 5                  And, Panel Members, as soon as you're ready,
  


 6             just go ahead and share your response.
  


 7                      (A FEW MOMENTS OF SILENCE)
  


 8                  DR. WILLIAMS:  I'm having trouble accessing my
  


 9             voting sheet.  I can't get it to move from the
  


10             previous one on my laptop.  So when I'm ready I could
  


11             just read it.
  


12                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Go ahead, Dr. Williams.
  


13                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.  I support the motion.
  


14             Increasing enrollment and adding the downtown site
  


15             will create opportunities and also create educational
  


16             opportunities for students and parents, and also meet
  


17             the needs of industry by parents having a school in
  


18             the vicinity of new job opportunities.
  


19                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you.
  


20                  Mr. Baldwin.
  


21                  MR. BALDWIN:  Yes.  I voted for the motion.  I
  


22             believe that this will strongly support student
  


23             learning.
  


24                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers.
  


25                  DR. FLOWERS:  I support the expansion of
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 1             Friendship Aspire Academy with the addition of an
  


 2             additional campus and increased enrollment which will
  


 3             support students as well as the community.
  


 4                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And Ms. Wright-McMurray.
  


 5                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I voted for the motion and
  


 6             I appreciate the work of the Friendship Academy
  


 7             administrative team and faculty.  The expansion will
  


 8             add a great resource for students and the community
  


 9             of Pine Bluff.
  


10                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Well,
  


11             congratulations --
  


12                  SUPT. TRAN:  Thank you.
  


13                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- to Friendship.
  


14   III.  CONSIDERATION OF CHARTER AMENDMENTS FOR DIGITAL LEARNING
  


15   PLANS
  


16         a)  FRIENDSHIP ASPIRE ACADEMY PINE BLUFF
  


17                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston, let's read
  


18             number 3.
  


19                  MR. JOHNSTON:  Okay.  The next item is
  


20             Friendship Aspire Academy Pine Bluff has submitted an
  


21             amendment for Digital Learning Program in grades K-5.
  


22             The school will offer asynchronous and synchronous
  


23             instruction virtually through the use of an approved
  


24             digital provider and licensed district staff.  And
  


25             the application has been reviewed by the DESE team.
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 1                  And Mr. Tran and Ms. Henry are still both here,
  


 2             if you have any questions.
  


 3                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And just as a reminder to the
  


 4             Panel this is a part of our expedited digital
  


 5             learning process.  And they have been -- all plans
  


 6             that are before you today have been reviewed by an
  


 7             extensive committee who takes great time to do
  


 8             detailed reading and note-making and communication
  


 9             back with the school districts.
  


10                  So we'll just start with are there any questions
  


11             by the panel members.
  


12                  Dr. Williams, any questions?
  


13                  DR. WILLIAMS:  No.
  


14                  Gentlemen?
  


15                  I'll accept a motion.
  


16                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I move approval.
  


17                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Second.
  


18                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So I have a motion by Ms.
  


19             Wright-McMurray and a second by Dr. Williams.
  


20                  Any discussion?
  


21                  All those in favor?
  


22                      (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
  


23                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
  


24                  Motion passes.
  


25                  SUPT. TRAN:  Thank you.
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 1                  MS. HENRY:  Thank you.
  


 2                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Congratulations.  You have a
  


 3             digital learning plan.
  


 4                  SUPT. TRAN:  Appreciate you.
  


 5                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And it will go before the
  


 6             State Board at the State Board meeting.
  


 7                  SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, ma'am.
  


 8         b)  CROSS COUNTY ELEMENTARY
  


 9                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston.
  


10                  MR. JOHNSTON:  Yes, ma'am.  Consideration of a
  


11             charter amendment for Digital Learning Program for
  


12             Cross County Elementary.  They submitted an amendment
  


13             for grades 3-6.  The school will offer asynchronous
  


14             and synchronous instruction virtually through the use
  


15             of an approved digital provider.  The application has
  


16             been reviewed by the full DESE team.
  


17                  And Stephen Prince, High School Principal at
  


18             Cross County is on the Zoom if you have any
  


19             questions.
  


20                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Good morning, Mr. Prince.
  


21                  MR. PRINCE:  Good morning.
  


22                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  How are you?
  


23                  MR. PRINCE:  I'm doing good.  How are you all?
  


24                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  We're great.
  


25                  Panel Members, do you have any questions?
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 1                  Dr. Williams, we'll start with you.
  


 2                  DR. WILLIAMS:  No direct questions.  Is any --
  


 3             were there any concerns from ADE staff in this
  


 4             process, in working with them?
  


 5                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  No, sir.
  


 6                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.
  


 7                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Ms. Wright-McMurray, any
  


 8             questions?
  


 9                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Not at this time.
  


10                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Baldwin?
  


11                  MR. BALDWIN:  (Shaking head from side to side)
  


12                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers?
  


13                  DR. FLOWERS:  No questions.
  


14                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  I'll accept a
  


15             motion.
  


16                  MR. BALDWIN:  I move approval for the request.
  


17                  DR. FLOWERS:  Second.
  


18                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I have a motion by Mr.
  


19             Baldwin and a second by Dr. Flowers.
  


20                  Any discussion?
  


21                  All those in favor?
  


22                      (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
  


23                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
  


24                  Motion passes.
  


25                  Congratulations, Mr. Prince.
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 1         c)  CROSS COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
  


 2                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston.
  


 3                  MR. JOHNSTON:  Next is Cross County High School.
  


 4             They've submitted an amendment for Digital Learning
  


 5             Program in grades 7-12.  The school will offer
  


 6             asynchronous and synchronous instruction virtually
  


 7             through the use of an approved digital provider.  And
  


 8             the application has been reviewed by the DESE team.
  


 9                  And Stephen Prince, High School Principal is
  


10             also available for any questions on this plan.
  


11                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any questions, Ms. Wright-
  


12             McMurray?
  


13                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  No.
  


14                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Baldwin?
  


15                  MR. BALDWIN:  No.
  


16                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers?
  


17                  DR. FLOWERS:  (Shaking head from side to side)
  


18                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Williams?
  


19                  DR. WILLIAMS:  None.
  


20                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I was looking for when does
  


21             the Cross County charter expire?
  


22                  MR. PRINCE:  I think the elementary is coming up
  


23             this current December, I believe.  And we just
  


24             renewed the high school.
  


25                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And what did you say about
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 1             high school, Mr. Prince?
  


 2                  MR. PRINCE:  It was just renewed.  We just
  


 3             renewed the high school.  And elementary will be up
  


 4             for renewal this coming year.
  


 5                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So the expiration year for
  


 6             high school is --
  


 7                  Tim has the spreadsheet out.
  


 8                  MR. JOHNSTON:  They just renewed for the high
  


 9             school, so it was a five-year renewal; so it would be
  


10             2026, if I'm correct.  And the elementary expires
  


11             June of '22.
  


12                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  So I just want to
  


13             bring that to the Charter Panel's attention that, you
  


14             know, the State Board has been very cautious about
  


15             three years on digital learning plans.  We have had I
  


16             believe one charter that received more than three
  


17             years; they had had a long history with digital
  


18             learning.  So I just want you to take that into
  


19             consideration.
  


20                  Mr. Prince, do you want to speak to that?
  


21                  MR. PRINCE:  So we're going to use -- we've
  


22             chosen Virtual Arkansas as our digital provider.  And
  


23             we chose them because they are, of course, reputable
  


24             and very credible in what they provide for the school
  


25             and the courses they can provide for our students.
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 1             And we actually use them for other courses throughout
  


 2             the many years of -- with the high school and our
  


 3             students.  And so we felt that just selecting them as
  


 4             our provider would be the best route to go for our
  


 5             students as we move forward with how the digital
  


 6             learning platform is going to start shaking out with
  


 7             post-Covid.
  


 8                  I hope that answered your question.
  


 9                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  How many students do you
  


10             anticipate being fully virtual?
  


11                  MR. PRINCE:  So we did our survey, inquiring
  


12             with our parents on who would be interested in our
  


13             virtual learning platform for the new school year.
  


14             We had very few that were interested.  And throughout
  


15             the school year almost all, with the exception of
  


16             about 10 to 15 students, actually came back from
  


17             virtual learning throughout the school year.  And
  


18             based on our survey we had about five or six families
  


19             or students or parents that were actually interested
  


20             in continuing virtual learning at that point.  And it
  


21             was about the same at the elementary, very small
  


22             numbers.
  


23                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And do you have dedicated
  


24             staff to support those students?
  


25                  MR. PRINCE:  Yes.  So we are going to continue
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 1             to use our virtual learning liaison that we used this
  


 2             previous school year to continue to monitor those
  


 3             students and make those contacts with those parents.
  


 4             And, for example, with Virtual Arkansas, they have
  


 5             some really good reports that we'll be able to pull
  


 6             weekly, so we can see what the students are working
  


 7             on and how much they're working on and how often
  


 8             they're accessing their content.
  


 9                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Any additional
  


10             questions?
  


11                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I do have a --
  


12                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Go ahead.
  


13                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  -- question.  And I'm not
  


14             sure exactly if it's for the district or not.  But I
  


15             think maybe in a previous meeting we kind of amended
  


16             or did -- shortened the time to where they could have
  


17             approval on this, just so that we could address that
  


18             we know that it's needed right now but potentially
  


19             going forward they may not need it for an entire
  


20             period of their charter.
  


21                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Uh-huh.
  


22                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  So is that something we
  


23             can consider here?
  


24                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Absolutely.
  


25                  MS. HYATT:  (Nodding head up and down)
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 1                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yes.  Mary Claire is nodding
  


 2             her head yes.
  


 3                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  And I just don't remember
  


 4             the time period that we kind of shortened it to,
  


 5             because I've slept since then; so I don't remember.
  


 6                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So I think the majority --
  


 7             most of the applications that have been approved by
  


 8             the State Board have been for three years --
  


 9                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Okay.
  


10                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- with the exception of
  


11             Graduate Arkansas that had a longer period of time.
  


12                  What's the will of the group?
  


13                  Dr. Williams, any thoughts?
  


14                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, I'm trying to read through
  


15             the material here.  So how long are they requesting
  


16             theirs for the digital learning plan?
  


17                  Wait a minute.
  


18                  MS. HYATT:  One of their charter schools does
  


19             not expire -- they just renewed this year, the high
  


20             school.  So they have five additional years on that,
  


21             so it would be essentially for five years.  So if you
  


22             want to shorten that one to three, you can just in
  


23             your motion say approve for however many years or you
  


24             can approve it for the full length of the charter.
  


25             The other school will be coming back for renewal
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 1             soon, so you'll have a time to review that pretty
  


 2             quickly.
  


 3                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.  What I suggest or what my
  


 4             thoughts are is to be consistent with the Board.  And
  


 5             so if that's the case, if they're doing -- preferring
  


 6             three over five, I would suggest three and be willing
  


 7             to make a motion to that effect when the time comes.
  


 8                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Prince, are you amenable
  


 9             to that?
  


10                  MR. PRINCE:  Absolutely.
  


11                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Dr. Williams, do
  


12             you want to make a motion for us?
  


13                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Absolutely.  I move that this
  


14             digital learning plan be approved for three years.
  


15                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I second.
  


16                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Second by Ms. Wright-
  


17             McMurray.  Motion by Dr. Williams, second by Ms.
  


18             Wright-McMurray to approve the Cross County High
  


19             School Digital Learning Program for three years.
  


20                  Any discussion?
  


21                  All those in favor?
  


22                      (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
  


23                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
  


24                  Motion passes.
  


25                  Thank you, Mr. Prince.
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 1                  MR. PRINCE:  Thank you all.
  


 2         d)  SCHOLARMADE ACHIEVEMENT PLACE OF ARKANSAS
  


 3                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston.
  


 4                  MR. JOHNSTON:  Next is ScholarMade.  ScholarMade
  


 5             Achievement Place of Arkansas submitted an amendment
  


 6             for Digital Learning Program in grades K-9 for all
  


 7             campuses.  The school will offer asynchronous and
  


 8             synchronous instruction in a blended format through
  


 9             the use of an approved digital provider.  The
  


10             application has been reviewed by the full DESE team.
  


11             Their charter expires in June of 2023.
  


12                  And Dr. Phillis Anderson is on the Zoom if you
  


13             have any questions.
  


14                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you.
  


15                  Panel Members, any questions?
  


16                  Good morning, Dr. Anderson.
  


17                  DR. ANDERSON:  Good morning.
  


18                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Hearing no questions from our
  


19             panel members, do we have a motion?
  


20                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I move approval of the
  


21             application.
  


22                  DR. FLOWERS:  Second.
  


23                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I have a motion from Ms.
  


24             Wright-McMurray and a second from Dr. Flowers to
  


25             approve the Digital Learning Program for ScholarMade
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 1             Achievement Place of Arkansas.
  


 2                  Any discussion?
  


 3                  All those in favor?
  


 4                      (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
  


 5                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
  


 6                  Motion passes.
  


 7                  Congratulations, Dr. Anderson.  Thank you for
  


 8             joining us today.
  


 9                  DR. ANDERSON:  Thank you.
  


10         e)  PREMIER HIGH SCHOOL OF LITTLE ROCK
  


11                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston.
  


12                  MR. JOHNSTON:  Premier High School Little Rock
  


13             has submitted an amendment for Digital Learning
  


14             Program for grades 9-12.  The school will offer
  


15             asynchronous instruction virtually through the use of
  


16             an approved digital provider and licensed district
  


17             staff.  The application has been reviewed by the DESE
  


18             team.
  


19                  And Dennis Felton, State Director of Premier
  


20             High School is available online if you have any
  


21             questions.
  


22                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And their charter expires --
  


23                  MR. JOHNSTON:  6 of 2023.
  


24                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  2023.  All right.
  


25                  Good morning, Mr. Felton.
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 1                  MR. FELTON:  Good morning.  Are you able to hear
  


 2             me?
  


 3                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yes, sir.
  


 4                  MR. FELTON:  All right.
  


 5                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Charter Panel
  


 6             Members, do we have any questions?
  


 7                  No questions, no --
  


 8                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Yes.
  


 9                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Williams.
  


10                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Yeah, and this may be more for
  


11             ADE staff or Mr. Felton also.  I noticed they're just
  


12             doing asynchronous.  Usually most of them are coming
  


13             through doing both.  Any rationale behind that?
  


14                  MR. FELTON:  Well, we really wanted the
  


15             flexibility for the students.  We're thinking about
  


16             the students in particular that only just need a
  


17             couple of credits to graduate.  A lot of times, we're
  


18             trying to make them go at a teacher's pace and
  


19             ultimately we're actually hindering them from being
  


20             able to complete their graduation requirements early.
  


21             And then, on the flipside, they actually want to
  


22             start getting engaged in some of those (inaudible)
  


23             based applications and working towards post-secondary
  


24             goals.  So we don't want to tie them down.  That way,
  


25             they're actually having to go to the teachers later.
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 1             We want to give them more autonomy and flexibility to
  


 2             work at their own pace.
  


 3                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Good answer.  Thank you.
  


 4                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any additional questions?
  


 5                  I'll accept a motion.
  


 6                  DR. WILLIAMS:  So moved.
  


 7                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Second.
  


 8                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I have a motion by Dr.
  


 9             Williams, a second by Ms. Wright-McMurray to approve
  


10             Premier High School of Little Rock Digital Learning
  


11             Program.
  


12                  Any discussion?
  


13                  All those in favor?
  


14                      (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
  


15                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
  


16                  Motion passes.
  


17                  Congratulations.
  


18         f)  PREMIER HIGH SCHOOL OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
  


19                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston.
  


20                  MR. JOHNSTON:  Yes, ma'am.  Next is Premier High
  


21             School of North Little Rock.  They too have submitted
  


22             an amendment for Digital Learning Program in grades
  


23             9-12.  The school will offer asynchronous instruction
  


24             virtually through the use of an approved digital
  


25             provider.  The application has been reviewed by the
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 1             DESE team.  And their charter expires in June of
  


 2             2024.
  


 3                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. --
  


 4                  MR. JOHNSTON:  And --
  


 5                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Go ahead.  I'm sorry.
  


 6                  MR. JOHNSTON:  I apologize.  And Mr. Felton is
  


 7             still on the Zoom.
  


 8                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you.
  


 9                  Dr. Williams, any questions?
  


10                  DR. WILLIAMS:  They expire in 2024.  How many --
  


11             is that four or three years?
  


12                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  22, 23, 24 -- three years.
  


13                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.
  


14                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Questions on this side?
  


15                  I'll accept a motion.
  


16                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I move approval.
  


17                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Second?
  


18                  MR. BALDWIN:  Second.
  


19                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I have a motion by Ms.
  


20             Wright-McMurray and a second by Mr. Baldwin.
  


21                  Any discussion?
  


22                  All those in favor?
  


23                      (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
  


24                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
  


25                  Motion passes.
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 1                  Congratulations, Mr. Felton.  You've got two --
  


 2                  MR. FELTON:  Thank you.
  


 3                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- Digital Learning Programs.
  


 4                  MR. FELTON:  Thank y'all.
  


 5                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  You're welcome.
  


 6         g)  GENTRY HIGH SCHOOL CONVERSION CHARTER
  


 7                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston.
  


 8                  MR. JOHNSTON:  You should've all received an
  


 9             email from me that Gentry was pulled from the agenda.
  


10         h)  BATESVILLE HIGH SCHOOL CHARTER
  


11                  MR. JOHNSTON:  Okay.  So last is Batesville High
  


12             School.  Batesville High School Charter has submitted
  


13             an amendment for Digital Learning Program in grades
  


14             9-12.  The school will offer asynchronous and
  


15             synchronous instruction with virtual and blended
  


16             options through the use of an approved digital
  


17             provider.  The application has been reviewed by the
  


18             DESE team.  And Jennifer Douglas, Assistant
  


19             Superintendent of Curriculum and Instruction, is on
  


20             the Zoom if you have any questions.
  


21                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Good morning, Ms. Douglas.
  


22                  MR. DOUGLAS:  Good morning.
  


23                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Let's start --
  


24             and their charter expires --
  


25                  MR. JOHNSTON:  They are a new charter.  I was
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 1             just trying to pull that up.  I believe they have a
  


 2             five-year, but I want to confirm that.
  


 3                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.
  


 4                  MS. DOUGLAS:  That is correct.  We were just
  


 5             approved last fall.  Our charter will open in the
  


 6             fall of this year.  So we are completely fine if we
  


 7             need to have this Digital Learning Plan to be
  


 8             approved for three years.
  


 9                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  I'll take that as an
  


10             amendment to your amendment.
  


11                  Mr. Williams, any -- Dr. Williams, I'm sorry,
  


12             any questions?
  


13                  DR. WILLIAMS:  No questions.  Thank you.
  


14                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers?
  


15                  DR. FLOWERS:  Yes, I have a question.  Under
  


16             Student Supports you make the comment about how
  


17             online students in grades 9-12 if they're absent and
  


18             they need -- may need to be on remote, their parent
  


19             needs to call in before 8 a.m. so the teacher can be
  


20             notified.  Can you talk to me through that process?
  


21                  MS. DOUGLAS:  Yes.  If that was directed to me,
  


22             I couldn't hear his question.
  


23                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers, can you repeat
  


24             the question?
  


25                  DR. FLOWERS:  Yes.
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 1                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  A little closer to the
  


 2             microphone please.
  


 3                  DR. FLOWERS:  Yes.  Can you hear me now?  I'm
  


 4             sorry.
  


 5                  MS. DOUGLAS:  Yes, sir.
  


 6                  DR. FLOWERS:  Okay.  So under Student Supports,
  


 7             you talk about if an onsite student in grades 9-12 is
  


 8             -- are absent and need to be remote, then the parent
  


 9             must call before 8 a.m. so that the teacher can be
  


10             notified, so the student can be remoted into class.
  


11             Can you talk to me a bit about that process, how it's
  


12             going to work?
  


13                  MS. DOUGLAS:  We have -- I think that I lost the
  


14             last part of the question.  But as far as the remote
  


15             instruction, we are allowing students -- as far as
  


16             the digital plan, if like I wake up -- if I'm a 9th
  


17             grader and I wake up and I'm ill, I can have five
  


18             times through the course of a semester that I could
  


19             still access my courses from home.  But just to keep
  


20             families and students from abusing it, the parent has
  


21             to call in to the office and say, "Hey, Johnny is
  


22             sick today; he needs to access his courses from
  


23             home."  We did that last year and the flexibility is
  


24             great.  But we also just wanted to make sure that we
  


25             didn't have students abusing that privilege to be
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 1             able to access courses from home when they could --
  


 2             you know, when they were maybe too sick to come to
  


 3             school but they felt like still doing learning that
  


 4             day.  They will just Google Meet into their classroom
  


 5             and hear that instruction as it's happening in the
  


 6             class.
  


 7                  Does that answer your question?
  


 8                  DR. FLOWERS:  Yes, it does.  Thank you.
  


 9                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Baldwin?
  


10                  MR. BALDWIN:  (Shaking head from side to side)
  


11                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Ms. Wright-McMurray, any
  


12             questions?
  


13                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  No.
  


14                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Williams, did I ask you
  


15             already?
  


16                  DR. WILLIAMS:  I believe you did, but I don't
  


17             have any at this time either.
  


18                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  All right.  I'll
  


19             accept a motion for a three-year approval of
  


20             Batesville High School Charter's Digital Learning
  


21             Program.
  


22                  MR. BALDWIN:  I'll make the motion.
  


23                  DR. FLOWERS:  Second.
  


24                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I have a motion by Mr.
  


25             Baldwin and a second by Dr. Flowers.
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 1                  Any discussion?
  


 2                  All those in favor?
  


 3                      (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
  


 4                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
  


 5                  Motion passes.
  


 6                  Congratulations, Ms. Douglas.  You have a three-
  


 7             year Digital Learning Plan.
  


 8                  MS. DOUGLAS:  Thank you so much.
  


 9                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you.
  


10   CLOSING COMMENTS
  


11                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any additional business, Mr.
  


12             Johnston?
  


13                  MR. JOHNSTON:  No.
  


14                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Ms. Hyatt?
  


15                  MS. HYATT:  No.
  


16                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any -- Panel Members?
  


17                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  So did we settle on what
  


18             time we're going to meet next Tuesday?
  


19                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  No, we haven't.
  


20                  The afternoon -- do you want to go ahead and set
  


21             us a time, Ms. Hyatt?  12:00, 1:00?
  


22                  MS. HYATT:  If 1:30 works, I think that would
  


23             give us time to get everything set up here in the
  


24             afternoon.  And I assume -- would you like to have an
  


25             in-person option or just a Zoom option?
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 1                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I could do either one.
  


 2             That's fine with me.
  


 3                  MR. DAN DAVIS:  You're wanting next Tuesday?
  


 4                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yes, sir, at 1:30.  Will that
  


 5             work for you?
  


 6                  MR. DAN DAVIS:  I'll pull it up but --
  


 7                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Can we make it 2:00?
  


 8                  MR. JOHNSTON:  Dr. Williams was asking if we can
  


 9             make it 2:00.
  


10                  MR. DAN DAVIS:  Tuesday, the 20th the auditorium
  


11             is empty.
  


12                  MS. HYATT:  Did you say 2:00, Dr. Williams?
  


13                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Yes.
  


14                  MS. HYATT:  If 2:00 on the 20th works, we'll
  


15             schedule it then.  We'll reserve this room to run the
  


16             Zoom through.  And also if you want to come in person
  


17             that's absolutely fine.
  


18                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Just let Mr. Johnston know if
  


19             you want to come in person.  Otherwise, we'll make
  


20             sure that we have a Zoom link for all of the Panel
  


21             Members.
  


22                  MS. HYATT:  And we will probably be updating the
  


23             agenda until last-minute, just so you -- we can get
  


24             as many on this special meeting as possible.  If
  


25             we've added any within 24 hours before the meeting,
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 1             we'll be sure to point those out to you.
  


 2                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.
  


 3                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Thank you.
  


 4                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.
  


 5                  DR. WILLIAMS:  Thank you all for your
  


 6             flexibility.
  


 7                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you all.
  


 8                  You're reserving the room for us, Dan?
  


 9                  MR. DAN DAVIS:  Tim will need to.
  


10                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  We'll take care of it.
  


11   ADJOURNMENT
  


12                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I need a motion to adjourn.
  


13                  MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I move -- so moved.
  


14                  DR. FLOWERS:  Second.
  


15                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Motion by Ms. Wright-
  


16             McMurray, a second by Dr. Flowers to adjourn.
  


17                  All those in favor?
  


18                      (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
  


19                  CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Meeting is adjourned.
  


20                  Thank you, everyone, for participating today and
  


21             we appreciate you so much.  Have a great day.
  


22
  


23
  


24               (The meeting was concluded at 10:20 a.m.)
  


25
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              1                       P R O C E E D I N G S 

              2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Good morning.  The July 13, 

              3            2021 meeting of the Charter Authorizing Panel is 

              4            called to order.  I'd like to welcome everyone to the 

              5            Department of Education auditorium and ask you to 

              6            please silence your electronic devices.   

              7                 I believe we have a pretty quick meeting in 

              8            front of us today.  We have some expedited digital 

              9            learning plans, and then a few additional amendments 

             10            that will need to be discussed.  So -- 

             11                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Good morning.  Can you hear me? 

             12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yes, sir.  Are you able to 

             13            hear us, Dr. Williams? 

             14                 DR. WILLIAMS:  I can hear you. 

             15                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  All right.  We will 

             16            facilitate a fair and responsible hearing.  And I'll 

             17            ask that anyone that's coming before the microphones 

             18            today to please state your name and speak clearly 

             19            into the microphone. 

             20                 Good morning, Panel Members.   

             21  CONSENT AGENDA 

             22                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  If you will look 

             23            at our Consent Agenda, and the first item are the 

             24            minutes from the June 2021 meeting.  And I'll accept 

             25            a motion or if there are any revisions. 
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              1                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I move to approve. 

              2                 MS. SARACINI:  I second. 

              3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So I have a motion by Ms. 

              4            Wright-McMurray and a second by Ms. Saracini to 

              5            approve the minutes as submitted. 

              6                 Any discussion?  

              7                 All those in favor? 

              8                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 

              9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed? 

             10                 Okay.  Agenda item number one, Mr. Johnston, 

             11            you're recognized. 

             12  DISCUSSION RE: SPECIAL CAP MEETING 

             13                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Ms. Coffman, before we move 

             14            forward, are we going to discuss the possibility of a 

             15            special meeting, or is that when -- 

             16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mary Claire, do you want to 

             17            join us? 

             18                 MR. JOHNSTON:  I didn't know if that was -- this 

             19            is the appropriate time to bring that up. 

             20                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So for us to be able to get 

             21            all of the digital learning applications reviewed and 

             22            to the State Board before school starts, do you, 

             23            either one, have a recommendation for us? 

             24                 MS. HYATT:  It's my -- Mary Claire Hyatt.  It's 

             25            my understanding that the Department and the State 
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              1            Board would like to see those applications get into 

              2            place before school starts.  In order to do that, 

              3            since our next meeting is not scheduled until August 

              4            17th, which then would mean that those would not be 

              5            heard until September, we would need to schedule a 

              6            special Charter Authorizing Panel meeting.  We can do 

              7            it electronically for convenience, since it would 

              8            just be digital learning plans, or we can have in 

              9            person, at the will of the Panel.  But I do think one 

             10            will be necessary to hear the remaining digital 

             11            learning applications.  And I can't tell you off the 

             12            top of my head how many we have, but we do have 

             13            several. 

             14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  Any preference?  Two 

             15            weeks from today is the 27th [audio reverb]. 

             16                 So [audio reverb] --  

             17                 MR. DAN DAVIS:  Somebody has joined -- 

             18                 DR. WILLIAMS:  I can hear you with the feedback, 

             19            but when you cut off the feedback I can't hear you. 

             20                 MR. DAN DAVIS:  Somebody has joined with audio 

             21            that needs to mute. 

             22                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Probably, let's see -- 

             23                 MR. DAN DAVIS:  Because as soon as I un-mute 

             24            ours, then that's when we get the feedback. 

             25                    (OFF THE RECORD TO FIX AUDIO) 
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              1                        (BACK ON THE RECORD) 

              2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  We'll try this 

              3            again. 

              4                 So, Mary Claire, in -- we could do it next week 

              5            on Tuesday.  Or the following week, on the 27th, I'm 

              6            already committed to present at the AAEA conference, 

              7            and I know several of our other presenters, panel 

              8            members, will be there as well.  So are you thinking 

              9            next week would be our best time? 

             10                 MS. HYATT:  I think next week is fine.  If 

             11            that's what the Panel wants to do, that's totally 

             12            fine. 

             13                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Excuse me.  A quick question -- I 

             14            have no idea what you're talking about. 

             15                 MS. HYATT:  Oh. 

             16                 DR. WILLIAMS:  We could not hear you up until 

             17            this moment. 

             18                 MS. HYATT:  Sorry, Dr. Williams. 

             19                 So there are several outstanding digital 

             20            learning applications that need to be heard by the 

             21            Panel.  If we wait until August to hear them, the 

             22            State Board won't approve them until September, which 

             23            is after school has already started.  So there is a 

             24            need to have a quick, hopefully, special board 

             25            meeting for purposes of hearing digital learning 
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              1            applications only.  And we can do that via Zoom, 

              2            since hopefully there will just be a few of them and 

              3            we can do it very quickly.  And I think we're looking 

              4            at next week? 

              5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Next Tuesday is the 20th. 

              6                 MS. HYATT:  Okay.  Does that work for the panel 

              7            members? 

              8                 DR. WILLIAMS:  What time are we looking at?  I 

              9            have a conflict from 9:00 to 10:00, but can probably 

             10            make an adjustment if needed. 

             11                 MS. HYATT:  We could do 10:30, if that works. 

             12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yeah.  We could do 10:30 or 

             13            we could do that afternoon, if Representative Hodges 

             14            could join us.  I don't know if he's available.   

             15                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Uh-huh. 

             16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Afternoon? 

             17                 MS. HYATT:  Afternoon? 

             18                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Yeah, 10:30 would definitely work 

             19            for me or the afternoon would work. 

             20                 MS. HYATT:  Okay.  We will get it scheduled for 

             21            the afternoon, if that is all right with the Chair. 

             22                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Excellent.  Thank you. 

             23                 MS. HYATT:  Absolutely. 

             24  PROCEDURES 

             25                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  While you're here, anything 



                                                  �

                                                                                8



              1            that you need to overview, any procedures before we 

              2            get started? 

              3                 MS. HYATT:  So the only actual amendment 

              4            request, besides digital learning plans, that is on 

              5            the agenda today is Friendship's expansion request 

              6            that you all heard last month.  So because they've 

              7            already presented and had their full hearing, and the 

              8            only reason they were removed is just so we could 

              9            make sure that Pine Bluff got proper notice.  There 

             10            won't be a need to have an entire new hearing; just 

             11            ask any remaining questions, if you have them.  If 

             12            you do have questions, it would be best to swear in 

             13            the person who's going to respond to the questions.  

             14            But otherwise, they don't need another full hearing.  

             15            On the digital learning applications, we haven't been 

             16            doing full hearings because we're trying to do it in 

             17            an expedited way.  If you've got questions, you can 

             18            just ask them of the representative that's here. 

             19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And then Cabot we'll need to 

             20            swear in and -- 

             21                 MS. HYATT:  Yes. 

             22                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  But we could do a modified 

             23            hearing for them as well? 

             24                 MS. HYATT:  Absolutely.  I do think they have a 

             25            presentation, so you'll want to give them -- they'll 
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              1            have up to 20 minutes to give their presentation.  

              2            But of course we've been doing it kind of on an 

              3            expedited timeline for efficiency. 

              4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Everyone good? 

              5                 All right. 

              6  I.  CONSIDERATION OF CHARTER DIGITAL LEARNING PROGRAMS AND 

              7  CHARTER AMENDMENTS 

              8       1.  CABOT ACADEMIC CENTER FOR EXCELLENCE (ACE) 

              9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Then, Mr. Johnston, if you'll 

             10            introduce our first item please. 

             11                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Tim Johnston, DESE Charter Unit. 

             12                 The first item on the agenda is Consideration of 

             13            a Digital Learning Plan and Charter Amendment for 

             14            Cabot Academic Center of Excellence.  Their digital 

             15            learning plan, when it was submitted, also included 

             16            an amendment to their charter.  So that's why it's 

             17            broken into two parts, but this is one agenda item.  

             18                 So the Cabot Academic Center of Excellence has 

             19            submitted an amendment for a Digital Learning Program 

             20            in grades 7-12.  The school will offer asynchronous 

             21            and synchronous instruction with virtual and blended 

             22            options through the use of an approved digital 

             23            provider.  The application has been reviewed by the 

             24            DESE team. 

             25                 And as far as the amendment, they are requesting 
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              1            an amendment to relocate the existing campus and 

              2            increase the enrollment cap to 2500 students. 

              3                 And there is representation here from Cabot. 

              4                 Mr. Aaron, do you want to approach? 

              5                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Thank you, Mr. Johnston. 

              6                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Good morning.  If you will 

              7            raise your right hand -- do you swear or affirm that 

              8            the testimony you're about to give shall be the 

              9            truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth? 

             10                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes. 

             11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  And if you'll 

             12            introduce yourself, you may begin. 

             13                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Thank you, Ms. Coffman. 

             14                 Aaron Randolph, the Executive Director for 

             15            Curriculum and Instruction in the Cabot School 

             16            District. 

             17                 MR. DAN DAVIS:  I need permission to share your 

             18            screen. 

             19                 MR. RANDOLPH:  And I appreciate you all giving 

             20            me the opportunity to represent the district today 

             21            and speak about kind of our desire to grow our 

             22            conversion charter school to offer a good digital 

             23            option for students in our district, some things 

             24            we've learned over the past year with Covid digital 

             25            learning, and kind of, in all honesty, some things 
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              1            that we'd like to get in place for this school year.  

              2            Our charter renewal comes up this fall, as a matter 

              3            of fact; we'll be back in front of this panel I think 

              4            in December.  And so there's just some things that we 

              5            want to put in place to really get in the right 

              6            position to have a rebranding of sorts next year.  

              7            And we can talk more about that later on. 

              8                 All right.  Do I need to press the slides or how 

              9            would I -- 

             10                 MR. DAN DAVIS:  Yes, sir.  Go ahead and you 

             11            should be good to go. 

             12                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Okay.  Thank you. 

             13                 And so, again, I appreciate you all for giving 

             14            me this opportunity. 

             15                 I did want to share with you-all the mission 

             16            statement for ACE.  We have had a conversion charter 

             17            school in Cabot School District going on 17 years 

             18            now.  And the mission statement has been changed a 

             19            little bit but still remains consistent in that we 

             20            want to promote high quality, rigid -- rigorous, 

             21            excuse me, academic achievement through the 

             22            development of individual student strengths, talents, 

             23            and interests, with an emphasis on mastery learning, 

             24            self-discipline, social/emotional development, and 

             25            parental involvement.  And I will tell you ACE as a 
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              1            charter school was founded with the idea that we have 

              2            some students that don't necessarily excel in a 

              3            regular environment and we wanted to give them 

              4            another place, another spot.  And ACE as a whole is 

              5            set up as a hybrid learning opportunity for students 

              6            in 5-12.  We do have an ALE component, so we do have 

              7            some at-risk students that we cater to specifically.  

              8            But every student that comes through ACE, unless they 

              9            are already placed in that ALE environment for one 

             10            reason or another, we require them to be on campus 

             11            for a minimum of nine hours a week, and we are pretty 

             12            flexible with them within that schedule and 

             13            everything else.  But one thing that we have learned 

             14            this year is that digital is a little different and 

             15            so we wanted to add something to that. 

             16                 I did want to share with you-all just our 

             17            enrollment numbers from last year.  So you can see 

             18            there we had ACE and ALE, those were on one campus, 

             19            and ACE North was another campus located in our high 

             20            school -- and I'll talk more specifically about them.  

             21            But as you can see, in 5th through 12th grade we had 

             22            just about 330 students last year enrolled in our ACE 

             23            program and that is well below that 500 cap.  And I 

             24            talked earlier about -- or mentioned earlier about 

             25            rebranding.  Our desire is to see more and more 
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              1            students take advantage of this because we know that 

              2            there are more students that have specific needs that 

              3            can be addressed through an alternative setting.  But 

              4            one of the things that we need to look at is kind of 

              5            how things are set up now and logistically what we're 

              6            doing with our students. 

              7                 So the amendment request today, number one was 

              8            the digital learning plans of the charter -- and I'll 

              9            talk more about that; adjust the enrollment cap from 

             10            500 up to 2500; and then also switching of campuses 

             11            between ACE North and our ALE setting. 

             12                 So the digital learning plan -- and I know you-

             13            all have reviewed the plan, DESE has.  Please 

             14            interrupt me at any point for questions.  I just 

             15            wanted to give you as much background information as 

             16            I could.  But as Mr. Johnston said, we will have 

             17            asynchronous and synchronous instruction.  We will be 

             18            utilizing Edmentum, which is an approved provider of 

             19            content.  We will also be using Google Classroom as 

             20            our learning management system.  In the past we have 

             21            used APEX as our provider at ACE.  And so moving to 

             22            Edmentum we did a really thorough review over the 

             23            past year-and-a-half of the curriculum options that 

             24            are out there, and, thankfully, Edmentum is one of 

             25            those approved digital providers.  And also we felt 
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              1            like from the support pieces in the individualized 

              2            instruction it was in a much better spot for our 

              3            students than the APEX program was.  We also have 

              4            staff that are going to have time dedicated in their 

              5            day specifically to digital instruction. 

              6                 One thing we learned this year is that we 

              7            actually -- we came before the Committee last summer 

              8            -- I think a lot of the people did, as we were 

              9            struggling to figure out what we were going to do to 

             10            open up with Covid.  And I was able, Dr. Thurman and 

             11            I, to speak virtually with this panel, and at that 

             12            time we wanted to have our secondary digital be under 

             13            the ACE umbrella.  And then we just recognized, with 

             14            the help of Mrs. Coffman, that there were a lot of 

             15            other moving pieces to that.  And so we moved our 

             16            digital back to all campuses, and so we had digital 

             17            students and staff spread out amongst 17 campuses 

             18            across our district.  And one of the things that we 

             19            learned through that was it is incredibly difficult 

             20            to juggle the demands of handling digital students, 

             21            instructors that are doing both onsite and digital or 

             22            some just purely digital, and then also to maintain 

             23            some consistency in what the instruction looked like 

             24            in one place over another.  And so we really felt 

             25            like pulling this all together at ACE under one 
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              1            umbrella and one roof was going to be best serving 

              2            our students in making sure that those staff members 

              3            that want to teach digitally, that want to work with 

              4            virtual students, let's give them a spot and give 

              5            them specific training and skills they need to excel. 

              6                 One thing that you will notice is that we also 

              7            will provide onsite intervention.  Friday is actually 

              8            going to be set up purely as an intervention day for 

              9            students that want to come onsite and want to receive 

             10            some specific instruction, if they so desire, and 

             11            assessment, of course.  We found out that -- this 

             12            year that students will come on campus for 

             13            assessments, for standardized tests, both for our 

             14            formative assessments and NWEA MAP, and also ACT 

             15            Aspire and Alpha.  We had students on campus.  And so 

             16            we're going to do the same thing and have the 

             17            facility that we can do that at ACE. 

             18                 We will also provide for students with 

             19            exceptionalities, be it our ALES, be it our gifted 

             20            students, students on an IEP or 504, and we will have 

             21            staff members that are certified and trained in that 

             22            that can work with those students.  And one key thing 

             23            to this is that this DLP will be separate from the 

             24            ALE component of ACE.  And so we have an interview 

             25            process, we have an application process for these 
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              1            students to insure that they are prepared to step 

              2            into digital learning.  And those students are not 

              3            going to be identified as ALE students, and so 

              4            therefore would not count towards that number. 

              5                 And I know, Mrs. Coffman, we can talk a little 

              6            bit about it now, if you want to, just what that 

              7            looks like for our campus or for our ALE? 

              8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yes.  So we have had quite a 

              9            bit of conversation about this, trying to decide 

             10            what's the best thing for the students and the school 

             11            district along the way.  And we do have our ALE 

             12            representatives, I believe, online with us. 

             13                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Okay. 

             14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So they can jump in there.  

             15            Jared and C.W. are both on there, I believe. 

             16                 But, so the way I'm reading this and 

             17            understanding, just for clarification, this will be 

             18            the only digital learning opportunity for students? 

             19                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, ma'am.     

             20                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  They will need to enroll into 

             21            ACE to be a part of that; so it won't be happening 

             22            out in all of the other campuses? 

             23                 MR. RANDOLPH:  That is correct. 

             24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And then by not having those 

             25            students identified as ALE, I think that's going to 
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              1            solve most of the questions of the ALE team.  But 

              2            let's jump to them real quick. 

              3                 C.W. and Jared, do you have any questions or 

              4            concerns that you want to bring up? 

              5                 MR. GARDENHIRE:  No.  My suggestion was going to 

              6            be that they separate out the ALE from the ACE 

              7            component and -- because it wasn't clear in what I 

              8            was reading in the plan that was what was going to 

              9            happen.   

             10                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Right. 

             11                 MR. GARDENHIRE:  So that kind of took some of my 

             12            anxiety away.  So there will be pieces that we'll 

             13            need to look at on -- from the ALE component aspect, 

             14            being on the main campus, but we can deal with those 

             15            later. 

             16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So tell me, maybe to help 

             17            explain that a little bit more, why are we keeping 

             18            and what's the long-term plan for -- I would assume 

             19            that the reason you're keeping ALE and the digital 

             20            learning together under one LEA number is we don't 

             21            know -- we don't know what the future of digital 

             22            learning is.  It could be huge numbers, it could be 

             23            small numbers; it could at some point level out and 

             24            have a reasonable number.  Kind of talk us through 

             25            what your thought process is about having a separate 
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              1            ALE, a separate LEA, or -- and right now for the 

              2            Panel to understand also ACE is exempt from a letter 

              3            grade because they are an ALE, classified as an ALE.  

              4            So kind of talk the Panel through that. 

              5                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Sure.  And I will tell you, if I 

              6            can -- there we go -- one of the things that we'd 

              7            looked at, why we wanted to have it under the charter 

              8            umbrella truthfully was the flexibility that already 

              9            exists within the charter.  Staff are trained in 

             10            working with at-risk students, but also students that 

             11            may not fit the standard mold of a K-12 student.  So 

             12            we felt like it was a little bit better fit there. 

             13                 In terms of seeking a separate LEA, you're 

             14            exactly right; we don't know what the future of 

             15            digital learning is.  And I can say, you know, at the 

             16            height this year we had over 1500 students K-12 

             17            enrolled in virtual instruction.  And so when we 

             18            first put this application together, you know, for us 

             19            2500 was a very -- we felt like a very reasonable 

             20            number that could be achieved.  But as you can see, 

             21            we had just over 100 applicants when it came down to 

             22            it and we had our open enrollment period for digital.  

             23            And at that time there really was not a huge push; 

             24            students wanted to get back on campus, parents wanted 

             25            students back on campus.  Now seeing as how Covid 
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              1            numbers have increased over the past few weeks that 

              2            may change, that may adjust, but that's where that 

              3            number came from was us looking there.  But long-term 

              4            I think that we can talk more about that and you'll 

              5            hear more about that later this fall when we come 

              6            back for our renewal.  But we still feel that digital 

              7            learning is not set up for a standard K-12 student; 

              8            for someone that is ready to walk in the door and 

              9            thrive in the school setting that may not be ideal.  

             10            And so it just kind of went hand-in-hand with us for 

             11            those students and for that program that they would, 

             12            you know, put together, and that's where -- did that 

             13            answer the question, Ms. Coffman? 

             14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Talk a little bit about, is 

             15            there going to be -- you've got 101 applications 

             16            right now.  Talk to us a little bit about what's the 

             17            flow; will students be able to move in and out, back 

             18            to onsite, move into virtual learning? 

             19                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Sure.  So another highlight for 

             20            us of having the digital in with -- under the ACE 

             21            charter was that the transition, truthfully, if a 

             22            student did want to come back on campus, is that our 

             23            goal would be to move them at ACE where we have a 

             24            hybrid setting.  So it's not necessarily 8:00 to 

             25            3:30, five days a week, but they have sort of a 
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              1            hybrid environment; they can come back nine hours, 12 

              2            hours, 15 hours that we can transition them.  And if 

              3            they do decide and we decide collectively that it's 

              4            best that they be back onsite full-time, then we have 

              5            a process currently that students come to ACE or may 

              6            go back to a traditional campus, and there's an 

              7            application and a transition period that we use.  And 

              8            we're comfortable in working -- various 

              9            administrations work with our ACE staff.  And Mrs. 

             10            Jones, who's our assistant principal, and Mrs. Lair, 

             11            Carrie Lair, wanted to be here today but they're 

             12            actually at the ALE conference, and so they're 

             13            working there.  But they have a really strong 

             14            relationship and communication with the counselors 

             15            and administration at our other campuses.  And so 

             16            that's where we would see that being able to thrive 

             17            there.  I will say we will probably end up opening up 

             18            applications for online again at some point.  But 

             19            really from a staffing standpoint we set a six-week 

             20            window at the end of the spring and early summer, and 

             21            we really wanted to hold to that, but I do anticipate 

             22            that students can apply to be in ACE at any point 

             23            during the year and we would probably have that same 

             24            conversation.  And right now, what we've told 

             25            families that want to apply is apply to ACE, be a 
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              1            part of that team, be a part of that program.  And if 

              2            we feel like we need to make that move and it's good 

              3            for -- you know, best for you, then we can make that 

              4            move. 

              5                 So that would be -- but again, ACE, we kind of 

              6            do that transition point for our students to make it 

              7            a little bit easier.  Because that was one of the 

              8            other issues that emerged last year was students 

              9            going onsite and digital, you know, in the midst of a 

             10            year.  And as many times as we tried to hold firm on 

             11            things, life happens and you've got to make 

             12            exceptions.  And so it did create some problems for 

             13            our staff during the school year. 

             14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Talk to us just a little bit 

             15            more about relocating the campuses -- 

             16                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, ma'am. 

             17                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- and your enrollment cap 

             18            request. 

             19                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Perfect.  So the enrollment cap 

             20            increase again just right now is that we are at 500.  

             21            And anticipating that we would have much more digital 

             22            requests than we did, we wanted to raise that cap to 

             23            a 2,000 more student threshold.  We didn't hit that 

             24            number with applications.  But I will also say, 

             25            mentioning what I did earlier about the rebranding 
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              1            that we hope to bring up in the fall to this Panel, 

              2            we anticipate having much more involvement in ACE.  

              3            We want to grow that program, and so this 500 to 2500 

              4            cap just gives us that flexibility to do so.  We -- 

              5            you know, we have a lot of students that we think are 

              6            looking for something different, and especially as we 

              7            start looking at what students are pursuing via 

              8            homeschool and other routes.  We want to be able to 

              9            offer something in the district that would be 

             10            different than what's going on on the regular campus.  

             11            So that's where we came up with that 2500 student 

             12            mark. 

             13                 In terms of the location shift, so we have two 

             14            current locations.  The location that is on your left 

             15            would be our current Academic Center of Excellence, 

             16            as you can see there, and about half the building is 

             17            set up -- you can see the ALE for our students that 

             18            are in that ALE setting on the left-hand side.  And 

             19            our desire is that we will actually take that ALE 

             20            side that's currently there, which is an open 

             21            classroom environment, has cubicles of sorts where 

             22            students are working virtually, being supported -- 

             23            or, sorry -- working digitally and being supported by 

             24            onsite staff, is that we would take those students 

             25            and move them over to the campus on the right, which 
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              1            is currently housing our ACE North campus and that --

              2            you saw there's about 80 some-odd students that they 

              3            take classes via APEX, their core courses, and we -- 

              4            I'll talk a little bit more about that information.  

              5            And then, our onsite at the high school, freshmen 

              6            academy, or one of our junior highs for some of their 

              7            other electives.  It's sort of an in-between; they're 

              8            both getting virtual small group instruction with 

              9            someone under our ACE staff, but they're also going 

             10            on campus.  So our desire is that we would move those 

             11            students from that campus and move them over to ACE.  

             12            And then that ALE -- and I've got some blueprints on, 

             13            like I said, what we're planning on doing with that 

             14            structure to make it a little bit more suitable for 

             15            an ALE setting, a little bit more wide-open with some 

             16            small classroom spaces.  And then that half that was 

             17            the ALE will actually be opened up to our digital 

             18            setting.  So again right now you can see there half 

             19            the building for hybrid, half the building for 

             20            fulltime ALE.  ACE North is a transition location; it 

             21            was originally started and we came before the 

             22            committee I think about six years ago, seven years 

             23            ago -- came before this panel and wanted to have sort 

             24            of a transition place where students could have both 

             25            an ACE life environment but also be able to take some 
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              1            courses and programs on campus.  But this is not a 

              2            hybrid setting at ACE North.  And so our desire then 

              3            is to move those ACE North students and program back 

              4            over to the ACE and what we're calling our Cabot 

              5            Panther Digital Academy on that campus.  And then our 

              6            ALE, our 5-12, will be located on the high school 

              7            campus.  And regular ALE staff will be there on the 

              8            CHS campus, but we'll also have 5-12 staff members 

              9            who can push in there periodically, depending on what 

             10            the specific needs are of students, where there's a 

             11            desire, if there's something else that they need; 

             12            it's just a lot more centralized for us.  It's also 

             13            directly across the road from Central Office, and so 

             14            it's a little bit better proximity for us in case 

             15            issues arise. 

             16                 The CPDA side, one other thing that I do want to 

             17            point out is we will actually offer transportation.  

             18            That is one thing that we've offered in the morning 

             19            and afternoon for our ACE students.  Again, it's a 

             20            hybrid setting, not set up for an 8:00 to 3:30.  But 

             21            knowing we have students that have been on campus 

             22            five days a week with that ACE North we want to still 

             23            offer them that same environment.  So we're actually 

             24            offering transportation to all our other campuses.  

             25            Every period there will be buses running between ACE 
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              1            and those other campuses.  So they can still take 

              2            courses at ACE, still have that small group 

              3            environment, but if they want to go take -- you know, 

              4            if they want to go and be involved in -- you know, we 

              5            have a wonderful Case agri program.  So if they want 

              6            to take some of our CTE courses on campus, then 

              7            they've got the opportunity to take the bus to do 

              8            that.  And that's where our proposed shift in the 

              9            locations is going to be.  

             10                 And then here is just a blueprint that we have, 

             11            working with the architecture firm, on what the ALE 

             12            campus will look like.  And so you can see there on 

             13            the left-hand side there's two large classrooms.  

             14            Across the hallway, that larger classroom above -- as 

             15            you can see, a wide open workspace with some desks -- 

             16            that will actually be set up for I think 9-12, is the 

             17            way I had it drawn up.  And then that smaller campus, 

             18            because of our numbers, would be set up for 5-9 

             19            students or 5-8, just depending upon the class 

             20            numbers and the, you know, number of students that 

             21            are going to have ALE at that time. 

             22                 Oops, sorry.  Did I go too quickly? 

             23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  How many students are 

             24            typically in your ALE program at a time?  I mean, I 

             25            know they come in and -- 
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              1                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Sure.  I think the biggest that 

              2            we've had in recent memory is about 42, 43 students 

              3            at one time in that fulltime ALE setting.  So, fairly 

              4            low. 

              5                 And then again just some key things that I 

              6            brought up earlier about the DLP for ACE flexibility 

              7            offered in the charter, the current minimum of nine 

              8            hours and direct instruction, it's just a little bit 

              9            easier from a hybrid to a fully digital, or vice-

             10            versa, and then we can have that transition for our 

             11            staff.  But also one of the things that we are 

             12            working with our digital students on is -- so we're 

             13            going to offer as much as we can either through 

             14            Edmentum or through ARVA for those courses that can't 

             15            be used in Edmentum.  We are also doing Teacher in a 

             16            Box for some courses.  Edmentum, for example, offers 

             17            a hospitality course and they have a fulltime teacher 

             18            that teaches this course, and we don't have that; we 

             19            don't offer that in our CTE program.  And so we felt 

             20            like there was some opportunity for some courses in 

             21            Edmentum.  But we also -- all those digital students 

             22            will have the opportunity, along with all of our 

             23            students at ACE -- any elective they want to take on 

             24            campus they can do so and we'll work with their 

             25            schedule and even potentially transportation to do 
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              1            so.  But this just gives us a little bit more 

              2            flexibility. 

              3                 And I will tell you again, from the stress level 

              4            and the logistics nightmare that it was this year 

              5            trying to make digital work at all our secondary 

              6            campuses, having students both onsite and digital in 

              7            one classroom, having teachers that were going from 

              8            one spot to another, trying to control the transition 

              9            of onsite and digital, we just felt like having it 

             10            housed under our charter umbrella was going to make 

             11            things smoother and take that stress off of our 

             12            secondary campuses, because, you know, our high 

             13            school has 2300 and some-odd students on campus.  And 

             14            so if we can remove that stressor from them it would 

             15            be a lot easier in the long-term and more beneficial 

             16            to our students, truthfully. 

             17                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And then, Aaron, you and I 

             18            talked about -- but I think it's important that we 

             19            put that on the record and talk out-loud about we're 

             20            going to need to watch the numbers, watch the ratios 

             21            between -- 

             22                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Absolutely. 

             23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- ALE and digital learning 

             24            students and make a determination of -- at some point 

             25            if those are out of balance, that the district would 
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              1            be removed from the letter grade exemption. 

              2                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, ma'am.  Yes.  And so 

              3            currently because of the ALE status under our -- with 

              4            our charter we don't get a letter grade.  We still 

              5            are accountable, absolutely, for our students, for 

              6            our scores, but we don't get that A through F rating 

              7            the way it's set up.  Increasing the enrollment cap 

              8            is going to bring more students into the program.  

              9            And so what Mrs. Coffman and I talked about was that 

             10            we recognize that -- so again I brought up the 

             11            numbers, 330 students currently enrolled in ACE.  If 

             12            we hit 320 -- honestly, with 300 digital students we 

             13            need to start having a conversation about, okay, do 

             14            we still qualify for that A through F exemption.  And 

             15            I think the rationale would be if we get more digital 

             16            students than we have ALE students, then that answer 

             17            would be no, and we would just make sure that we have 

             18            that in writing and figure out what's the cleanest 

             19            way to make that work.  But talking with our 

             20            stakeholders, they understand that.  I had the 

             21            conversation with our superintendent; our school 

             22            board is aware.  But we understand that that may be 

             23            where we end up. 

             24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So just for clarity for our 

             25            panel members and for our viewing audience, they 
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              1            certainly are held accountable and those students' 

              2            scores roll back into the high school. 

              3                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Correct. 

              4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So they -- every student does 

              5            count -- 

              6                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Correct. 

              7                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- in our accountability 

              8            system, but this school's LEA number is not assigned 

              9            a letter grade. 

             10                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Correct. 

             11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  The data are rolled back.  

             12            And so if you're looking on our typical 

             13            accountability-at-a-glance, sometimes you'll see 

             14            where the score at the top for that school doesn't 

             15            match the big box where it talks about the ESSA 

             16            Index.  So sometimes you'll see school districts or 

             17            schools like ACE where the numbers are not exactly 

             18            the same, and that's because their data rolled back 

             19            into the high school -- 

             20                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Correct. 

             21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- where the students are. 

             22                 MR. RANDOLPH:  And we spent I don't know how 

             23            many hours in early fall -- 

             24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Explaining that. 

             25                 MR. RANDOLPH:  -- recoding -- well, recoding 
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              1            those students too -- 

              2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yeah. 

              3                 MR. RANDOLPH:  -- to make sure they carry back 

              4            over to their home campuses.  And so we've done it 

              5            for 17 years and we'll keep doing it. 

              6                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Thank you. 

              7                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, ma'am. 

              8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Questions? 

              9                 Ms. Wright-McMurray. 

             10                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Thank you for sharing and 

             11            presenting.  That was helpful to better understand 

             12            what you guys have as a plan. 

             13                 The only main question that I have -- and it's 

             14            just to try to get a little bit more detail and get a 

             15            better understanding of the Fridays.  So under your 

             16            intervention plan you have CTE and then electives set 

             17            aside for Fridays, but then also will -- it looks 

             18            like that you say that that's also a day to where 

             19            just in general if there are things the students need 

             20            to work on.  So how is that -- or just kind of give 

             21            me a little bit more detail how that's going to be 

             22            balanced, if a student is coming in for CTE work but 

             23            then they have all these other things they're going 

             24            to need to do as well.  How is that going to be 

             25            balanced -- 
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              1                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Certainly. 

              2                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  -- to make sure CTE is not 

              3            kind of pushed to the side? 

              4                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Absolutely.    And so we 

              5            understand that we will have students that are taking 

              6            classes five days a week.  So again I mentioned if 

              7            they're enrolled in one of our Case courses, they're 

              8            going on campus for that.  And so on our Fridays set 

              9            aside for intervention we've got a pretty good 

             10            schedule lined up.  And actually our assistant 

             11            principal is -- has a pretty good intervention 

             12            already for all ACE students, including digital, 

             13            right now, 8:00 to 3:30, utilizing teacher planning 

             14            periods and everything else.  But on that Friday we 

             15            know that there's going to be students that aren't 

             16            going to be able to be pulled for intervention in 

             17            that block of time because they're going to have 

             18            those courses.  And so we will work with those kids 

             19            to make sure that they still have scheduled 

             20            intervention time even within that schedule and that 

             21            CTE is also set aside.  We have a staff member on 

             22            campus right now, Mrs. Beverly Williams; she works 

             23            with our CTE students and she's our JAGG sponsor for 

             24            that campus.  And so she would also have that 

             25            ability; that would be her supervision time, so she 
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              1            could go out and see students on campus if they 

              2            weren't set up for intervention too.  Yes, ma'am. 

              3                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Thanks.  And so -- sorry, 

              4            just one more question. 

              5                 So I'm glad you mentioned JAGG because that was 

              6            my question.  So the students that are doing the 

              7            virtual digital piece, do they also still have access 

              8            to -- 

              9                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Absolutely. 

             10                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  -- JAGG and a JAGG 

             11            specialist -- 

             12                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Absolutely. 

             13                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: -- and all the resources 

             14            that -- 

             15                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yeah. 

             16                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Okay. 

             17                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yeah, we are not precluding 

             18            students that are digital or hybrid to have the 

             19            opportunity to sign up for any other courses that 

             20            anyone else on our campus would. 

             21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Ms. Saracini, any questions? 

             22                 MS. SARACINI:  Clarify one time for me, this is 

             23            7-12; correct? 

             24                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Correct. 

             25                 MS. SARACINI:  And it's separated from the ALE 
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              1            that's -- 

              2                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Correct. 

              3                 MS. SARACINI:  -- 5-12; correct?  Okay.  I just 

              4            wanted to make sure -- 

              5                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yeah. 

              6                 MS. SARACINI:  -- that that was my 

              7            understanding. 

              8                 MR. RANDOLPH:  We have grand visions of doing K-

              9            12, and then I shared the numbers with you.  When we 

             10            had 24 students K-6, it was very hard for our school 

             11            board to justify, you know, making that a viable 

             12            option for our students.  Yes, ma'am. 

             13                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Williams, do you have 

             14            questions? 

             15                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Yes.  What is your K-12 

             16            enrollment? 

             17                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Total K-12 enrollment, we're at 

             18            about 12,400 at the moment, give or take. 

             19                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.  Thank you.  I was just 

             20            looking to see what the 2500, what the percentage of 

             21            that would be.  This seems reasonable.  Thank you. 

             22                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, sir.  Thank you. 

             23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Baldwin? 

             24                 MR. BALDWIN:  I saw in your Student Support 

             25            section that you-all are planning to review grades 
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              1            weekly.  And you have a Level 1 and a Level 2 for 

              2            kids that are struggling, I guess to get extra 

              3            support.  Talk to me and explain to me a little bit 

              4            more about the weekly review.  Is that just the 

              5            teacher reviewing with the student or is that -- tell 

              6            me how that works. 

              7                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Sure.  So the weekly review, 

              8            there will be time for students and teachers to have 

              9            that interaction.  We also will have, you know, an SS 

             10            team, a student support team, RTI -- I can't recall 

             11            exactly what this campus -- their verbiage they're 

             12            using.  But they're going to have those weekly talks 

             13            about students as well to determine -- because, you 

             14            know, we may have one student that -- or a student 

             15            that has a math teacher, but it's important that that 

             16            math teacher know how that student is doing in 

             17            English and doing in social studies and so-on and so-

             18            forth.  So they're going to be part of those weekly 

             19            conversations.  And then whoever the home teacher is 

             20            or advisor, they'll be the ones to work with their 

             21            students on that. 

             22                 MR. BALDWIN:  Thank you. 

             23                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, sir. 

             24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers? 

             25                 DR. FLOWERS:  My question is similar in regards 
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              1            to Level 1 intervention.  When you talk about under 

              2            Student Supports the students who did not excel at 

              3            digital, how to maybe best -- so do you utilize the 

              4            same monitor academic policy as well for them? 

              5                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes. 

              6                 DR. FLOWERS:  Okay. 

              7                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, sir.  I mean that was one of 

              8            the things that I think was so difficult for us with 

              9            digital learning, especially during -- can I say 

             10            during the pandemic or are we out?  I can't remember.   

             11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  (Shaking head from side to 

             12            side) 

             13                 MR. RANDOLPH:  But, yeah, we're in.  Okay.   

             14                 But especially with last year that was difficult 

             15            for us was that we -- it was very -- it was very hard 

             16            for us to be able to tell families that this isn't 

             17            working.  You know, we did home visits, we did 

             18            everything we could, myself included, Central Office 

             19            staff going out to work with families.  And so what 

             20            we want to do is to keep such a close hand on those 

             21            students because we don't have, you know, physical 

             22            interaction with them.  So they're going to get the 

             23            same support and we're going to have that constant 

             24            communication.  And where -- again, ACE works a 

             25            little bit better in this way because I think they've 
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              1            been interviewing and interviews usually take 

              2            anywhere from 30 minutes to an hour-and-a-half with 

              3            students to determine, you know, what's the best 

              4            setting for them to go in this route, make sure that 

              5            that support is there. 

              6                 DR. FLOWERS:  Thank you. 

              7                 MR. RANDOLPH:  You bet. 

              8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Any additional 

              9            questions? 

             10                 Then I think we're ready for a motion. 

             11                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I move approval. 

             12                 MS. SARACINI:  Second. 

             13                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So a motion by Ms. Wright-

             14            McMurray and a second by Ms. Saracini to approve the 

             15            application as presented. 

             16                 Any discussion? 

             17                 All those in favor? 

             18                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 

             19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed? 

             20                 All right, Panel Members, if you'll go to your 

             21            voting sheets and enter information.   

             22                 And while they're doing that, I will just say 

             23            that, as always, we're always impressed with the work 

             24            that's going on there.  And I'm really excited about 

             25            having this conversation in the fall about what we're 
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              1            seeing at the beginning of the school year and 

              2            knowing kind of what the adjustments may need to be 

              3            and what your future plans are and what data we're 

              4            going to need to collect to -- 

              5                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Absolutely. 

              6                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- know the most important 

              7            information.  So I look forward to that presentation 

              8            as well. 

              9                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Well, Ms. Coffman and Panel, I 

             10            appreciate the time and appreciate your support. 

             11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.   

             12                 So, Panel Members, as soon as you finish your 

             13            voting sheets, if you'd like to go ahead and record 

             14            your justification. 

             15                 And then, Ms. Wright-McMurray, if you're ready, 

             16            do you want to share yours with Mr. Randolph? 

             17                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I wrote the district has a 

             18            well thought-out plan to implement digital learning 

             19            in the district and expand to meet the needs of their 

             20            students. 

             21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers. 

             22                 DR. FLOWERS:  Approved.  I look forward to 

             23            hearing more about how the students are supported 

             24            utilizing this plan. 

             25                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Go ahead, Mr. Baldwin. 
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              1                 MR. BALDWIN:  Thank you.  I voted for the 

              2            application.  It was a good presentation.  I think it 

              3            will work well for students. 

              4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Ms. Saracini. 

              5                 MS. SARACINI:  I support the Cabot Academic 

              6            Center for Excellence amendment because it's a well 

              7            thought-out plan. 

              8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Williams. 

              9                 DR. WILLIAMS:  We're off mute here. 

             10                 Yes, I support the motion.  This would provide 

             11            both students and parents additional educational 

             12            opportunities during this hopefully post-pandemic 

             13            time. 

             14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Well, congratulations, Mr. 

             15            Randolph.  And we look forward to hearing good 

             16            information and sharing data with you in the fall.  

             17            Thank you. 

             18  II.  CONSIDERATION OF CHARTER AMENDMENT 

             19       a)  FRIENDSHIP ASPIRE ACADEMY PINE BLUFF 

             20                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston, item number 2 

             21            please. 

             22                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Yes, ma'am.  Tim Johnston, DESE 

             23            Charter Unit. 

             24                 As Ms. Hyatt already said, this presentation was 

             25            presented last month.  But Friendship Aspire Academy 
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              1            Pine Bluff is requesting an amendment to add an 

              2            additional campus, increase the enrollment cap, and 

              3            add additional waivers.  The charter was originally 

              4            granted in 2017 and serves students in grades K-3 

              5            with an enrollment cap of 240.  The charter has been 

              6            approved to expand to grade 6 and increase the 

              7            enrollment cap to -- that should actually be 480, and 

              8            I will get the minutes corrected; I just caught that 

              9            mistake. 

             10                 (COURT REPORTERS NOTE:  Ms. Saracini exited the 

             11            meeting.) 

             12                 MR. JOHNSTON:  So they've already been approved 

             13            to increase their enrollment cap to 480 by 2023-2024 

             14            school year. 

             15                 And Phong Tran, Superintendent, and Virginia 

             16            Perry Henry, Deputy Superintendent, are both here in 

             17            person, if you have any questions. 

             18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you. 

             19                 Good morning. 

             20                 SUPT. TRAN:  Good morning.  How are you? 

             21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  If you'll raise your right 

             22            hand -- 

             23                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, ma'am. 

             24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Do you swear to -- or affirm 

             25            that the testimony you're about to give shall be the 
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              1            truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth? 

              2                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, ma'am. 

              3                 MS. HENRY:  I do. 

              4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you. 

              5                 And if you'll state your name and just kind of 

              6            pick up where we left off and -- 

              7                 SUPT. TRAN:  Sure.  I'm Tran, Phong Tran, 

              8            Superintendent. 

              9                 MS. HENRY:  Virginia Perry Henry, Deputy 

             10            Superintendent. 

             11                 SUPT. TRAN:  And we have Mr. Dukes, he's our 

             12            principal at the Pine Bluff campus, that's here as 

             13            well just in case you have any questions.  But also 

             14            we have Mr. William Fells from the mayor's office, 

             15            from Pine Bluff, who's also online if you have any 

             16            other questions for them.  And Ms. Kincyl Kelly, our 

             17            special education director.  So, yes. 

             18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.   

             19                 MS. HENRY:  So we don't have another 

             20            presentation.  We just wanted to pick up where we 

             21            left off last time.  So we're here before you today 

             22            asking for permission to add a campus on Main Street 

             23            in downtown Pine Bluff and to increase the enrollment 

             24            cap from 480 to 880. 

             25                 SUPT. TRAN:  So if you all have any questions 
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              1            for us, we're here for that. 

              2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And so, Ms. Hyatt, I'm 

              3            assuming that similar waivers that they have in their 

              4            other campuses are the waivers that they're 

              5            requesting.  Is that correct?  Or are they requesting 

              6            any additional? 

              7                 MS. HYATT:  Mary Claire Hyatt. 

              8                 It's the same waivers.  We verified that in 

              9            their original application for the campus -- for the 

             10            addition of the campus. 

             11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  And then the digital 

             12            learning plan has already been reviewed by the DESE 

             13            team and recommended. 

             14                 So, Dr. Flowers, do you want to start on your 

             15            side?  Do you have any additional questions? 

             16                 DR. FLOWERS:  Yes.  Will you talk to me a bit 

             17            about the interest in the new campus in regards to 

             18            teachers? 

             19                 MS. HENRY:  Certainly.  In regards to teachers? 

             20                 DR. FLOWERS:  Yes, in regards to hiring 

             21            teachers. 

             22                 MS. HENRY:  Oh.  We will basically do the same 

             23            thing that we always do and that we've done at -- 

             24            well, for this school year, is actually seek to 

             25            recruit highly -- Arkansas qualified and certified 
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              1            teachers for the new campus.  We advertise on Indeed, 

              2            we advertise on SchoolSpring; we have a great 

              3            partnership with University of Arkansas at Pine Bluff 

              4            and their teaching area. 

              5                 SUPT. TRAN:  But on top of that, we actually 

              6            also have a FIAT [ps] division, which is the 

              7            Friendship Institute for the Maxim of Teaching.  What 

              8            that does is that -- so what we've been doing this 

              9            year is that some of our -- some of the teachers are 

             10            not certified; right?  So they're highly-qualified 

             11            but not -- they're not certified.  So what we're 

             12            doing is that -- providing professional development, 

             13            getting them through the Praxis test, because a lot 

             14            of them have passed their course credits but they 

             15            didn't pass the Praxis exam.  So what we're doing is 

             16            that -- that's part of Friendship is that we're 

             17            getting them -- this is afterschool hours; we're 

             18            tutoring on how to -- you know, how to take the exam, 

             19            like all those questions, so-on, so-forth, and what 

             20            is needed to pass the exam so that they can get 

             21            certified.  So on top of that as well we've been 

             22            partnering with UAPB to see, you know, what can we do 

             23            to help out with the incoming students.  So, you 

             24            know, being that it's Pine Bluff, you know, it's away 

             25            from Little Rock; you know, that's the teachers that 



                                                  �

                                                                               43



              1            we have there.  But we're actually investing a lot in 

              2            the teachers and the -- I guess the freshmen and the 

              3            graduates that's coming out of UAPB in development to 

              4            make sure that they are certified.  So that's what 

              5            we're doing there as well. 

              6                 DR. FLOWERS:  Okay.  Thank you. 

              7                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Baldwin? 

              8                 MR. BALDWIN:  Yes.  On the building that you 

              9            already use, the structure is currently unoccupied.  

             10            And will you have to do any renovation work or 

             11            anything to prepare the building? 

             12                 SUPT. TRAN:  So, are you talking about the new 

             13            campus that we're looking at or are you talking about 

             14            the existing campus that we have? 

             15                 MS. HENRY:  The new campus. 

             16                 MR. BALDWIN:  The new campus.  So we will be 

             17            purchasing -- we're in talks, and City of Pine Bluff 

             18            too, to look at some land down there.  It's on Main 

             19            Street.  And so we'll be looking at purchasing that 

             20            plot.  And I think it is to renovate; I could be 

             21            mistaken.  But it's to renovate that building to 

             22            house our K-3. 

             23                 MS. HENRY:  So construction will be necessary. 

             24                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, sir. 

             25                 MR. BALDWIN:  Okay. 
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              1                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And will you have time to do 

              2            that construction before school starts? 

              3                 SUPT. TRAN:  So it won't be this school year.  

              4            It will be done for the next school year. 

              5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay. 

              6                 SUPT. TRAN:  So it's the 23-24.  So we'll have a 

              7            whole year to go ahead and do the construction and 

              8            some renovations. 

              9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And your charter is set to 

             10            expire in 2023? 

             11                 SUPT. TRAN:  23-24, if I'm not mistaken. 

             12                 MS. HENRY:  It's 2023. 

             13                 SUPT. TRAN:  2023. 

             14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  June, yeah. 

             15                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yes. 

             16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  That's what I've got on my 

             17            notes.  Okay. 

             18                 Dr. Williams? 

             19                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, just a quick thought.  I 

             20            like the idea, one, that this is a year away; two, 

             21            that you're putting school downtown.  This is more of 

             22            a comment than anything -- well, a question and a 

             23            comment.  I remember when KIPP was put downtown in 

             24            Helena and it really revitalized Main Street by 

             25            bringing more parents to the area just to pick up and 
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              1            drop off kids. 

              2                 One, I would encourage you if you hadn't talked 

              3            to the Chamber in Pine Bluff to work with them to see 

              4            what synergy you can develop by having people -- 

              5            everybody is working very hard to get people 

              6            downtown, and picking up and dropping off kids -- and 

              7            Mr. Baldwin was part of that effort at that time. 

              8                 So the -- my other question is just, well, 

              9            really to that same point, is have you all worked 

             10            with anyone from the downtown area about putting the 

             11            school there? 

             12                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, Dr. Williams.  And I guess 

             13            I'll talk.  So we've been working with Mayor 

             14            Washington, as well as Forward Pine Bluff, and that's 

             15            why they support us in putting a school downtown.  

             16            But that school is also good for that -- the area 

             17            down there as well because, as you know, there's a 

             18            casino that was built -- 

             19                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 

             20                 SUPT. TRAN:  -- close to that area.  And so 

             21            that's why we're trying to serve, for those parents 

             22            that's working at the casinos and those parents that 

             23            are close to that downtown area there's a school for 

             24            them to send their child there. 

             25                 MS. HENRY:  And William Fells from the Pine 
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              1            Bluff mayor's office is actually on the Zoom today.  

              2            So he can also speak, if you'd like to hear something 

              3            from him. 

              4                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Thank you.  I believe it was the 

              5            young man -- did he speak last time? 

              6                 MS. HENRY:  Yes, sir. 

              7                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, that is correct, sir. 

              8                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Absolutely.  Thank you. 

              9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Ms. Wright-McMurray? 

             10                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Hi.  Thank you again for 

             11            coming back and visiting with us.  I just had a 

             12            question.  I see you have a waiver for Guidance 

             13            Counselor or -- so what is your -- what's your plan?  

             14            How do you implement that in your schools? 

             15                 MS. HENRY:  Although we have a waiver for 

             16            Guidance Counselor, we have a social worker. 

             17                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Okay. 

             18                 MS. HENRY:  So that social worker acts in that 

             19            capacity, as well as our assistant principal and 

             20            principal, to fill in that gap. 

             21                 SUPT. TRAN:  Also, so our coaches that we have  

             22            -- so we have an ELA coach and mathematics coach as 

             23            well who is also, you know, assistant principal.  But 

             24            they also act as a guidance counselor.  But we do 

             25            have a social worker on staff. 



                                                  �

                                                                               47



              1                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  So outside of the socio-

              2            emotional needs of the students, so when it comes to 

              3            like career exploration, career guidance who on your 

              4            campus is responsible for addressing those needs? 

              5                 MS. HENRY:  The principal. 

              6                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Okay.   

              7                 MS. HENRY:  And he's here. 

              8                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Okay. 

              9                 SUPT. TRAN:  And at the moment -- and so because 

             10            we're a K-3, because the school -- we're a slow-

             11            growth model, so we grow a grade every year.  So, you 

             12            know, being a K-3, I mean he provides great support 

             13            and career guidance to our kids.  But that's still a 

             14            long way off, you know what I'm saying.  But, yes, he 

             15            acts in that capacity. 

             16                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Because I know we had some 

             17            discussion -- sorry -- about -- 

             18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Go ahead. 

             19                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  -- early interventions on 

             20            career exploration and guidance and things like that.   

             21                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yeah. 

             22                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  And so even though it is 

             23            K-3, as early as we can start having those 

             24            conversations with students we are encouraging that, 

             25            so when they get to the upper grades it's not such a 
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              1            "oh, this is introductory conversation." 

              2                 MS. HENRY:  He does have those conversations.  

              3            And he could probably speak more to it than I can.  

              4            But I know that he has groups and organizations that 

              5            are focused on career exploration. 

              6                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yeah.  Do you want Mr. Dukes to 

              7            talk? 

              8                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Sure. 

              9                 SUPT. TRAN:  Mr. Dukes. 

             10                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I probably need to swear you 

             11            in. 

             12                 MR. DUKES:  Okay. 

             13                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  If you'll raise your right 

             14            hand -- do you swear or affirm that the testimony 

             15            you're about to give shall be the truth, the whole 

             16            truth and nothing but the truth? 

             17                 MR. DUKES:  I do. 

             18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And state your name, please. 

             19                 MR. DUKES:  Jherrithan Dukes.  I serve as the 

             20            principal for the Friendship Aspire Academy in Pine 

             21            Bluff, the elementary school. 

             22                 To answer your question, Ms. Wright-McMurray, we 

             23            do spend a lot of time talking about career 

             24            exploration.  Actually, this year all of our 

             25            Friendship schools actually adopted a socio-emotional 
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              1            curriculum; so that was one of our ways of getting 

              2            focused on the socio-emotional needs of all of our 

              3            students.  In addition to that, prior to this school 

              4            year, this past school year we spent a lot of time 

              5            having community meetings, having school-wide 

              6            meetings, having small classroom meetings about 

              7            career exploration, socio-emotional things that are 

              8            going on, training schools for behavior, things that 

              9            may come up in the school and stuff like that.  So we 

             10            do have a social worker, which we're excited about, 

             11            that's coming in.  But even prior to that, we've 

             12            already had support in place for all of our students 

             13            for behavior and things like that.  We do have an 

             14            assistant principal at our school who does act in 

             15            that capacity to insure that our students have what 

             16            they need.  Like she said, it's a shared load with us 

             17            being a small charter school, but we do have 

             18            personnel in place already that do provide those 

             19            supports for all of our students. 

             20                 Is that it? 

             21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you. 

             22                 MR. DUKES:  Okay.  Thank you. 

             23                 MS. HENRY:  And at our last meeting we actually 

             24            rescinded the waiver for the Guidance Counselor 

             25            because we have a social worker. 
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              1                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Yeah, and that was my 

              2            other thing.  That's what I thought, but, you know, 

              3            I've slept since then. 

              4                 MS. HENRY:  You were right. 

              5                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  So I thought that you guys 

              6            did, but -- 

              7                 MS. HENRY:  We did. 

              8                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  -- it was still on there.  

              9            Okay. 

             10                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, ma'am. 

             11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Any additional 

             12            questions from the Panel? 

             13                 Then I'll accept a motion. 

             14                 MR. BALDWIN:  I move approval. 

             15                 DR. FLOWERS:  Second. 

             16                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Second. 

             17                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So I have a motion from Mr. 

             18            Baldwin and a second from Dr. Flowers. 

             19                 Any discussion? 

             20                 All those in favor? 

             21                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 

             22                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed? 

             23                 Motion passes. 

             24                 SUPT. TRAN:  Thank you. 

             25                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  If you'll give us a moment to 
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              1            respond. 

              2                 SUPT. TRAN:  Appreciate you all.  Thank you. 

              3                 MS. HENRY:  Thank you. 

              4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you. 

              5                 And, Panel Members, as soon as you're ready, 

              6            just go ahead and share your response. 

              7                     (A FEW MOMENTS OF SILENCE) 

              8                 DR. WILLIAMS:  I'm having trouble accessing my 

              9            voting sheet.  I can't get it to move from the 

             10            previous one on my laptop.  So when I'm ready I could 

             11            just read it. 

             12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Go ahead, Dr. Williams. 

             13                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.  I support the motion.  

             14            Increasing enrollment and adding the downtown site 

             15            will create opportunities and also create educational 

             16            opportunities for students and parents, and also meet 

             17            the needs of industry by parents having a school in 

             18            the vicinity of new job opportunities. 

             19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you. 

             20                 Mr. Baldwin. 

             21                 MR. BALDWIN:  Yes.  I voted for the motion.  I 

             22            believe that this will strongly support student 

             23            learning. 

             24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers. 

             25                 DR. FLOWERS:  I support the expansion of 
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              1            Friendship Aspire Academy with the addition of an 

              2            additional campus and increased enrollment which will 

              3            support students as well as the community. 

              4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And Ms. Wright-McMurray. 

              5                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I voted for the motion and 

              6            I appreciate the work of the Friendship Academy 

              7            administrative team and faculty.  The expansion will 

              8            add a great resource for students and the community 

              9            of Pine Bluff. 

             10                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Well, 

             11            congratulations -- 

             12                 SUPT. TRAN:  Thank you. 

             13                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- to Friendship. 

             14  III.  CONSIDERATION OF CHARTER AMENDMENTS FOR DIGITAL LEARNING 

             15  PLANS 

             16        a)  FRIENDSHIP ASPIRE ACADEMY PINE BLUFF 

             17                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston, let's read 

             18            number 3. 

             19                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Okay.  The next item is 

             20            Friendship Aspire Academy Pine Bluff has submitted an 

             21            amendment for Digital Learning Program in grades K-5.  

             22            The school will offer asynchronous and synchronous 

             23            instruction virtually through the use of an approved 

             24            digital provider and licensed district staff.  And 

             25            the application has been reviewed by the DESE team. 
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              1                 And Mr. Tran and Ms. Henry are still both here, 

              2            if you have any questions. 

              3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And just as a reminder to the 

              4            Panel this is a part of our expedited digital 

              5            learning process.  And they have been -- all plans 

              6            that are before you today have been reviewed by an 

              7            extensive committee who takes great time to do 

              8            detailed reading and note-making and communication 

              9            back with the school districts. 

             10                 So we'll just start with are there any questions 

             11            by the panel members. 

             12                 Dr. Williams, any questions? 

             13                 DR. WILLIAMS:  No. 

             14                 Gentlemen? 

             15                 I'll accept a motion. 

             16                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I move approval. 

             17                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Second. 

             18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So I have a motion by Ms. 

             19            Wright-McMurray and a second by Dr. Williams. 

             20                 Any discussion? 

             21                 All those in favor? 

             22                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 

             23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed? 

             24                 Motion passes. 

             25                 SUPT. TRAN:  Thank you. 
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              1                 MS. HENRY:  Thank you. 

              2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Congratulations.  You have a 

              3            digital learning plan. 

              4                 SUPT. TRAN:  Appreciate you. 

              5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And it will go before the 

              6            State Board at the State Board meeting. 

              7                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, ma'am. 

              8        b)  CROSS COUNTY ELEMENTARY 

              9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston. 

             10                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Yes, ma'am.  Consideration of a 

             11            charter amendment for Digital Learning Program for 

             12            Cross County Elementary.  They submitted an amendment 

             13            for grades 3-6.  The school will offer asynchronous 

             14            and synchronous instruction virtually through the use 

             15            of an approved digital provider.  The application has 

             16            been reviewed by the full DESE team. 

             17                 And Stephen Prince, High School Principal at 

             18            Cross County is on the Zoom if you have any 

             19            questions. 

             20                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Good morning, Mr. Prince. 

             21                 MR. PRINCE:  Good morning. 

             22                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  How are you? 

             23                 MR. PRINCE:  I'm doing good.  How are you all? 

             24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  We're great. 

             25                 Panel Members, do you have any questions? 
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              1                 Dr. Williams, we'll start with you. 

              2                 DR. WILLIAMS:  No direct questions.  Is any -- 

              3            were there any concerns from ADE staff in this 

              4            process, in working with them? 

              5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  No, sir. 

              6                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Okay. 

              7                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Ms. Wright-McMurray, any 

              8            questions? 

              9                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Not at this time. 

             10                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Baldwin? 

             11                 MR. BALDWIN:  (Shaking head from side to side) 

             12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers? 

             13                 DR. FLOWERS:  No questions. 

             14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  I'll accept a 

             15            motion. 

             16                 MR. BALDWIN:  I move approval for the request. 

             17                 DR. FLOWERS:  Second. 

             18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I have a motion by Mr. 

             19            Baldwin and a second by Dr. Flowers. 

             20                 Any discussion? 

             21                 All those in favor? 

             22                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 

             23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed? 

             24                 Motion passes. 

             25                 Congratulations, Mr. Prince. 
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              1        c)  CROSS COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL 

              2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston. 

              3                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Next is Cross County High School.  

              4            They've submitted an amendment for Digital Learning 

              5            Program in grades 7-12.  The school will offer 

              6            asynchronous and synchronous instruction virtually 

              7            through the use of an approved digital provider.  And 

              8            the application has been reviewed by the DESE team. 

              9                 And Stephen Prince, High School Principal is 

             10            also available for any questions on this plan. 

             11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any questions, Ms. Wright-

             12            McMurray? 

             13                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  No. 

             14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Baldwin? 

             15                 MR. BALDWIN:  No. 

             16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers? 

             17                 DR. FLOWERS:  (Shaking head from side to side) 

             18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Williams? 

             19                 DR. WILLIAMS:  None. 

             20                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I was looking for when does 

             21            the Cross County charter expire? 

             22                 MR. PRINCE:  I think the elementary is coming up 

             23            this current December, I believe.  And we just 

             24            renewed the high school. 

             25                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And what did you say about 
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              1            high school, Mr. Prince? 

              2                 MR. PRINCE:  It was just renewed.  We just 

              3            renewed the high school.  And elementary will be up 

              4            for renewal this coming year. 

              5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So the expiration year for 

              6            high school is -- 

              7                 Tim has the spreadsheet out. 

              8                 MR. JOHNSTON:  They just renewed for the high 

              9            school, so it was a five-year renewal; so it would be 

             10            2026, if I'm correct.  And the elementary expires 

             11            June of '22. 

             12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  So I just want to 

             13            bring that to the Charter Panel's attention that, you 

             14            know, the State Board has been very cautious about 

             15            three years on digital learning plans.  We have had I 

             16            believe one charter that received more than three 

             17            years; they had had a long history with digital 

             18            learning.  So I just want you to take that into 

             19            consideration. 

             20                 Mr. Prince, do you want to speak to that? 

             21                 MR. PRINCE:  So we're going to use -- we've 

             22            chosen Virtual Arkansas as our digital provider.  And 

             23            we chose them because they are, of course, reputable 

             24            and very credible in what they provide for the school 

             25            and the courses they can provide for our students.  
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              1            And we actually use them for other courses throughout 

              2            the many years of -- with the high school and our 

              3            students.  And so we felt that just selecting them as 

              4            our provider would be the best route to go for our 

              5            students as we move forward with how the digital 

              6            learning platform is going to start shaking out with 

              7            post-Covid. 

              8                 I hope that answered your question. 

              9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  How many students do you 

             10            anticipate being fully virtual? 

             11                 MR. PRINCE:  So we did our survey, inquiring 

             12            with our parents on who would be interested in our 

             13            virtual learning platform for the new school year.  

             14            We had very few that were interested.  And throughout 

             15            the school year almost all, with the exception of 

             16            about 10 to 15 students, actually came back from 

             17            virtual learning throughout the school year.  And 

             18            based on our survey we had about five or six families 

             19            or students or parents that were actually interested 

             20            in continuing virtual learning at that point.  And it 

             21            was about the same at the elementary, very small 

             22            numbers. 

             23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And do you have dedicated 

             24            staff to support those students? 

             25                 MR. PRINCE:  Yes.  So we are going to continue 
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              1            to use our virtual learning liaison that we used this 

              2            previous school year to continue to monitor those 

              3            students and make those contacts with those parents.  

              4            And, for example, with Virtual Arkansas, they have 

              5            some really good reports that we'll be able to pull 

              6            weekly, so we can see what the students are working 

              7            on and how much they're working on and how often 

              8            they're accessing their content. 

              9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Any additional 

             10            questions? 

             11                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I do have a -- 

             12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Go ahead. 

             13                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  -- question.  And I'm not 

             14            sure exactly if it's for the district or not.  But I 

             15            think maybe in a previous meeting we kind of amended 

             16            or did -- shortened the time to where they could have 

             17            approval on this, just so that we could address that 

             18            we know that it's needed right now but potentially 

             19            going forward they may not need it for an entire 

             20            period of their charter. 

             21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Uh-huh. 

             22                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  So is that something we 

             23            can consider here? 

             24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Absolutely. 

             25                 MS. HYATT:  (Nodding head up and down) 
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              1                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yes.  Mary Claire is nodding 

              2            her head yes. 

              3                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  And I just don't remember 

              4            the time period that we kind of shortened it to, 

              5            because I've slept since then; so I don't remember. 

              6                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So I think the majority -- 

              7            most of the applications that have been approved by 

              8            the State Board have been for three years -- 

              9                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Okay. 

             10                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- with the exception of 

             11            Graduate Arkansas that had a longer period of time. 

             12                 What's the will of the group? 

             13                 Dr. Williams, any thoughts? 

             14                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, I'm trying to read through 

             15            the material here.  So how long are they requesting 

             16            theirs for the digital learning plan? 

             17                 Wait a minute.   

             18                 MS. HYATT:  One of their charter schools does 

             19            not expire -- they just renewed this year, the high 

             20            school.  So they have five additional years on that, 

             21            so it would be essentially for five years.  So if you 

             22            want to shorten that one to three, you can just in 

             23            your motion say approve for however many years or you 

             24            can approve it for the full length of the charter.  

             25            The other school will be coming back for renewal 
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              1            soon, so you'll have a time to review that pretty 

              2            quickly. 

              3                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.  What I suggest or what my 

              4            thoughts are is to be consistent with the Board.  And 

              5            so if that's the case, if they're doing -- preferring 

              6            three over five, I would suggest three and be willing 

              7            to make a motion to that effect when the time comes. 

              8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Prince, are you amenable 

              9            to that? 

             10                 MR. PRINCE:  Absolutely. 

             11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Dr. Williams, do 

             12            you want to make a motion for us? 

             13                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Absolutely.  I move that this 

             14            digital learning plan be approved for three years. 

             15                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I second. 

             16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Second by Ms. Wright-

             17            McMurray.  Motion by Dr. Williams, second by Ms. 

             18            Wright-McMurray to approve the Cross County High 

             19            School Digital Learning Program for three years. 

             20                 Any discussion? 

             21                 All those in favor? 

             22                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 

             23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed? 

             24                 Motion passes. 

             25                 Thank you, Mr. Prince. 
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              1                 MR. PRINCE:  Thank you all. 

              2        d)  SCHOLARMADE ACHIEVEMENT PLACE OF ARKANSAS 

              3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston. 

              4                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Next is ScholarMade.  ScholarMade 

              5            Achievement Place of Arkansas submitted an amendment 

              6            for Digital Learning Program in grades K-9 for all 

              7            campuses.  The school will offer asynchronous and 

              8            synchronous instruction in a blended format through 

              9            the use of an approved digital provider.  The 

             10            application has been reviewed by the full DESE team.  

             11            Their charter expires in June of 2023. 

             12                 And Dr. Phillis Anderson is on the Zoom if you 

             13            have any questions. 

             14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you. 

             15                 Panel Members, any questions? 

             16                 Good morning, Dr. Anderson. 

             17                 DR. ANDERSON:  Good morning. 

             18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Hearing no questions from our 

             19            panel members, do we have a motion? 

             20                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I move approval of the 

             21            application. 

             22                 DR. FLOWERS:  Second. 

             23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I have a motion from Ms. 

             24            Wright-McMurray and a second from Dr. Flowers to 

             25            approve the Digital Learning Program for ScholarMade 
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              1            Achievement Place of Arkansas. 

              2                 Any discussion? 

              3                 All those in favor? 

              4                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 

              5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed? 

              6                 Motion passes. 

              7                 Congratulations, Dr. Anderson.  Thank you for 

              8            joining us today. 

              9                 DR. ANDERSON:  Thank you. 

             10        e)  PREMIER HIGH SCHOOL OF LITTLE ROCK 

             11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston. 

             12                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Premier High School Little Rock 

             13            has submitted an amendment for Digital Learning 

             14            Program for grades 9-12.  The school will offer 

             15            asynchronous instruction virtually through the use of 

             16            an approved digital provider and licensed district 

             17            staff.  The application has been reviewed by the DESE 

             18            team. 

             19                 And Dennis Felton, State Director of Premier 

             20            High School is available online if you have any 

             21            questions. 

             22                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And their charter expires -- 

             23                 MR. JOHNSTON:  6 of 2023. 

             24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  2023.  All right. 

             25                 Good morning, Mr. Felton. 
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              1                 MR. FELTON:  Good morning.  Are you able to hear 

              2            me? 

              3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yes, sir. 

              4                 MR. FELTON:  All right. 

              5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Charter Panel 

              6            Members, do we have any questions? 

              7                 No questions, no -- 

              8                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 

              9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Williams. 

             10                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Yeah, and this may be more for 

             11            ADE staff or Mr. Felton also.  I noticed they're just 

             12            doing asynchronous.  Usually most of them are coming 

             13            through doing both.  Any rationale behind that? 

             14                 MR. FELTON:  Well, we really wanted the 

             15            flexibility for the students.  We're thinking about 

             16            the students in particular that only just need a 

             17            couple of credits to graduate.  A lot of times, we're 

             18            trying to make them go at a teacher's pace and 

             19            ultimately we're actually hindering them from being 

             20            able to complete their graduation requirements early.  

             21            And then, on the flipside, they actually want to 

             22            start getting engaged in some of those (inaudible) 

             23            based applications and working towards post-secondary 

             24            goals.  So we don't want to tie them down.  That way, 

             25            they're actually having to go to the teachers later.  
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              1            We want to give them more autonomy and flexibility to 

              2            work at their own pace. 

              3                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Good answer.  Thank you. 

              4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any additional questions? 

              5                 I'll accept a motion. 

              6                 DR. WILLIAMS:  So moved. 

              7                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Second. 

              8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I have a motion by Dr. 

              9            Williams, a second by Ms. Wright-McMurray to approve 

             10            Premier High School of Little Rock Digital Learning 

             11            Program. 

             12                 Any discussion? 

             13                 All those in favor? 

             14                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 

             15                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed? 

             16                 Motion passes. 

             17                 Congratulations. 

             18        f)  PREMIER HIGH SCHOOL OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK 

             19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston. 

             20                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Yes, ma'am.  Next is Premier High 

             21            School of North Little Rock.  They too have submitted 

             22            an amendment for Digital Learning Program in grades 

             23            9-12.  The school will offer asynchronous instruction 

             24            virtually through the use of an approved digital 

             25            provider.  The application has been reviewed by the 
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              1            DESE team.  And their charter expires in June of 

              2            2024. 

              3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. -- 

              4                 MR. JOHNSTON:  And -- 

              5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Go ahead.  I'm sorry. 

              6                 MR. JOHNSTON:  I apologize.  And Mr. Felton is 

              7            still on the Zoom. 

              8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you. 

              9                 Dr. Williams, any questions? 

             10                 DR. WILLIAMS:  They expire in 2024.  How many -- 

             11            is that four or three years? 

             12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  22, 23, 24 -- three years. 

             13                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Okay. 

             14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Questions on this side? 

             15                 I'll accept a motion. 

             16                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I move approval. 

             17                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Second? 

             18                 MR. BALDWIN:  Second. 

             19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I have a motion by Ms. 

             20            Wright-McMurray and a second by Mr. Baldwin. 

             21                 Any discussion? 

             22                 All those in favor? 

             23                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 

             24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed? 

             25                 Motion passes. 
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              1                 Congratulations, Mr. Felton.  You've got two -- 

              2                 MR. FELTON:  Thank you. 

              3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- Digital Learning Programs. 

              4                 MR. FELTON:  Thank y'all. 

              5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  You're welcome. 

              6        g)  GENTRY HIGH SCHOOL CONVERSION CHARTER 

              7                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston. 

              8                 MR. JOHNSTON:  You should've all received an 

              9            email from me that Gentry was pulled from the agenda. 

             10        h)  BATESVILLE HIGH SCHOOL CHARTER 

             11                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Okay.  So last is Batesville High 

             12            School.  Batesville High School Charter has submitted 

             13            an amendment for Digital Learning Program in grades 

             14            9-12.  The school will offer asynchronous and 

             15            synchronous instruction with virtual and blended 

             16            options through the use of an approved digital 

             17            provider.  The application has been reviewed by the 

             18            DESE team.  And Jennifer Douglas, Assistant 

             19            Superintendent of Curriculum and Instruction, is on 

             20            the Zoom if you have any questions. 

             21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Good morning, Ms. Douglas. 

             22                 MR. DOUGLAS:  Good morning. 

             23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Let's start -- 

             24            and their charter expires -- 

             25                 MR. JOHNSTON:  They are a new charter.  I was 
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              1            just trying to pull that up.  I believe they have a 

              2            five-year, but I want to confirm that. 

              3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.   

              4                 MS. DOUGLAS:  That is correct.  We were just 

              5            approved last fall.  Our charter will open in the 

              6            fall of this year.  So we are completely fine if we 

              7            need to have this Digital Learning Plan to be 

              8            approved for three years. 

              9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  I'll take that as an 

             10            amendment to your amendment. 

             11                 Mr. Williams, any -- Dr. Williams, I'm sorry, 

             12            any questions? 

             13                 DR. WILLIAMS:  No questions.  Thank you. 

             14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers? 

             15                 DR. FLOWERS:  Yes, I have a question.  Under 

             16            Student Supports you make the comment about how 

             17            online students in grades 9-12 if they're absent and 

             18            they need -- may need to be on remote, their parent 

             19            needs to call in before 8 a.m. so the teacher can be 

             20            notified.  Can you talk to me through that process? 

             21                 MS. DOUGLAS:  Yes.  If that was directed to me, 

             22            I couldn't hear his question. 

             23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers, can you repeat 

             24            the question? 

             25                 DR. FLOWERS:  Yes.   
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              1                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  A little closer to the 

              2            microphone please. 

              3                 DR. FLOWERS:  Yes.  Can you hear me now?  I'm 

              4            sorry. 

              5                 MS. DOUGLAS:  Yes, sir. 

              6                 DR. FLOWERS:  Okay.  So under Student Supports, 

              7            you talk about if an onsite student in grades 9-12 is 

              8            -- are absent and need to be remote, then the parent 

              9            must call before 8 a.m. so that the teacher can be 

             10            notified, so the student can be remoted into class.  

             11            Can you talk to me a bit about that process, how it's 

             12            going to work? 

             13                 MS. DOUGLAS:  We have -- I think that I lost the 

             14            last part of the question.  But as far as the remote 

             15            instruction, we are allowing students -- as far as 

             16            the digital plan, if like I wake up -- if I'm a 9th 

             17            grader and I wake up and I'm ill, I can have five 

             18            times through the course of a semester that I could 

             19            still access my courses from home.  But just to keep 

             20            families and students from abusing it, the parent has 

             21            to call in to the office and say, "Hey, Johnny is 

             22            sick today; he needs to access his courses from 

             23            home."  We did that last year and the flexibility is 

             24            great.  But we also just wanted to make sure that we 

             25            didn't have students abusing that privilege to be 
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              1            able to access courses from home when they could -- 

              2            you know, when they were maybe too sick to come to 

              3            school but they felt like still doing learning that 

              4            day.  They will just Google Meet into their classroom 

              5            and hear that instruction as it's happening in the 

              6            class.     

              7                 Does that answer your question? 

              8                 DR. FLOWERS:  Yes, it does.  Thank you. 

              9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Baldwin? 

             10                 MR. BALDWIN:  (Shaking head from side to side) 

             11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Ms. Wright-McMurray, any 

             12            questions? 

             13                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  No. 

             14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Williams, did I ask you 

             15            already? 

             16                 DR. WILLIAMS:  I believe you did, but I don't 

             17            have any at this time either. 

             18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  All right.  I'll 

             19            accept a motion for a three-year approval of 

             20            Batesville High School Charter's Digital Learning 

             21            Program. 

             22                 MR. BALDWIN:  I'll make the motion. 

             23                 DR. FLOWERS:  Second. 

             24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I have a motion by Mr. 

             25            Baldwin and a second by Dr. Flowers. 
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              1                 Any discussion? 

              2                 All those in favor? 

              3                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 

              4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed? 

              5                 Motion passes. 

              6                 Congratulations, Ms. Douglas.  You have a three-

              7            year Digital Learning Plan. 

              8                 MS. DOUGLAS:  Thank you so much. 

              9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you. 

             10  CLOSING COMMENTS 

             11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any additional business, Mr. 

             12            Johnston? 

             13                 MR. JOHNSTON:  No. 

             14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Ms. Hyatt? 

             15                 MS. HYATT:  No. 

             16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any -- Panel Members? 

             17                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  So did we settle on what 

             18            time we're going to meet next Tuesday? 

             19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  No, we haven't. 

             20                 The afternoon -- do you want to go ahead and set 

             21            us a time, Ms. Hyatt?  12:00, 1:00? 

             22                 MS. HYATT:  If 1:30 works, I think that would 

             23            give us time to get everything set up here in the 

             24            afternoon.  And I assume -- would you like to have an 

             25            in-person option or just a Zoom option? 
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              1                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I could do either one.  

              2            That's fine with me. 

              3                 MR. DAN DAVIS:  You're wanting next Tuesday? 

              4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yes, sir, at 1:30.  Will that 

              5            work for you? 

              6                 MR. DAN DAVIS:  I'll pull it up but -- 

              7                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Can we make it 2:00? 

              8                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Dr. Williams was asking if we can 

              9            make it 2:00. 

             10                 MR. DAN DAVIS:  Tuesday, the 20th the auditorium 

             11            is empty. 

             12                 MS. HYATT:  Did you say 2:00, Dr. Williams? 

             13                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 

             14                 MS. HYATT:  If 2:00 on the 20th works, we'll 

             15            schedule it then.  We'll reserve this room to run the 

             16            Zoom through.  And also if you want to come in person 

             17            that's absolutely fine. 

             18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Just let Mr. Johnston know if 

             19            you want to come in person.  Otherwise, we'll make 

             20            sure that we have a Zoom link for all of the Panel 

             21            Members. 

             22                 MS. HYATT:  And we will probably be updating the 

             23            agenda until last-minute, just so you -- we can get 

             24            as many on this special meeting as possible.  If 

             25            we've added any within 24 hours before the meeting, 
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              1            we'll be sure to point those out to you. 

              2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right. 

              3                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Thank you. 

              4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right. 

              5                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Thank you all for your 

              6            flexibility. 

              7                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you all. 

              8                 You're reserving the room for us, Dan? 

              9                 MR. DAN DAVIS:  Tim will need to. 

             10                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  We'll take care of it. 

             11  ADJOURNMENT 

             12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I need a motion to adjourn. 

             13                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I move -- so moved. 

             14                 DR. FLOWERS:  Second. 

             15                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Motion by Ms. Wright-

             16            McMurray, a second by Dr. Flowers to adjourn. 

             17                 All those in favor? 

             18                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 

             19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Meeting is adjourned. 

             20                 Thank you, everyone, for participating today and 

             21            we appreciate you so much.  Have a great day. 

             22   

             23                  

             24              (The meeting was concluded at 10:20 a.m.) 

             25                                   
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 1                       P R O C E E D I N G S
 2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Good morning.  The July 13,
 3            2021 meeting of the Charter Authorizing Panel is
 4            called to order.  I'd like to welcome everyone to the
 5            Department of Education auditorium and ask you to
 6            please silence your electronic devices.
 7                 I believe we have a pretty quick meeting in
 8            front of us today.  We have some expedited digital
 9            learning plans, and then a few additional amendments
10            that will need to be discussed.  So --
11                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Good morning.  Can you hear me?
12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yes, sir.  Are you able to
13            hear us, Dr. Williams?
14                 DR. WILLIAMS:  I can hear you.
15                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  All right.  We will
16            facilitate a fair and responsible hearing.  And I'll
17            ask that anyone that's coming before the microphones
18            today to please state your name and speak clearly
19            into the microphone.
20                 Good morning, Panel Members.
21  CONSENT AGENDA
22                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  If you will look
23            at our Consent Agenda, and the first item are the
24            minutes from the June 2021 meeting.  And I'll accept
25            a motion or if there are any revisions.
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 1                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I move to approve.
 2                 MS. SARACINI:  I second.
 3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So I have a motion by Ms.
 4            Wright-McMurray and a second by Ms. Saracini to
 5            approve the minutes as submitted.
 6                 Any discussion?
 7                 All those in favor?
 8                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
10                 Okay.  Agenda item number one, Mr. Johnston,
11            you're recognized.
12  DISCUSSION RE: SPECIAL CAP MEETING
13                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Ms. Coffman, before we move
14            forward, are we going to discuss the possibility of a
15            special meeting, or is that when --
16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mary Claire, do you want to
17            join us?
18                 MR. JOHNSTON:  I didn't know if that was -- this
19            is the appropriate time to bring that up.
20                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So for us to be able to get
21            all of the digital learning applications reviewed and
22            to the State Board before school starts, do you,
23            either one, have a recommendation for us?
24                 MS. HYATT:  It's my -- Mary Claire Hyatt.  It's
25            my understanding that the Department and the State
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 1            Board would like to see those applications get into
 2            place before school starts.  In order to do that,
 3            since our next meeting is not scheduled until August
 4            17th, which then would mean that those would not be
 5            heard until September, we would need to schedule a
 6            special Charter Authorizing Panel meeting.  We can do
 7            it electronically for convenience, since it would
 8            just be digital learning plans, or we can have in
 9            person, at the will of the Panel.  But I do think one
10            will be necessary to hear the remaining digital
11            learning applications.  And I can't tell you off the
12            top of my head how many we have, but we do have
13            several.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  Any preference?  Two
15            weeks from today is the 27th [audio reverb].
16                 So [audio reverb] --
17                 MR. DAN DAVIS:  Somebody has joined --
18                 DR. WILLIAMS:  I can hear you with the feedback,
19            but when you cut off the feedback I can't hear you.
20                 MR. DAN DAVIS:  Somebody has joined with audio
21            that needs to mute.
22                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Probably, let's see --
23                 MR. DAN DAVIS:  Because as soon as I un-mute
24            ours, then that's when we get the feedback.
25                    (OFF THE RECORD TO FIX AUDIO)
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 1                        (BACK ON THE RECORD)
 2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  We'll try this
 3            again.
 4                 So, Mary Claire, in -- we could do it next week
 5            on Tuesday.  Or the following week, on the 27th, I'm
 6            already committed to present at the AAEA conference,
 7            and I know several of our other presenters, panel
 8            members, will be there as well.  So are you thinking
 9            next week would be our best time?
10                 MS. HYATT:  I think next week is fine.  If
11            that's what the Panel wants to do, that's totally
12            fine.
13                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Excuse me.  A quick question -- I
14            have no idea what you're talking about.
15                 MS. HYATT:  Oh.
16                 DR. WILLIAMS:  We could not hear you up until
17            this moment.
18                 MS. HYATT:  Sorry, Dr. Williams.
19                 So there are several outstanding digital
20            learning applications that need to be heard by the
21            Panel.  If we wait until August to hear them, the
22            State Board won't approve them until September, which
23            is after school has already started.  So there is a
24            need to have a quick, hopefully, special board
25            meeting for purposes of hearing digital learning
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 1            applications only.  And we can do that via Zoom,
 2            since hopefully there will just be a few of them and
 3            we can do it very quickly.  And I think we're looking
 4            at next week?
 5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Next Tuesday is the 20th.
 6                 MS. HYATT:  Okay.  Does that work for the panel
 7            members?
 8                 DR. WILLIAMS:  What time are we looking at?  I
 9            have a conflict from 9:00 to 10:00, but can probably
10            make an adjustment if needed.
11                 MS. HYATT:  We could do 10:30, if that works.
12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yeah.  We could do 10:30 or
13            we could do that afternoon, if Representative Hodges
14            could join us.  I don't know if he's available.
15                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Uh-huh.
16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Afternoon?
17                 MS. HYATT:  Afternoon?
18                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Yeah, 10:30 would definitely work
19            for me or the afternoon would work.
20                 MS. HYATT:  Okay.  We will get it scheduled for
21            the afternoon, if that is all right with the Chair.
22                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Excellent.  Thank you.
23                 MS. HYATT:  Absolutely.
24  PROCEDURES
25                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  While you're here, anything
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 1            that you need to overview, any procedures before we
 2            get started?
 3                 MS. HYATT:  So the only actual amendment
 4            request, besides digital learning plans, that is on
 5            the agenda today is Friendship's expansion request
 6            that you all heard last month.  So because they've
 7            already presented and had their full hearing, and the
 8            only reason they were removed is just so we could
 9            make sure that Pine Bluff got proper notice.  There
10            won't be a need to have an entire new hearing; just
11            ask any remaining questions, if you have them.  If
12            you do have questions, it would be best to swear in
13            the person who's going to respond to the questions.
14            But otherwise, they don't need another full hearing.
15            On the digital learning applications, we haven't been
16            doing full hearings because we're trying to do it in
17            an expedited way.  If you've got questions, you can
18            just ask them of the representative that's here.
19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And then Cabot we'll need to
20            swear in and --
21                 MS. HYATT:  Yes.
22                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  But we could do a modified
23            hearing for them as well?
24                 MS. HYATT:  Absolutely.  I do think they have a
25            presentation, so you'll want to give them -- they'll
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 1            have up to 20 minutes to give their presentation.
 2            But of course we've been doing it kind of on an
 3            expedited timeline for efficiency.
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Everyone good?
 5                 All right.
 6  I.  CONSIDERATION OF CHARTER DIGITAL LEARNING PROGRAMS AND
 7  CHARTER AMENDMENTS
 8       1.  CABOT ACADEMIC CENTER FOR EXCELLENCE (ACE)
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Then, Mr. Johnston, if you'll
10            introduce our first item please.
11                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Tim Johnston, DESE Charter Unit.
12                 The first item on the agenda is Consideration of
13            a Digital Learning Plan and Charter Amendment for
14            Cabot Academic Center of Excellence.  Their digital
15            learning plan, when it was submitted, also included
16            an amendment to their charter.  So that's why it's
17            broken into two parts, but this is one agenda item.
18                 So the Cabot Academic Center of Excellence has
19            submitted an amendment for a Digital Learning Program
20            in grades 7-12.  The school will offer asynchronous
21            and synchronous instruction with virtual and blended
22            options through the use of an approved digital
23            provider.  The application has been reviewed by the
24            DESE team.
25                 And as far as the amendment, they are requesting
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 1            an amendment to relocate the existing campus and
 2            increase the enrollment cap to 2500 students.
 3                 And there is representation here from Cabot.
 4                 Mr. Aaron, do you want to approach?
 5                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Thank you, Mr. Johnston.
 6                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Good morning.  If you will
 7            raise your right hand -- do you swear or affirm that
 8            the testimony you're about to give shall be the
 9            truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?
10                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes.
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  And if you'll
12            introduce yourself, you may begin.
13                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Thank you, Ms. Coffman.
14                 Aaron Randolph, the Executive Director for
15            Curriculum and Instruction in the Cabot School
16            District.
17                 MR. DAN DAVIS:  I need permission to share your
18            screen.
19                 MR. RANDOLPH:  And I appreciate you all giving
20            me the opportunity to represent the district today
21            and speak about kind of our desire to grow our
22            conversion charter school to offer a good digital
23            option for students in our district, some things
24            we've learned over the past year with Covid digital
25            learning, and kind of, in all honesty, some things
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 1            that we'd like to get in place for this school year.
 2            Our charter renewal comes up this fall, as a matter
 3            of fact; we'll be back in front of this panel I think
 4            in December.  And so there's just some things that we
 5            want to put in place to really get in the right
 6            position to have a rebranding of sorts next year.
 7            And we can talk more about that later on.
 8                 All right.  Do I need to press the slides or how
 9            would I --
10                 MR. DAN DAVIS:  Yes, sir.  Go ahead and you
11            should be good to go.
12                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Okay.  Thank you.
13                 And so, again, I appreciate you all for giving
14            me this opportunity.
15                 I did want to share with you-all the mission
16            statement for ACE.  We have had a conversion charter
17            school in Cabot School District going on 17 years
18            now.  And the mission statement has been changed a
19            little bit but still remains consistent in that we
20            want to promote high quality, rigid -- rigorous,
21            excuse me, academic achievement through the
22            development of individual student strengths, talents,
23            and interests, with an emphasis on mastery learning,
24            self-discipline, social/emotional development, and
25            parental involvement.  And I will tell you ACE as a
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 1            charter school was founded with the idea that we have
 2            some students that don't necessarily excel in a
 3            regular environment and we wanted to give them
 4            another place, another spot.  And ACE as a whole is
 5            set up as a hybrid learning opportunity for students
 6            in 5-12.  We do have an ALE component, so we do have
 7            some at-risk students that we cater to specifically.
 8            But every student that comes through ACE, unless they
 9            are already placed in that ALE environment for one
10            reason or another, we require them to be on campus
11            for a minimum of nine hours a week, and we are pretty
12            flexible with them within that schedule and
13            everything else.  But one thing that we have learned
14            this year is that digital is a little different and
15            so we wanted to add something to that.
16                 I did want to share with you-all just our
17            enrollment numbers from last year.  So you can see
18            there we had ACE and ALE, those were on one campus,
19            and ACE North was another campus located in our high
20            school -- and I'll talk more specifically about them.
21            But as you can see, in 5th through 12th grade we had
22            just about 330 students last year enrolled in our ACE
23            program and that is well below that 500 cap.  And I
24            talked earlier about -- or mentioned earlier about
25            rebranding.  Our desire is to see more and more
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 1            students take advantage of this because we know that
 2            there are more students that have specific needs that
 3            can be addressed through an alternative setting.  But
 4            one of the things that we need to look at is kind of
 5            how things are set up now and logistically what we're
 6            doing with our students.
 7                 So the amendment request today, number one was
 8            the digital learning plans of the charter -- and I'll
 9            talk more about that; adjust the enrollment cap from
10            500 up to 2500; and then also switching of campuses
11            between ACE North and our ALE setting.
12                 So the digital learning plan -- and I know you-
13            all have reviewed the plan, DESE has.  Please
14            interrupt me at any point for questions.  I just
15            wanted to give you as much background information as
16            I could.  But as Mr. Johnston said, we will have
17            asynchronous and synchronous instruction.  We will be
18            utilizing Edmentum, which is an approved provider of
19            content.  We will also be using Google Classroom as
20            our learning management system.  In the past we have
21            used APEX as our provider at ACE.  And so moving to
22            Edmentum we did a really thorough review over the
23            past year-and-a-half of the curriculum options that
24            are out there, and, thankfully, Edmentum is one of
25            those approved digital providers.  And also we felt
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 1            like from the support pieces in the individualized
 2            instruction it was in a much better spot for our
 3            students than the APEX program was.  We also have
 4            staff that are going to have time dedicated in their
 5            day specifically to digital instruction.
 6                 One thing we learned this year is that we
 7            actually -- we came before the Committee last summer
 8            -- I think a lot of the people did, as we were
 9            struggling to figure out what we were going to do to
10            open up with Covid.  And I was able, Dr. Thurman and
11            I, to speak virtually with this panel, and at that
12            time we wanted to have our secondary digital be under
13            the ACE umbrella.  And then we just recognized, with
14            the help of Mrs. Coffman, that there were a lot of
15            other moving pieces to that.  And so we moved our
16            digital back to all campuses, and so we had digital
17            students and staff spread out amongst 17 campuses
18            across our district.  And one of the things that we
19            learned through that was it is incredibly difficult
20            to juggle the demands of handling digital students,
21            instructors that are doing both onsite and digital or
22            some just purely digital, and then also to maintain
23            some consistency in what the instruction looked like
24            in one place over another.  And so we really felt
25            like pulling this all together at ACE under one
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 1            umbrella and one roof was going to be best serving
 2            our students in making sure that those staff members
 3            that want to teach digitally, that want to work with
 4            virtual students, let's give them a spot and give
 5            them specific training and skills they need to excel.
 6                 One thing that you will notice is that we also
 7            will provide onsite intervention.  Friday is actually
 8            going to be set up purely as an intervention day for
 9            students that want to come onsite and want to receive
10            some specific instruction, if they so desire, and
11            assessment, of course.  We found out that -- this
12            year that students will come on campus for
13            assessments, for standardized tests, both for our
14            formative assessments and NWEA MAP, and also ACT
15            Aspire and Alpha.  We had students on campus.  And so
16            we're going to do the same thing and have the
17            facility that we can do that at ACE.
18                 We will also provide for students with
19            exceptionalities, be it our ALES, be it our gifted
20            students, students on an IEP or 504, and we will have
21            staff members that are certified and trained in that
22            that can work with those students.  And one key thing
23            to this is that this DLP will be separate from the
24            ALE component of ACE.  And so we have an interview
25            process, we have an application process for these
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 1            students to insure that they are prepared to step
 2            into digital learning.  And those students are not
 3            going to be identified as ALE students, and so
 4            therefore would not count towards that number.
 5                 And I know, Mrs. Coffman, we can talk a little
 6            bit about it now, if you want to, just what that
 7            looks like for our campus or for our ALE?
 8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yes.  So we have had quite a
 9            bit of conversation about this, trying to decide
10            what's the best thing for the students and the school
11            district along the way.  And we do have our ALE
12            representatives, I believe, online with us.
13                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Okay.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So they can jump in there.
15            Jared and C.W. are both on there, I believe.
16                 But, so the way I'm reading this and
17            understanding, just for clarification, this will be
18            the only digital learning opportunity for students?
19                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, ma'am.
20                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  They will need to enroll into
21            ACE to be a part of that; so it won't be happening
22            out in all of the other campuses?
23                 MR. RANDOLPH:  That is correct.
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And then by not having those
25            students identified as ALE, I think that's going to
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 1            solve most of the questions of the ALE team.  But
 2            let's jump to them real quick.
 3                 C.W. and Jared, do you have any questions or
 4            concerns that you want to bring up?
 5                 MR. GARDENHIRE:  No.  My suggestion was going to
 6            be that they separate out the ALE from the ACE
 7            component and -- because it wasn't clear in what I
 8            was reading in the plan that was what was going to
 9            happen.
10                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Right.
11                 MR. GARDENHIRE:  So that kind of took some of my
12            anxiety away.  So there will be pieces that we'll
13            need to look at on -- from the ALE component aspect,
14            being on the main campus, but we can deal with those
15            later.
16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So tell me, maybe to help
17            explain that a little bit more, why are we keeping
18            and what's the long-term plan for -- I would assume
19            that the reason you're keeping ALE and the digital
20            learning together under one LEA number is we don't
21            know -- we don't know what the future of digital
22            learning is.  It could be huge numbers, it could be
23            small numbers; it could at some point level out and
24            have a reasonable number.  Kind of talk us through
25            what your thought process is about having a separate
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 1            ALE, a separate LEA, or -- and right now for the
 2            Panel to understand also ACE is exempt from a letter
 3            grade because they are an ALE, classified as an ALE.
 4            So kind of talk the Panel through that.
 5                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Sure.  And I will tell you, if I
 6            can -- there we go -- one of the things that we'd
 7            looked at, why we wanted to have it under the charter
 8            umbrella truthfully was the flexibility that already
 9            exists within the charter.  Staff are trained in
10            working with at-risk students, but also students that
11            may not fit the standard mold of a K-12 student.  So
12            we felt like it was a little bit better fit there.
13                 In terms of seeking a separate LEA, you're
14            exactly right; we don't know what the future of
15            digital learning is.  And I can say, you know, at the
16            height this year we had over 1500 students K-12
17            enrolled in virtual instruction.  And so when we
18            first put this application together, you know, for us
19            2500 was a very -- we felt like a very reasonable
20            number that could be achieved.  But as you can see,
21            we had just over 100 applicants when it came down to
22            it and we had our open enrollment period for digital.
23            And at that time there really was not a huge push;
24            students wanted to get back on campus, parents wanted
25            students back on campus.  Now seeing as how Covid
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 1            numbers have increased over the past few weeks that
 2            may change, that may adjust, but that's where that
 3            number came from was us looking there.  But long-term
 4            I think that we can talk more about that and you'll
 5            hear more about that later this fall when we come
 6            back for our renewal.  But we still feel that digital
 7            learning is not set up for a standard K-12 student;
 8            for someone that is ready to walk in the door and
 9            thrive in the school setting that may not be ideal.
10            And so it just kind of went hand-in-hand with us for
11            those students and for that program that they would,
12            you know, put together, and that's where -- did that
13            answer the question, Ms. Coffman?
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Talk a little bit about, is
15            there going to be -- you've got 101 applications
16            right now.  Talk to us a little bit about what's the
17            flow; will students be able to move in and out, back
18            to onsite, move into virtual learning?
19                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Sure.  So another highlight for
20            us of having the digital in with -- under the ACE
21            charter was that the transition, truthfully, if a
22            student did want to come back on campus, is that our
23            goal would be to move them at ACE where we have a
24            hybrid setting.  So it's not necessarily 8:00 to
25            3:30, five days a week, but they have sort of a
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 1            hybrid environment; they can come back nine hours, 12
 2            hours, 15 hours that we can transition them.  And if
 3            they do decide and we decide collectively that it's
 4            best that they be back onsite full-time, then we have
 5            a process currently that students come to ACE or may
 6            go back to a traditional campus, and there's an
 7            application and a transition period that we use.  And
 8            we're comfortable in working -- various
 9            administrations work with our ACE staff.  And Mrs.
10            Jones, who's our assistant principal, and Mrs. Lair,
11            Carrie Lair, wanted to be here today but they're
12            actually at the ALE conference, and so they're
13            working there.  But they have a really strong
14            relationship and communication with the counselors
15            and administration at our other campuses.  And so
16            that's where we would see that being able to thrive
17            there.  I will say we will probably end up opening up
18            applications for online again at some point.  But
19            really from a staffing standpoint we set a six-week
20            window at the end of the spring and early summer, and
21            we really wanted to hold to that, but I do anticipate
22            that students can apply to be in ACE at any point
23            during the year and we would probably have that same
24            conversation.  And right now, what we've told
25            families that want to apply is apply to ACE, be a
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 1            part of that team, be a part of that program.  And if
 2            we feel like we need to make that move and it's good
 3            for -- you know, best for you, then we can make that
 4            move.
 5                 So that would be -- but again, ACE, we kind of
 6            do that transition point for our students to make it
 7            a little bit easier.  Because that was one of the
 8            other issues that emerged last year was students
 9            going onsite and digital, you know, in the midst of a
10            year.  And as many times as we tried to hold firm on
11            things, life happens and you've got to make
12            exceptions.  And so it did create some problems for
13            our staff during the school year.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Talk to us just a little bit
15            more about relocating the campuses --
16                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, ma'am.
17                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- and your enrollment cap
18            request.
19                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Perfect.  So the enrollment cap
20            increase again just right now is that we are at 500.
21            And anticipating that we would have much more digital
22            requests than we did, we wanted to raise that cap to
23            a 2,000 more student threshold.  We didn't hit that
24            number with applications.  But I will also say,
25            mentioning what I did earlier about the rebranding
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 1            that we hope to bring up in the fall to this Panel,
 2            we anticipate having much more involvement in ACE.
 3            We want to grow that program, and so this 500 to 2500
 4            cap just gives us that flexibility to do so.  We --
 5            you know, we have a lot of students that we think are
 6            looking for something different, and especially as we
 7            start looking at what students are pursuing via
 8            homeschool and other routes.  We want to be able to
 9            offer something in the district that would be
10            different than what's going on on the regular campus.
11            So that's where we came up with that 2500 student
12            mark.
13                 In terms of the location shift, so we have two
14            current locations.  The location that is on your left
15            would be our current Academic Center of Excellence,
16            as you can see there, and about half the building is
17            set up -- you can see the ALE for our students that
18            are in that ALE setting on the left-hand side.  And
19            our desire is that we will actually take that ALE
20            side that's currently there, which is an open
21            classroom environment, has cubicles of sorts where
22            students are working virtually, being supported --
23            or, sorry -- working digitally and being supported by
24            onsite staff, is that we would take those students
25            and move them over to the campus on the right, which
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 1            is currently housing our ACE North campus and that --
 2            you saw there's about 80 some-odd students that they
 3            take classes via APEX, their core courses, and we --
 4            I'll talk a little bit more about that information.
 5            And then, our onsite at the high school, freshmen
 6            academy, or one of our junior highs for some of their
 7            other electives.  It's sort of an in-between; they're
 8            both getting virtual small group instruction with
 9            someone under our ACE staff, but they're also going
10            on campus.  So our desire is that we would move those
11            students from that campus and move them over to ACE.
12            And then that ALE -- and I've got some blueprints on,
13            like I said, what we're planning on doing with that
14            structure to make it a little bit more suitable for
15            an ALE setting, a little bit more wide-open with some
16            small classroom spaces.  And then that half that was
17            the ALE will actually be opened up to our digital
18            setting.  So again right now you can see there half
19            the building for hybrid, half the building for
20            fulltime ALE.  ACE North is a transition location; it
21            was originally started and we came before the
22            committee I think about six years ago, seven years
23            ago -- came before this panel and wanted to have sort
24            of a transition place where students could have both
25            an ACE life environment but also be able to take some
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 1            courses and programs on campus.  But this is not a
 2            hybrid setting at ACE North.  And so our desire then
 3            is to move those ACE North students and program back
 4            over to the ACE and what we're calling our Cabot
 5            Panther Digital Academy on that campus.  And then our
 6            ALE, our 5-12, will be located on the high school
 7            campus.  And regular ALE staff will be there on the
 8            CHS campus, but we'll also have 5-12 staff members
 9            who can push in there periodically, depending on what
10            the specific needs are of students, where there's a
11            desire, if there's something else that they need;
12            it's just a lot more centralized for us.  It's also
13            directly across the road from Central Office, and so
14            it's a little bit better proximity for us in case
15            issues arise.
16                 The CPDA side, one other thing that I do want to
17            point out is we will actually offer transportation.
18            That is one thing that we've offered in the morning
19            and afternoon for our ACE students.  Again, it's a
20            hybrid setting, not set up for an 8:00 to 3:30.  But
21            knowing we have students that have been on campus
22            five days a week with that ACE North we want to still
23            offer them that same environment.  So we're actually
24            offering transportation to all our other campuses.
25            Every period there will be buses running between ACE
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 1            and those other campuses.  So they can still take
 2            courses at ACE, still have that small group
 3            environment, but if they want to go take -- you know,
 4            if they want to go and be involved in -- you know, we
 5            have a wonderful Case agri program.  So if they want
 6            to take some of our CTE courses on campus, then
 7            they've got the opportunity to take the bus to do
 8            that.  And that's where our proposed shift in the
 9            locations is going to be.
10                 And then here is just a blueprint that we have,
11            working with the architecture firm, on what the ALE
12            campus will look like.  And so you can see there on
13            the left-hand side there's two large classrooms.
14            Across the hallway, that larger classroom above -- as
15            you can see, a wide open workspace with some desks --
16            that will actually be set up for I think 9-12, is the
17            way I had it drawn up.  And then that smaller campus,
18            because of our numbers, would be set up for 5-9
19            students or 5-8, just depending upon the class
20            numbers and the, you know, number of students that
21            are going to have ALE at that time.
22                 Oops, sorry.  Did I go too quickly?
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  How many students are
24            typically in your ALE program at a time?  I mean, I
25            know they come in and --
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 1                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Sure.  I think the biggest that
 2            we've had in recent memory is about 42, 43 students
 3            at one time in that fulltime ALE setting.  So, fairly
 4            low.
 5                 And then again just some key things that I
 6            brought up earlier about the DLP for ACE flexibility
 7            offered in the charter, the current minimum of nine
 8            hours and direct instruction, it's just a little bit
 9            easier from a hybrid to a fully digital, or vice-
10            versa, and then we can have that transition for our
11            staff.  But also one of the things that we are
12            working with our digital students on is -- so we're
13            going to offer as much as we can either through
14            Edmentum or through ARVA for those courses that can't
15            be used in Edmentum.  We are also doing Teacher in a
16            Box for some courses.  Edmentum, for example, offers
17            a hospitality course and they have a fulltime teacher
18            that teaches this course, and we don't have that; we
19            don't offer that in our CTE program.  And so we felt
20            like there was some opportunity for some courses in
21            Edmentum.  But we also -- all those digital students
22            will have the opportunity, along with all of our
23            students at ACE -- any elective they want to take on
24            campus they can do so and we'll work with their
25            schedule and even potentially transportation to do
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 1            so.  But this just gives us a little bit more
 2            flexibility.
 3                 And I will tell you again, from the stress level
 4            and the logistics nightmare that it was this year
 5            trying to make digital work at all our secondary
 6            campuses, having students both onsite and digital in
 7            one classroom, having teachers that were going from
 8            one spot to another, trying to control the transition
 9            of onsite and digital, we just felt like having it
10            housed under our charter umbrella was going to make
11            things smoother and take that stress off of our
12            secondary campuses, because, you know, our high
13            school has 2300 and some-odd students on campus.  And
14            so if we can remove that stressor from them it would
15            be a lot easier in the long-term and more beneficial
16            to our students, truthfully.
17                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And then, Aaron, you and I
18            talked about -- but I think it's important that we
19            put that on the record and talk out-loud about we're
20            going to need to watch the numbers, watch the ratios
21            between --
22                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Absolutely.
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- ALE and digital learning
24            students and make a determination of -- at some point
25            if those are out of balance, that the district would
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 1            be removed from the letter grade exemption.
 2                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, ma'am.  Yes.  And so
 3            currently because of the ALE status under our -- with
 4            our charter we don't get a letter grade.  We still
 5            are accountable, absolutely, for our students, for
 6            our scores, but we don't get that A through F rating
 7            the way it's set up.  Increasing the enrollment cap
 8            is going to bring more students into the program.
 9            And so what Mrs. Coffman and I talked about was that
10            we recognize that -- so again I brought up the
11            numbers, 330 students currently enrolled in ACE.  If
12            we hit 320 -- honestly, with 300 digital students we
13            need to start having a conversation about, okay, do
14            we still qualify for that A through F exemption.  And
15            I think the rationale would be if we get more digital
16            students than we have ALE students, then that answer
17            would be no, and we would just make sure that we have
18            that in writing and figure out what's the cleanest
19            way to make that work.  But talking with our
20            stakeholders, they understand that.  I had the
21            conversation with our superintendent; our school
22            board is aware.  But we understand that that may be
23            where we end up.
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So just for clarity for our
25            panel members and for our viewing audience, they
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 1            certainly are held accountable and those students'
 2            scores roll back into the high school.
 3                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Correct.
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So they -- every student does
 5            count --
 6                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Correct.
 7                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- in our accountability
 8            system, but this school's LEA number is not assigned
 9            a letter grade.
10                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Correct.
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  The data are rolled back.
12            And so if you're looking on our typical
13            accountability-at-a-glance, sometimes you'll see
14            where the score at the top for that school doesn't
15            match the big box where it talks about the ESSA
16            Index.  So sometimes you'll see school districts or
17            schools like ACE where the numbers are not exactly
18            the same, and that's because their data rolled back
19            into the high school --
20                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Correct.
21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- where the students are.
22                 MR. RANDOLPH:  And we spent I don't know how
23            many hours in early fall --
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Explaining that.
25                 MR. RANDOLPH:  -- recoding -- well, recoding
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 1            those students too --
 2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yeah.
 3                 MR. RANDOLPH:  -- to make sure they carry back
 4            over to their home campuses.  And so we've done it
 5            for 17 years and we'll keep doing it.
 6                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Thank you.
 7                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, ma'am.
 8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Questions?
 9                 Ms. Wright-McMurray.
10                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Thank you for sharing and
11            presenting.  That was helpful to better understand
12            what you guys have as a plan.
13                 The only main question that I have -- and it's
14            just to try to get a little bit more detail and get a
15            better understanding of the Fridays.  So under your
16            intervention plan you have CTE and then electives set
17            aside for Fridays, but then also will -- it looks
18            like that you say that that's also a day to where
19            just in general if there are things the students need
20            to work on.  So how is that -- or just kind of give
21            me a little bit more detail how that's going to be
22            balanced, if a student is coming in for CTE work but
23            then they have all these other things they're going
24            to need to do as well.  How is that going to be
25            balanced --
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 1                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Certainly.
 2                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  -- to make sure CTE is not
 3            kind of pushed to the side?
 4                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Absolutely.    And so we
 5            understand that we will have students that are taking
 6            classes five days a week.  So again I mentioned if
 7            they're enrolled in one of our Case courses, they're
 8            going on campus for that.  And so on our Fridays set
 9            aside for intervention we've got a pretty good
10            schedule lined up.  And actually our assistant
11            principal is -- has a pretty good intervention
12            already for all ACE students, including digital,
13            right now, 8:00 to 3:30, utilizing teacher planning
14            periods and everything else.  But on that Friday we
15            know that there's going to be students that aren't
16            going to be able to be pulled for intervention in
17            that block of time because they're going to have
18            those courses.  And so we will work with those kids
19            to make sure that they still have scheduled
20            intervention time even within that schedule and that
21            CTE is also set aside.  We have a staff member on
22            campus right now, Mrs. Beverly Williams; she works
23            with our CTE students and she's our JAGG sponsor for
24            that campus.  And so she would also have that
25            ability; that would be her supervision time, so she
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 1            could go out and see students on campus if they
 2            weren't set up for intervention too.  Yes, ma'am.
 3                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Thanks.  And so -- sorry,
 4            just one more question.
 5                 So I'm glad you mentioned JAGG because that was
 6            my question.  So the students that are doing the
 7            virtual digital piece, do they also still have access
 8            to --
 9                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Absolutely.
10                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  -- JAGG and a JAGG
11            specialist --
12                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Absolutely.
13                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY: -- and all the resources
14            that --
15                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yeah.
16                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Okay.
17                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yeah, we are not precluding
18            students that are digital or hybrid to have the
19            opportunity to sign up for any other courses that
20            anyone else on our campus would.
21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Ms. Saracini, any questions?
22                 MS. SARACINI:  Clarify one time for me, this is
23            7-12; correct?
24                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Correct.
25                 MS. SARACINI:  And it's separated from the ALE
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 1            that's --
 2                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Correct.
 3                 MS. SARACINI:  -- 5-12; correct?  Okay.  I just
 4            wanted to make sure --
 5                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yeah.
 6                 MS. SARACINI:  -- that that was my
 7            understanding.
 8                 MR. RANDOLPH:  We have grand visions of doing K-
 9            12, and then I shared the numbers with you.  When we
10            had 24 students K-6, it was very hard for our school
11            board to justify, you know, making that a viable
12            option for our students.  Yes, ma'am.
13                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Williams, do you have
14            questions?
15                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Yes.  What is your K-12
16            enrollment?
17                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Total K-12 enrollment, we're at
18            about 12,400 at the moment, give or take.
19                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.  Thank you.  I was just
20            looking to see what the 2500, what the percentage of
21            that would be.  This seems reasonable.  Thank you.
22                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, sir.  Thank you.
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Baldwin?
24                 MR. BALDWIN:  I saw in your Student Support
25            section that you-all are planning to review grades
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 1            weekly.  And you have a Level 1 and a Level 2 for
 2            kids that are struggling, I guess to get extra
 3            support.  Talk to me and explain to me a little bit
 4            more about the weekly review.  Is that just the
 5            teacher reviewing with the student or is that -- tell
 6            me how that works.
 7                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Sure.  So the weekly review,
 8            there will be time for students and teachers to have
 9            that interaction.  We also will have, you know, an SS
10            team, a student support team, RTI -- I can't recall
11            exactly what this campus -- their verbiage they're
12            using.  But they're going to have those weekly talks
13            about students as well to determine -- because, you
14            know, we may have one student that -- or a student
15            that has a math teacher, but it's important that that
16            math teacher know how that student is doing in
17            English and doing in social studies and so-on and so-
18            forth.  So they're going to be part of those weekly
19            conversations.  And then whoever the home teacher is
20            or advisor, they'll be the ones to work with their
21            students on that.
22                 MR. BALDWIN:  Thank you.
23                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, sir.
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers?
25                 DR. FLOWERS:  My question is similar in regards
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 1            to Level 1 intervention.  When you talk about under
 2            Student Supports the students who did not excel at
 3            digital, how to maybe best -- so do you utilize the
 4            same monitor academic policy as well for them?
 5                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes.
 6                 DR. FLOWERS:  Okay.
 7                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Yes, sir.  I mean that was one of
 8            the things that I think was so difficult for us with
 9            digital learning, especially during -- can I say
10            during the pandemic or are we out?  I can't remember.
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  (Shaking head from side to
12            side)
13                 MR. RANDOLPH:  But, yeah, we're in.  Okay.
14                 But especially with last year that was difficult
15            for us was that we -- it was very -- it was very hard
16            for us to be able to tell families that this isn't
17            working.  You know, we did home visits, we did
18            everything we could, myself included, Central Office
19            staff going out to work with families.  And so what
20            we want to do is to keep such a close hand on those
21            students because we don't have, you know, physical
22            interaction with them.  So they're going to get the
23            same support and we're going to have that constant
24            communication.  And where -- again, ACE works a
25            little bit better in this way because I think they've
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 1            been interviewing and interviews usually take
 2            anywhere from 30 minutes to an hour-and-a-half with
 3            students to determine, you know, what's the best
 4            setting for them to go in this route, make sure that
 5            that support is there.
 6                 DR. FLOWERS:  Thank you.
 7                 MR. RANDOLPH:  You bet.
 8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Any additional
 9            questions?
10                 Then I think we're ready for a motion.
11                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I move approval.
12                 MS. SARACINI:  Second.
13                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So a motion by Ms. Wright-
14            McMurray and a second by Ms. Saracini to approve the
15            application as presented.
16                 Any discussion?
17                 All those in favor?
18                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
20                 All right, Panel Members, if you'll go to your
21            voting sheets and enter information.
22                 And while they're doing that, I will just say
23            that, as always, we're always impressed with the work
24            that's going on there.  And I'm really excited about
25            having this conversation in the fall about what we're
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 1            seeing at the beginning of the school year and
 2            knowing kind of what the adjustments may need to be
 3            and what your future plans are and what data we're
 4            going to need to collect to --
 5                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Absolutely.
 6                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- know the most important
 7            information.  So I look forward to that presentation
 8            as well.
 9                 MR. RANDOLPH:  Well, Ms. Coffman and Panel, I
10            appreciate the time and appreciate your support.
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.
12                 So, Panel Members, as soon as you finish your
13            voting sheets, if you'd like to go ahead and record
14            your justification.
15                 And then, Ms. Wright-McMurray, if you're ready,
16            do you want to share yours with Mr. Randolph?
17                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I wrote the district has a
18            well thought-out plan to implement digital learning
19            in the district and expand to meet the needs of their
20            students.
21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers.
22                 DR. FLOWERS:  Approved.  I look forward to
23            hearing more about how the students are supported
24            utilizing this plan.
25                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Go ahead, Mr. Baldwin.
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 1                 MR. BALDWIN:  Thank you.  I voted for the
 2            application.  It was a good presentation.  I think it
 3            will work well for students.
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Ms. Saracini.
 5                 MS. SARACINI:  I support the Cabot Academic
 6            Center for Excellence amendment because it's a well
 7            thought-out plan.
 8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Williams.
 9                 DR. WILLIAMS:  We're off mute here.
10                 Yes, I support the motion.  This would provide
11            both students and parents additional educational
12            opportunities during this hopefully post-pandemic
13            time.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Well, congratulations, Mr.
15            Randolph.  And we look forward to hearing good
16            information and sharing data with you in the fall.
17            Thank you.
18  II.  CONSIDERATION OF CHARTER AMENDMENT
19       a)  FRIENDSHIP ASPIRE ACADEMY PINE BLUFF
20                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston, item number 2
21            please.
22                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Yes, ma'am.  Tim Johnston, DESE
23            Charter Unit.
24                 As Ms. Hyatt already said, this presentation was
25            presented last month.  But Friendship Aspire Academy
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 1            Pine Bluff is requesting an amendment to add an
 2            additional campus, increase the enrollment cap, and
 3            add additional waivers.  The charter was originally
 4            granted in 2017 and serves students in grades K-3
 5            with an enrollment cap of 240.  The charter has been
 6            approved to expand to grade 6 and increase the
 7            enrollment cap to -- that should actually be 480, and
 8            I will get the minutes corrected; I just caught that
 9            mistake.
10                 (COURT REPORTERS NOTE:  Ms. Saracini exited the
11            meeting.)
12                 MR. JOHNSTON:  So they've already been approved
13            to increase their enrollment cap to 480 by 2023-2024
14            school year.
15                 And Phong Tran, Superintendent, and Virginia
16            Perry Henry, Deputy Superintendent, are both here in
17            person, if you have any questions.
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you.
19                 Good morning.
20                 SUPT. TRAN:  Good morning.  How are you?
21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  If you'll raise your right
22            hand --
23                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, ma'am.
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Do you swear to -- or affirm
25            that the testimony you're about to give shall be the
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 1            truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?
 2                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, ma'am.
 3                 MS. HENRY:  I do.
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you.
 5                 And if you'll state your name and just kind of
 6            pick up where we left off and --
 7                 SUPT. TRAN:  Sure.  I'm Tran, Phong Tran,
 8            Superintendent.
 9                 MS. HENRY:  Virginia Perry Henry, Deputy
10            Superintendent.
11                 SUPT. TRAN:  And we have Mr. Dukes, he's our
12            principal at the Pine Bluff campus, that's here as
13            well just in case you have any questions.  But also
14            we have Mr. William Fells from the mayor's office,
15            from Pine Bluff, who's also online if you have any
16            other questions for them.  And Ms. Kincyl Kelly, our
17            special education director.  So, yes.
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.
19                 MS. HENRY:  So we don't have another
20            presentation.  We just wanted to pick up where we
21            left off last time.  So we're here before you today
22            asking for permission to add a campus on Main Street
23            in downtown Pine Bluff and to increase the enrollment
24            cap from 480 to 880.
25                 SUPT. TRAN:  So if you all have any questions


Sharon K. Hill, CCR







Page 41


 1            for us, we're here for that.
 2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And so, Ms. Hyatt, I'm
 3            assuming that similar waivers that they have in their
 4            other campuses are the waivers that they're
 5            requesting.  Is that correct?  Or are they requesting
 6            any additional?
 7                 MS. HYATT:  Mary Claire Hyatt.
 8                 It's the same waivers.  We verified that in
 9            their original application for the campus -- for the
10            addition of the campus.
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  And then the digital
12            learning plan has already been reviewed by the DESE
13            team and recommended.
14                 So, Dr. Flowers, do you want to start on your
15            side?  Do you have any additional questions?
16                 DR. FLOWERS:  Yes.  Will you talk to me a bit
17            about the interest in the new campus in regards to
18            teachers?
19                 MS. HENRY:  Certainly.  In regards to teachers?
20                 DR. FLOWERS:  Yes, in regards to hiring
21            teachers.
22                 MS. HENRY:  Oh.  We will basically do the same
23            thing that we always do and that we've done at --
24            well, for this school year, is actually seek to
25            recruit highly -- Arkansas qualified and certified
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 1            teachers for the new campus.  We advertise on Indeed,
 2            we advertise on SchoolSpring; we have a great
 3            partnership with University of Arkansas at Pine Bluff
 4            and their teaching area.
 5                 SUPT. TRAN:  But on top of that, we actually
 6            also have a FIAT [ps] division, which is the
 7            Friendship Institute for the Maxim of Teaching.  What
 8            that does is that -- so what we've been doing this
 9            year is that some of our -- some of the teachers are
10            not certified; right?  So they're highly-qualified
11            but not -- they're not certified.  So what we're
12            doing is that -- providing professional development,
13            getting them through the Praxis test, because a lot
14            of them have passed their course credits but they
15            didn't pass the Praxis exam.  So what we're doing is
16            that -- that's part of Friendship is that we're
17            getting them -- this is afterschool hours; we're
18            tutoring on how to -- you know, how to take the exam,
19            like all those questions, so-on, so-forth, and what
20            is needed to pass the exam so that they can get
21            certified.  So on top of that as well we've been
22            partnering with UAPB to see, you know, what can we do
23            to help out with the incoming students.  So, you
24            know, being that it's Pine Bluff, you know, it's away
25            from Little Rock; you know, that's the teachers that
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 1            we have there.  But we're actually investing a lot in
 2            the teachers and the -- I guess the freshmen and the
 3            graduates that's coming out of UAPB in development to
 4            make sure that they are certified.  So that's what
 5            we're doing there as well.
 6                 DR. FLOWERS:  Okay.  Thank you.
 7                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Baldwin?
 8                 MR. BALDWIN:  Yes.  On the building that you
 9            already use, the structure is currently unoccupied.
10            And will you have to do any renovation work or
11            anything to prepare the building?
12                 SUPT. TRAN:  So, are you talking about the new
13            campus that we're looking at or are you talking about
14            the existing campus that we have?
15                 MS. HENRY:  The new campus.
16                 MR. BALDWIN:  The new campus.  So we will be
17            purchasing -- we're in talks, and City of Pine Bluff
18            too, to look at some land down there.  It's on Main
19            Street.  And so we'll be looking at purchasing that
20            plot.  And I think it is to renovate; I could be
21            mistaken.  But it's to renovate that building to
22            house our K-3.
23                 MS. HENRY:  So construction will be necessary.
24                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, sir.
25                 MR. BALDWIN:  Okay.
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 1                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And will you have time to do
 2            that construction before school starts?
 3                 SUPT. TRAN:  So it won't be this school year.
 4            It will be done for the next school year.
 5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.
 6                 SUPT. TRAN:  So it's the 23-24.  So we'll have a
 7            whole year to go ahead and do the construction and
 8            some renovations.
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And your charter is set to
10            expire in 2023?
11                 SUPT. TRAN:  23-24, if I'm not mistaken.
12                 MS. HENRY:  It's 2023.
13                 SUPT. TRAN:  2023.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  June, yeah.
15                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yes.
16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  That's what I've got on my
17            notes.  Okay.
18                 Dr. Williams?
19                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, just a quick thought.  I
20            like the idea, one, that this is a year away; two,
21            that you're putting school downtown.  This is more of
22            a comment than anything -- well, a question and a
23            comment.  I remember when KIPP was put downtown in
24            Helena and it really revitalized Main Street by
25            bringing more parents to the area just to pick up and
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 1            drop off kids.
 2                 One, I would encourage you if you hadn't talked
 3            to the Chamber in Pine Bluff to work with them to see
 4            what synergy you can develop by having people --
 5            everybody is working very hard to get people
 6            downtown, and picking up and dropping off kids -- and
 7            Mr. Baldwin was part of that effort at that time.
 8                 So the -- my other question is just, well,
 9            really to that same point, is have you all worked
10            with anyone from the downtown area about putting the
11            school there?
12                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, Dr. Williams.  And I guess
13            I'll talk.  So we've been working with Mayor
14            Washington, as well as Forward Pine Bluff, and that's
15            why they support us in putting a school downtown.
16            But that school is also good for that -- the area
17            down there as well because, as you know, there's a
18            casino that was built --
19                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Yes.
20                 SUPT. TRAN:  -- close to that area.  And so
21            that's why we're trying to serve, for those parents
22            that's working at the casinos and those parents that
23            are close to that downtown area there's a school for
24            them to send their child there.
25                 MS. HENRY:  And William Fells from the Pine
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 1            Bluff mayor's office is actually on the Zoom today.
 2            So he can also speak, if you'd like to hear something
 3            from him.
 4                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Thank you.  I believe it was the
 5            young man -- did he speak last time?
 6                 MS. HENRY:  Yes, sir.
 7                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, that is correct, sir.
 8                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Absolutely.  Thank you.
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Ms. Wright-McMurray?
10                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Hi.  Thank you again for
11            coming back and visiting with us.  I just had a
12            question.  I see you have a waiver for Guidance
13            Counselor or -- so what is your -- what's your plan?
14            How do you implement that in your schools?
15                 MS. HENRY:  Although we have a waiver for
16            Guidance Counselor, we have a social worker.
17                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Okay.
18                 MS. HENRY:  So that social worker acts in that
19            capacity, as well as our assistant principal and
20            principal, to fill in that gap.
21                 SUPT. TRAN:  Also, so our coaches that we have
22            -- so we have an ELA coach and mathematics coach as
23            well who is also, you know, assistant principal.  But
24            they also act as a guidance counselor.  But we do
25            have a social worker on staff.


Sharon K. Hill, CCR







Page 47


 1                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  So outside of the socio-
 2            emotional needs of the students, so when it comes to
 3            like career exploration, career guidance who on your
 4            campus is responsible for addressing those needs?
 5                 MS. HENRY:  The principal.
 6                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Okay.
 7                 MS. HENRY:  And he's here.
 8                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Okay.
 9                 SUPT. TRAN:  And at the moment -- and so because
10            we're a K-3, because the school -- we're a slow-
11            growth model, so we grow a grade every year.  So, you
12            know, being a K-3, I mean he provides great support
13            and career guidance to our kids.  But that's still a
14            long way off, you know what I'm saying.  But, yes, he
15            acts in that capacity.
16                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Because I know we had some
17            discussion -- sorry -- about --
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Go ahead.
19                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  -- early interventions on
20            career exploration and guidance and things like that.
21                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yeah.
22                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  And so even though it is
23            K-3, as early as we can start having those
24            conversations with students we are encouraging that,
25            so when they get to the upper grades it's not such a
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 1            "oh, this is introductory conversation."
 2                 MS. HENRY:  He does have those conversations.
 3            And he could probably speak more to it than I can.
 4            But I know that he has groups and organizations that
 5            are focused on career exploration.
 6                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yeah.  Do you want Mr. Dukes to
 7            talk?
 8                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Sure.
 9                 SUPT. TRAN:  Mr. Dukes.
10                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I probably need to swear you
11            in.
12                 MR. DUKES:  Okay.
13                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  If you'll raise your right
14            hand -- do you swear or affirm that the testimony
15            you're about to give shall be the truth, the whole
16            truth and nothing but the truth?
17                 MR. DUKES:  I do.
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And state your name, please.
19                 MR. DUKES:  Jherrithan Dukes.  I serve as the
20            principal for the Friendship Aspire Academy in Pine
21            Bluff, the elementary school.
22                 To answer your question, Ms. Wright-McMurray, we
23            do spend a lot of time talking about career
24            exploration.  Actually, this year all of our
25            Friendship schools actually adopted a socio-emotional
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 1            curriculum; so that was one of our ways of getting
 2            focused on the socio-emotional needs of all of our
 3            students.  In addition to that, prior to this school
 4            year, this past school year we spent a lot of time
 5            having community meetings, having school-wide
 6            meetings, having small classroom meetings about
 7            career exploration, socio-emotional things that are
 8            going on, training schools for behavior, things that
 9            may come up in the school and stuff like that.  So we
10            do have a social worker, which we're excited about,
11            that's coming in.  But even prior to that, we've
12            already had support in place for all of our students
13            for behavior and things like that.  We do have an
14            assistant principal at our school who does act in
15            that capacity to insure that our students have what
16            they need.  Like she said, it's a shared load with us
17            being a small charter school, but we do have
18            personnel in place already that do provide those
19            supports for all of our students.
20                 Is that it?
21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you.
22                 MR. DUKES:  Okay.  Thank you.
23                 MS. HENRY:  And at our last meeting we actually
24            rescinded the waiver for the Guidance Counselor
25            because we have a social worker.
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 1                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Yeah, and that was my
 2            other thing.  That's what I thought, but, you know,
 3            I've slept since then.
 4                 MS. HENRY:  You were right.
 5                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  So I thought that you guys
 6            did, but --
 7                 MS. HENRY:  We did.
 8                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  -- it was still on there.
 9            Okay.
10                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, ma'am.
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Any additional
12            questions from the Panel?
13                 Then I'll accept a motion.
14                 MR. BALDWIN:  I move approval.
15                 DR. FLOWERS:  Second.
16                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Second.
17                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So I have a motion from Mr.
18            Baldwin and a second from Dr. Flowers.
19                 Any discussion?
20                 All those in favor?
21                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
22                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
23                 Motion passes.
24                 SUPT. TRAN:  Thank you.
25                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  If you'll give us a moment to
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 1            respond.
 2                 SUPT. TRAN:  Appreciate you all.  Thank you.
 3                 MS. HENRY:  Thank you.
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you.
 5                 And, Panel Members, as soon as you're ready,
 6            just go ahead and share your response.
 7                     (A FEW MOMENTS OF SILENCE)
 8                 DR. WILLIAMS:  I'm having trouble accessing my
 9            voting sheet.  I can't get it to move from the
10            previous one on my laptop.  So when I'm ready I could
11            just read it.
12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Go ahead, Dr. Williams.
13                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.  I support the motion.
14            Increasing enrollment and adding the downtown site
15            will create opportunities and also create educational
16            opportunities for students and parents, and also meet
17            the needs of industry by parents having a school in
18            the vicinity of new job opportunities.
19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you.
20                 Mr. Baldwin.
21                 MR. BALDWIN:  Yes.  I voted for the motion.  I
22            believe that this will strongly support student
23            learning.
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers.
25                 DR. FLOWERS:  I support the expansion of
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 1            Friendship Aspire Academy with the addition of an
 2            additional campus and increased enrollment which will
 3            support students as well as the community.
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And Ms. Wright-McMurray.
 5                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I voted for the motion and
 6            I appreciate the work of the Friendship Academy
 7            administrative team and faculty.  The expansion will
 8            add a great resource for students and the community
 9            of Pine Bluff.
10                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Well,
11            congratulations --
12                 SUPT. TRAN:  Thank you.
13                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- to Friendship.
14  III.  CONSIDERATION OF CHARTER AMENDMENTS FOR DIGITAL LEARNING
15  PLANS
16        a)  FRIENDSHIP ASPIRE ACADEMY PINE BLUFF
17                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston, let's read
18            number 3.
19                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Okay.  The next item is
20            Friendship Aspire Academy Pine Bluff has submitted an
21            amendment for Digital Learning Program in grades K-5.
22            The school will offer asynchronous and synchronous
23            instruction virtually through the use of an approved
24            digital provider and licensed district staff.  And
25            the application has been reviewed by the DESE team.
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 1                 And Mr. Tran and Ms. Henry are still both here,
 2            if you have any questions.
 3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And just as a reminder to the
 4            Panel this is a part of our expedited digital
 5            learning process.  And they have been -- all plans
 6            that are before you today have been reviewed by an
 7            extensive committee who takes great time to do
 8            detailed reading and note-making and communication
 9            back with the school districts.
10                 So we'll just start with are there any questions
11            by the panel members.
12                 Dr. Williams, any questions?
13                 DR. WILLIAMS:  No.
14                 Gentlemen?
15                 I'll accept a motion.
16                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I move approval.
17                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Second.
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So I have a motion by Ms.
19            Wright-McMurray and a second by Dr. Williams.
20                 Any discussion?
21                 All those in favor?
22                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
24                 Motion passes.
25                 SUPT. TRAN:  Thank you.
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 1                 MS. HENRY:  Thank you.
 2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Congratulations.  You have a
 3            digital learning plan.
 4                 SUPT. TRAN:  Appreciate you.
 5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And it will go before the
 6            State Board at the State Board meeting.
 7                 SUPT. TRAN:  Yes, ma'am.
 8        b)  CROSS COUNTY ELEMENTARY
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston.
10                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Yes, ma'am.  Consideration of a
11            charter amendment for Digital Learning Program for
12            Cross County Elementary.  They submitted an amendment
13            for grades 3-6.  The school will offer asynchronous
14            and synchronous instruction virtually through the use
15            of an approved digital provider.  The application has
16            been reviewed by the full DESE team.
17                 And Stephen Prince, High School Principal at
18            Cross County is on the Zoom if you have any
19            questions.
20                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Good morning, Mr. Prince.
21                 MR. PRINCE:  Good morning.
22                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  How are you?
23                 MR. PRINCE:  I'm doing good.  How are you all?
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  We're great.
25                 Panel Members, do you have any questions?


Sharon K. Hill, CCR







Page 55


 1                 Dr. Williams, we'll start with you.
 2                 DR. WILLIAMS:  No direct questions.  Is any --
 3            were there any concerns from ADE staff in this
 4            process, in working with them?
 5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  No, sir.
 6                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.
 7                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Ms. Wright-McMurray, any
 8            questions?
 9                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Not at this time.
10                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Baldwin?
11                 MR. BALDWIN:  (Shaking head from side to side)
12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers?
13                 DR. FLOWERS:  No questions.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  I'll accept a
15            motion.
16                 MR. BALDWIN:  I move approval for the request.
17                 DR. FLOWERS:  Second.
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I have a motion by Mr.
19            Baldwin and a second by Dr. Flowers.
20                 Any discussion?
21                 All those in favor?
22                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
24                 Motion passes.
25                 Congratulations, Mr. Prince.
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 1        c)  CROSS COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
 2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston.
 3                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Next is Cross County High School.
 4            They've submitted an amendment for Digital Learning
 5            Program in grades 7-12.  The school will offer
 6            asynchronous and synchronous instruction virtually
 7            through the use of an approved digital provider.  And
 8            the application has been reviewed by the DESE team.
 9                 And Stephen Prince, High School Principal is
10            also available for any questions on this plan.
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any questions, Ms. Wright-
12            McMurray?
13                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  No.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Baldwin?
15                 MR. BALDWIN:  No.
16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers?
17                 DR. FLOWERS:  (Shaking head from side to side)
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Williams?
19                 DR. WILLIAMS:  None.
20                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I was looking for when does
21            the Cross County charter expire?
22                 MR. PRINCE:  I think the elementary is coming up
23            this current December, I believe.  And we just
24            renewed the high school.
25                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And what did you say about
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 1            high school, Mr. Prince?
 2                 MR. PRINCE:  It was just renewed.  We just
 3            renewed the high school.  And elementary will be up
 4            for renewal this coming year.
 5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So the expiration year for
 6            high school is --
 7                 Tim has the spreadsheet out.
 8                 MR. JOHNSTON:  They just renewed for the high
 9            school, so it was a five-year renewal; so it would be
10            2026, if I'm correct.  And the elementary expires
11            June of '22.
12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  So I just want to
13            bring that to the Charter Panel's attention that, you
14            know, the State Board has been very cautious about
15            three years on digital learning plans.  We have had I
16            believe one charter that received more than three
17            years; they had had a long history with digital
18            learning.  So I just want you to take that into
19            consideration.
20                 Mr. Prince, do you want to speak to that?
21                 MR. PRINCE:  So we're going to use -- we've
22            chosen Virtual Arkansas as our digital provider.  And
23            we chose them because they are, of course, reputable
24            and very credible in what they provide for the school
25            and the courses they can provide for our students.
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 1            And we actually use them for other courses throughout
 2            the many years of -- with the high school and our
 3            students.  And so we felt that just selecting them as
 4            our provider would be the best route to go for our
 5            students as we move forward with how the digital
 6            learning platform is going to start shaking out with
 7            post-Covid.
 8                 I hope that answered your question.
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  How many students do you
10            anticipate being fully virtual?
11                 MR. PRINCE:  So we did our survey, inquiring
12            with our parents on who would be interested in our
13            virtual learning platform for the new school year.
14            We had very few that were interested.  And throughout
15            the school year almost all, with the exception of
16            about 10 to 15 students, actually came back from
17            virtual learning throughout the school year.  And
18            based on our survey we had about five or six families
19            or students or parents that were actually interested
20            in continuing virtual learning at that point.  And it
21            was about the same at the elementary, very small
22            numbers.
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And do you have dedicated
24            staff to support those students?
25                 MR. PRINCE:  Yes.  So we are going to continue
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 1            to use our virtual learning liaison that we used this
 2            previous school year to continue to monitor those
 3            students and make those contacts with those parents.
 4            And, for example, with Virtual Arkansas, they have
 5            some really good reports that we'll be able to pull
 6            weekly, so we can see what the students are working
 7            on and how much they're working on and how often
 8            they're accessing their content.
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Any additional
10            questions?
11                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I do have a --
12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Go ahead.
13                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  -- question.  And I'm not
14            sure exactly if it's for the district or not.  But I
15            think maybe in a previous meeting we kind of amended
16            or did -- shortened the time to where they could have
17            approval on this, just so that we could address that
18            we know that it's needed right now but potentially
19            going forward they may not need it for an entire
20            period of their charter.
21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Uh-huh.
22                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  So is that something we
23            can consider here?
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Absolutely.
25                 MS. HYATT:  (Nodding head up and down)
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 1                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yes.  Mary Claire is nodding
 2            her head yes.
 3                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  And I just don't remember
 4            the time period that we kind of shortened it to,
 5            because I've slept since then; so I don't remember.
 6                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  So I think the majority --
 7            most of the applications that have been approved by
 8            the State Board have been for three years --
 9                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Okay.
10                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- with the exception of
11            Graduate Arkansas that had a longer period of time.
12                 What's the will of the group?
13                 Dr. Williams, any thoughts?
14                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, I'm trying to read through
15            the material here.  So how long are they requesting
16            theirs for the digital learning plan?
17                 Wait a minute.
18                 MS. HYATT:  One of their charter schools does
19            not expire -- they just renewed this year, the high
20            school.  So they have five additional years on that,
21            so it would be essentially for five years.  So if you
22            want to shorten that one to three, you can just in
23            your motion say approve for however many years or you
24            can approve it for the full length of the charter.
25            The other school will be coming back for renewal
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 1            soon, so you'll have a time to review that pretty
 2            quickly.
 3                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.  What I suggest or what my
 4            thoughts are is to be consistent with the Board.  And
 5            so if that's the case, if they're doing -- preferring
 6            three over five, I would suggest three and be willing
 7            to make a motion to that effect when the time comes.
 8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Prince, are you amenable
 9            to that?
10                 MR. PRINCE:  Absolutely.
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Dr. Williams, do
12            you want to make a motion for us?
13                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Absolutely.  I move that this
14            digital learning plan be approved for three years.
15                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I second.
16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Second by Ms. Wright-
17            McMurray.  Motion by Dr. Williams, second by Ms.
18            Wright-McMurray to approve the Cross County High
19            School Digital Learning Program for three years.
20                 Any discussion?
21                 All those in favor?
22                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
24                 Motion passes.
25                 Thank you, Mr. Prince.
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 1                 MR. PRINCE:  Thank you all.
 2        d)  SCHOLARMADE ACHIEVEMENT PLACE OF ARKANSAS
 3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston.
 4                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Next is ScholarMade.  ScholarMade
 5            Achievement Place of Arkansas submitted an amendment
 6            for Digital Learning Program in grades K-9 for all
 7            campuses.  The school will offer asynchronous and
 8            synchronous instruction in a blended format through
 9            the use of an approved digital provider.  The
10            application has been reviewed by the full DESE team.
11            Their charter expires in June of 2023.
12                 And Dr. Phillis Anderson is on the Zoom if you
13            have any questions.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you.
15                 Panel Members, any questions?
16                 Good morning, Dr. Anderson.
17                 DR. ANDERSON:  Good morning.
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Hearing no questions from our
19            panel members, do we have a motion?
20                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I move approval of the
21            application.
22                 DR. FLOWERS:  Second.
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I have a motion from Ms.
24            Wright-McMurray and a second from Dr. Flowers to
25            approve the Digital Learning Program for ScholarMade
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 1            Achievement Place of Arkansas.
 2                 Any discussion?
 3                 All those in favor?
 4                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
 5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
 6                 Motion passes.
 7                 Congratulations, Dr. Anderson.  Thank you for
 8            joining us today.
 9                 DR. ANDERSON:  Thank you.
10        e)  PREMIER HIGH SCHOOL OF LITTLE ROCK
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston.
12                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Premier High School Little Rock
13            has submitted an amendment for Digital Learning
14            Program for grades 9-12.  The school will offer
15            asynchronous instruction virtually through the use of
16            an approved digital provider and licensed district
17            staff.  The application has been reviewed by the DESE
18            team.
19                 And Dennis Felton, State Director of Premier
20            High School is available online if you have any
21            questions.
22                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  And their charter expires --
23                 MR. JOHNSTON:  6 of 2023.
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  2023.  All right.
25                 Good morning, Mr. Felton.
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 1                 MR. FELTON:  Good morning.  Are you able to hear
 2            me?
 3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yes, sir.
 4                 MR. FELTON:  All right.
 5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Charter Panel
 6            Members, do we have any questions?
 7                 No questions, no --
 8                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Yes.
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Williams.
10                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Yeah, and this may be more for
11            ADE staff or Mr. Felton also.  I noticed they're just
12            doing asynchronous.  Usually most of them are coming
13            through doing both.  Any rationale behind that?
14                 MR. FELTON:  Well, we really wanted the
15            flexibility for the students.  We're thinking about
16            the students in particular that only just need a
17            couple of credits to graduate.  A lot of times, we're
18            trying to make them go at a teacher's pace and
19            ultimately we're actually hindering them from being
20            able to complete their graduation requirements early.
21            And then, on the flipside, they actually want to
22            start getting engaged in some of those (inaudible)
23            based applications and working towards post-secondary
24            goals.  So we don't want to tie them down.  That way,
25            they're actually having to go to the teachers later.
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 1            We want to give them more autonomy and flexibility to
 2            work at their own pace.
 3                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Good answer.  Thank you.
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any additional questions?
 5                 I'll accept a motion.
 6                 DR. WILLIAMS:  So moved.
 7                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Second.
 8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I have a motion by Dr.
 9            Williams, a second by Ms. Wright-McMurray to approve
10            Premier High School of Little Rock Digital Learning
11            Program.
12                 Any discussion?
13                 All those in favor?
14                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
15                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
16                 Motion passes.
17                 Congratulations.
18        f)  PREMIER HIGH SCHOOL OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston.
20                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Yes, ma'am.  Next is Premier High
21            School of North Little Rock.  They too have submitted
22            an amendment for Digital Learning Program in grades
23            9-12.  The school will offer asynchronous instruction
24            virtually through the use of an approved digital
25            provider.  The application has been reviewed by the
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 1            DESE team.  And their charter expires in June of
 2            2024.
 3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. --
 4                 MR. JOHNSTON:  And --
 5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Go ahead.  I'm sorry.
 6                 MR. JOHNSTON:  I apologize.  And Mr. Felton is
 7            still on the Zoom.
 8                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you.
 9                 Dr. Williams, any questions?
10                 DR. WILLIAMS:  They expire in 2024.  How many --
11            is that four or three years?
12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  22, 23, 24 -- three years.
13                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Questions on this side?
15                 I'll accept a motion.
16                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I move approval.
17                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Second?
18                 MR. BALDWIN:  Second.
19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I have a motion by Ms.
20            Wright-McMurray and a second by Mr. Baldwin.
21                 Any discussion?
22                 All those in favor?
23                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
25                 Motion passes.
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 1                 Congratulations, Mr. Felton.  You've got two --
 2                 MR. FELTON:  Thank you.
 3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  -- Digital Learning Programs.
 4                 MR. FELTON:  Thank y'all.
 5                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  You're welcome.
 6        g)  GENTRY HIGH SCHOOL CONVERSION CHARTER
 7                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Johnston.
 8                 MR. JOHNSTON:  You should've all received an
 9            email from me that Gentry was pulled from the agenda.
10        h)  BATESVILLE HIGH SCHOOL CHARTER
11                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Okay.  So last is Batesville High
12            School.  Batesville High School Charter has submitted
13            an amendment for Digital Learning Program in grades
14            9-12.  The school will offer asynchronous and
15            synchronous instruction with virtual and blended
16            options through the use of an approved digital
17            provider.  The application has been reviewed by the
18            DESE team.  And Jennifer Douglas, Assistant
19            Superintendent of Curriculum and Instruction, is on
20            the Zoom if you have any questions.
21                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Good morning, Ms. Douglas.
22                 MR. DOUGLAS:  Good morning.
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.  Let's start --
24            and their charter expires --
25                 MR. JOHNSTON:  They are a new charter.  I was
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 1            just trying to pull that up.  I believe they have a
 2            five-year, but I want to confirm that.
 3                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.
 4                 MS. DOUGLAS:  That is correct.  We were just
 5            approved last fall.  Our charter will open in the
 6            fall of this year.  So we are completely fine if we
 7            need to have this Digital Learning Plan to be
 8            approved for three years.
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  I'll take that as an
10            amendment to your amendment.
11                 Mr. Williams, any -- Dr. Williams, I'm sorry,
12            any questions?
13                 DR. WILLIAMS:  No questions.  Thank you.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers?
15                 DR. FLOWERS:  Yes, I have a question.  Under
16            Student Supports you make the comment about how
17            online students in grades 9-12 if they're absent and
18            they need -- may need to be on remote, their parent
19            needs to call in before 8 a.m. so the teacher can be
20            notified.  Can you talk to me through that process?
21                 MS. DOUGLAS:  Yes.  If that was directed to me,
22            I couldn't hear his question.
23                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Flowers, can you repeat
24            the question?
25                 DR. FLOWERS:  Yes.
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 1                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  A little closer to the
 2            microphone please.
 3                 DR. FLOWERS:  Yes.  Can you hear me now?  I'm
 4            sorry.
 5                 MS. DOUGLAS:  Yes, sir.
 6                 DR. FLOWERS:  Okay.  So under Student Supports,
 7            you talk about if an onsite student in grades 9-12 is
 8            -- are absent and need to be remote, then the parent
 9            must call before 8 a.m. so that the teacher can be
10            notified, so the student can be remoted into class.
11            Can you talk to me a bit about that process, how it's
12            going to work?
13                 MS. DOUGLAS:  We have -- I think that I lost the
14            last part of the question.  But as far as the remote
15            instruction, we are allowing students -- as far as
16            the digital plan, if like I wake up -- if I'm a 9th
17            grader and I wake up and I'm ill, I can have five
18            times through the course of a semester that I could
19            still access my courses from home.  But just to keep
20            families and students from abusing it, the parent has
21            to call in to the office and say, "Hey, Johnny is
22            sick today; he needs to access his courses from
23            home."  We did that last year and the flexibility is
24            great.  But we also just wanted to make sure that we
25            didn't have students abusing that privilege to be
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 1            able to access courses from home when they could --
 2            you know, when they were maybe too sick to come to
 3            school but they felt like still doing learning that
 4            day.  They will just Google Meet into their classroom
 5            and hear that instruction as it's happening in the
 6            class.
 7                 Does that answer your question?
 8                 DR. FLOWERS:  Yes, it does.  Thank you.
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Mr. Baldwin?
10                 MR. BALDWIN:  (Shaking head from side to side)
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Ms. Wright-McMurray, any
12            questions?
13                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  No.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Dr. Williams, did I ask you
15            already?
16                 DR. WILLIAMS:  I believe you did, but I don't
17            have any at this time either.
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  All right.  I'll
19            accept a motion for a three-year approval of
20            Batesville High School Charter's Digital Learning
21            Program.
22                 MR. BALDWIN:  I'll make the motion.
23                 DR. FLOWERS:  Second.
24                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I have a motion by Mr.
25            Baldwin and a second by Dr. Flowers.
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 1                 Any discussion?
 2                 All those in favor?
 3                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any opposed?
 5                 Motion passes.
 6                 Congratulations, Ms. Douglas.  You have a three-
 7            year Digital Learning Plan.
 8                 MS. DOUGLAS:  Thank you so much.
 9                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you.
10  CLOSING COMMENTS
11                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any additional business, Mr.
12            Johnston?
13                 MR. JOHNSTON:  No.
14                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Ms. Hyatt?
15                 MS. HYATT:  No.
16                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Any -- Panel Members?
17                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  So did we settle on what
18            time we're going to meet next Tuesday?
19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  No, we haven't.
20                 The afternoon -- do you want to go ahead and set
21            us a time, Ms. Hyatt?  12:00, 1:00?
22                 MS. HYATT:  If 1:30 works, I think that would
23            give us time to get everything set up here in the
24            afternoon.  And I assume -- would you like to have an
25            in-person option or just a Zoom option?
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 1                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I could do either one.
 2            That's fine with me.
 3                 MR. DAN DAVIS:  You're wanting next Tuesday?
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Yes, sir, at 1:30.  Will that
 5            work for you?
 6                 MR. DAN DAVIS:  I'll pull it up but --
 7                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Can we make it 2:00?
 8                 MR. JOHNSTON:  Dr. Williams was asking if we can
 9            make it 2:00.
10                 MR. DAN DAVIS:  Tuesday, the 20th the auditorium
11            is empty.
12                 MS. HYATT:  Did you say 2:00, Dr. Williams?
13                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Yes.
14                 MS. HYATT:  If 2:00 on the 20th works, we'll
15            schedule it then.  We'll reserve this room to run the
16            Zoom through.  And also if you want to come in person
17            that's absolutely fine.
18                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Just let Mr. Johnston know if
19            you want to come in person.  Otherwise, we'll make
20            sure that we have a Zoom link for all of the Panel
21            Members.
22                 MS. HYATT:  And we will probably be updating the
23            agenda until last-minute, just so you -- we can get
24            as many on this special meeting as possible.  If
25            we've added any within 24 hours before the meeting,
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 1            we'll be sure to point those out to you.
 2                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.
 3                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  Thank you.
 4                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  All right.
 5                 DR. WILLIAMS:  Thank you all for your
 6            flexibility.
 7                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Thank you all.
 8                 You're reserving the room for us, Dan?
 9                 MR. DAN DAVIS:  Tim will need to.
10                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Okay.  We'll take care of it.
11  ADJOURNMENT
12                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  I need a motion to adjourn.
13                 MS. WRIGHT-McMURRAY:  I move -- so moved.
14                 DR. FLOWERS:  Second.
15                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Motion by Ms. Wright-
16            McMurray, a second by Dr. Flowers to adjourn.
17                 All those in favor?
18                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
19                 CHAIRMAN COFFMAN:  Meeting is adjourned.
20                 Thank you, everyone, for participating today and
21            we appreciate you so much.  Have a great day.
22
23
24              (The meeting was concluded at 10:20 a.m.)
25
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